Public Document Pack
Please Contact: Ellen Walker
Extension: 43455
E-mail: ellen.walker@ryedale.gov.uk
Date of Publication: 2 September 2020

COUNCIL
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of
democratic meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected
Members and Officers who participate. Risk assessments are undertaken in advance
of each meeting, and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The intention is to hold
democratic meetings in-person where it is safe to do so. However, if, as a result of
risk assessment it is determined that a physical meeting cannot safely occur, the
meeting will proceed virtually and details of this will be made available on the
Council’s website.
In the event of a physical meeting, social distancing measures will be in place
throughout, however it is important that you do not attend the meeting if you or
anyone in your household has symptoms of COVID-19.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live
streamed online. Details of how to access the live stream will be made available on
the Council’s website in due course. For health and safety reasons and in
accordance with our risk assessment, members of the public are asked to follow the
meeting via this method rather than attending any physical meeting in person. If you
are unable to access the meeting this way, please contact us so that we can explore
whether any safe alternative option is possible. The media will be able to report on
proceedings from the live stream.

Council Summons and Agenda
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of Ryedale District Council to
be held in the Main Hall, The Milton Rooms, Malton on Thursday, 10 September 2020 at
6.30 pm in the evening for the transaction of the following business:
Agenda

1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform members of the public of the emergency evacuation procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

3

Public Question Time

4

Minutes

(Pages 5 - 32)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the ordinary Meeting of Council held on
20 February 2020.

5

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be dealt
with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

6

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council are
required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is not
discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

7

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, the Leader and/or the Head of Paid
Service.

8

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)

a

To Councillor Goodrick, Chair of the Planning Committee, from Councillor Potter
“Do you agree with the points made in a letter from the cabinet member for planning
and leader of Cheshire East council to the Secretary of State for Housing, Robert
Jenrick, after he allowed a planning appeal, despite a clear conflict with local
development plan policies and sufficient 5 year land supply. The letter claims this
decision ‘undermines the principles of effective plan making’ and will ‘likely lead to a
further scramble for developers to seek permission for other unplanned sites’.”

9

Exempt information
To consider a resolution to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the reports marked exempt for the following item 10 (To Receive all
Committee and Council level decisions made under urgency powers, as required under
the Constitution) as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the
Local Government Act 1972, as they contain information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).
The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information.

10

To Receive all Committee and Council level decisions made under urgency
powers, as required under the Constitution
(Pages 33 - 294)

Public Committee and Council level decisions made under urgency powers are
available for inspection on the Council’s website. This includes a list of exempt
decisions outlining the reasons for the exemptions.

11

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive Questions
and Give Answers on that Statement
(Pages 295 - 296)

12

Financial Business

a

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Outturn 2019-20

(Pages 297 - 304)

b

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q1 2020/21

(Pages 305 - 314)

c

Ryedale's Financial Strategy 2020-2024

(Pages 315 - 322)

13

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following Part
'B' Committee Items:

Policy and Resources Committee held on 19 March 2020

a

Minute 122 - Council Plan 2020-2024

14

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

a

Proposed by Cllr Keal and seconded by Cllr Mason

(Pages 323 - 342)

(Pages 343 - 356)

This item was considered at Policy and Resources Committee on 19 March 2020 and
subsequently as part of a Decision Notice issued under urgency powers.
“In view of the continuing calls for west east access to the A64 from York Rd, we call on
Ryedale District Council to work with North Yorkshire County Council and the Highways
Agency to explore the possibility of a roundabout at the Huttons Ambo junction on the
A64 to help alleviate the traffic congestion levels in Malton and Norton.
The roundabout would allow access to the A64 east from York Road, reducing the level
of traffic, including HGVs, that have to pass through Malton and Norton to access the
A64 and create east/west access at both ends of the Malton bypass.
Furthermore, with the concern widely expressed for the safety of children and parents
accessing Malton County Primary School and St Mary’s RC School on Highfield Lane,
Malton, we call on Ryedale District Council to support a HGV ban between the Peasey
Hill Road junction and Hawthorn Avenue.
We request that Officers be asked to enter into negotiations with North Yorkshire
County Council to follow the process required to introduce this ban.”

15

Appointment of a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee
To appoint a new representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee,
following Councillor Delaney’s decision to step down from this role.

16

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent

Stacey Burlet
Chief Executive

Agenda Item 4
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held in the Council Chamber,
Ryedale House, Malton on Thursday 20 February 2020.
Items 1-12 and 15b (minutes 78 to 88 and 91b refer) were considered on 20 February 2020. The
meeting then stood adjourned at 10:40pm.
The meeting was reconvened on 27 February 2020 to complete the outstanding business.
Present
Councillors

Joy Andrews
Paul Andrews
Arnold
Bailey
Brackstone
Burr MBE
Clark
Cleary (Chairman)
Cussons MBE
Delaney
Docwra
Duncan
Frank (Vice-Chairman)
Garbutt Moore
Goodrick
Graham
Hope
Di Keal
MacKenzie
Mason
Middleton
Oxley
Potter
Raper
Riby
Thackray
Wass

In Attendance
Will Baines, Stacey Burlet, Simon Copley, Andrew Ellis, Anton Hodge, Barry Khan, Nicki
Lishman, Phillip Spurr, Margaret Wallace and Louise Wood.

Minutes

78

Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence on 20 February were received from Councillors
Delaney, Frank, King, Raine and Windress.

Council

1

Page 5

Thursday 20 February 2020

Apologies for absence on 27 February were received from Councillors Hope,
King, Raine, Riby and Windress.
79

Public Question Time

Council took the following public question, submitted by Mr D Summers, in
relation to historic issues of bullying at Ryedale District Council:
“The Council's Overview & Scrutiny Committee have concluded their
investigations into the questions of bullying and intimidation at the Council.
Disturbingly, the investigation found clear evidence that bullying and
intimidation has taken place. Assuming that the report is accepted by Full
Council at this meeting, what further actions in connection with this matter
are proposed?”
The Chairman thanked Mr Summers for his question and replied:
“You will appreciate from the agenda that there are two items that Council will
be hearing this evening in connection with this report therefore my answer
now is very brief but I will allow you a supplementary if you require it. The
answer to the question is in the report from the Chief Executive, issued with
the agenda, sets out the actions taken in connection with this matter. Do you
wish to ask a supplementary?”
Mr Summers then asked a supplementary question:
“The Raine Dunstan report refers to disgraceful bullying and intimidation
events in the Council’s recent [sic] history and there was clearly been a lack
of action from those in senior positions [at the time] who should have been
aware of what was occurring. In this connection I asked a public question at
Full Council in 2016 about bullying and was told "We have in place clear
policies and guidance to address these serious issues". There was also
extensive press coverage at the same time on that subject. As the Council
has a duty of care towards staff affected by the bullying and intimidation
uncovered in the Raine Dunstan report what action is the Council going to
take in respect of those former members of staff who did not have the benefit
of voluntary redundancy payments or an NDO and were bullied out of their
jobs and suffered a number of serious problems? Including which, I'll draw
your attention to the following. There would be a financial impact on people
who were bullied out of their jobs, they'd have reduced occupational pension
and reduced state pension contributions, as well as suffering a sudden loss
of current earnings. They would also have difficulty in securing another job,
related to skills, experience, age and reference issues. A number of
members of staff who left the authority suffer from mental health issues.”
The Chairman replied that he would take the question as what actions the
Council had put in place and what future actions it might put in place. The
Chairman offered a written answer if required, but highlighted that these
matters would be covered later under that item on the agenda.
Council

2

Page 6

Thursday 20 February 2020

80

Minutes

The minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 5 December 2019
were presented.
Resolved
That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 5 December
2019 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
Voting record
23 For
1 Abstention
81

Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business which the Chairman considered
should be dealt with as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
82

Declarations of Interest

The Chairman advised that the declarations of all members of North
Yorkshire County Council would be taken as given.
The following interests were declared:
Councillor P Andrews declared a personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial
interest in Item 12 as Chairman of the Milton Rooms Management
Committee.
Councillor Thackray declared a personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial
interest in Item 12 as a Trustee of the Milton Rooms.
83

Announcements

The Chairman made the following announcements:
Thanks were given to Tony Galloway, former Deputy Chief Executive, who
had left the Council to take up a senior post at Swindon Borough Council.
On behalf of the Council, the Chairman offered condolences and sincere
sympathy to Councillor Raine on her recent bereavement.
84

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council
Procedure Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)
To Councillor Clark, Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, from
Councillor Joy Andrews

Council

3

Page 7

Thursday 20 February 2020

To Councillor Clark, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee from
Councillor J Andrews:
Councillor J Andrews submitted the following question:
“In view of the fact that the bullying and follow up investigation has spanned
three Councils, could the chair of O&S please give this new council the
history and background so as to put the report into context.”
Councillor Clark, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, replied:
The investigation into bullying by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee has
taken an unbelievable two and a half years. My own involvement goes back 6
years. Employees of RDC made contact alleging bullying, they usually asked
for help and advice. On each occasion I advised that they spoke to their line
manager, the manager's manager and the union. None of this appeared to
reduce, let alone stop the alleged bullying. I was contacted by more than ten
cases and heard of as many again.
The biggest impact was on mental health. Three examples; left 2017 not
worked since; serious mental issues still ongoing in 2020. one person was
going to ring me in the new year 2017, told me she had panic attacks over
Christmas and the New Year though had never had panic attacks before.
Handed in her notice with no job to go to.
I raised bullying several times with the Chief Executive at that time in 2014
and 2015, I asked her to investigate. In my opinion nothing happened and the
phone calls from employees continued. In 2016 I raised the issue in Full
Council, the Chief Executive said no Councillors had raised the question of
bullying with her. One other Councillor had raised the issue with her, again,
nothing done. I therefore moved a motion of no confidence in the Chief
Executive at the time, this was ruled out of order by the Chief Executive and
the Monitoring Officer.
In 2017 the Health & Wellbeing Group, in conjunction with the then Staff
Champion, carried out a survey into bullying and other issues. In June 2017
Overview & Scrutiny agreed to look into the alleged bullying starting with the
Health & Wellbeing Group/Staff Champion survey. The Deputy Chief
Executive said "I'll see if the Chief Executive will let the Committee see it". In
my opinion, once again senior management at that time tried to block any
moves to resolve the issue.
Overview & Scrutiny commissioned an independent academic survey to be
carried out by Professor John Raine, this gave the same results as the
Health & Wellbeing survey, however the Raine report is academically sound,
independent and more rigorous. The Raine report was given to the new
Chief Executive in January 2019 for her to use in management terms, her
report is attached in the item later this evening.
Council

4

Page 8

Thursday 20 February 2020

One question for Council to consider is what course of action should a
Councillor take if the senior management is possibly acting inappropriately. If
this is non-financial but concerns welfare etc of employees, what is the
equivalent to the external auditor? The problem of bullying should not have
taken six years to resolve.
The second question for RDC to consider is its duty of care to employees
and I put duty of care as my words in inverted commas because I believe it
has a technical time limit to it. Those who've been bullied in the past may still
be our responsibility and I use the word responsibility in the same tone. The
new Chief Executive has looked into and is in contact with many of those and
I think we must make absolutely sure that we've picked up every case of
where our behaviour, and I say our collective behaviour in the past has
allowed people to be ill-treated, some of the who have been suffering for all
that time since.”
Councillor Cleary , Chairman of the Council stated:
“We have a partial answer to your questions Mr Barry Khan, our legal advisor
this evening who will answer in part, those questions.”
Mr B Khan, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
and Monitoring Officer, North Yorkshire County Council, advised:
“I’m grateful for the advanced notice of the question. As a local authority
there's usually a whole series of checks and balances that apply to local
authorities, so you have the ombudsman, which is an external independent
organisation which looks at whether the authority has created any maladministration, so a member of the public can make a complaint to an
independent party. As Councillor Clark has said, finance matters go to
external audit. Also if there's an employment matter then individual
employees can refer the matter to an Employment Tribunal, so ultimately it
will have a judicial hearing.
I think the question that's been raised now though is if those processes don't
fit the exact circumstances whereby an authority has legitimate concerns, or
where a member of staff or a member of the public has legitimate concerns,
how can that be raised? Because I've had advanced notice of that, what I've
said is that I would write on behalf of this Council to the relevant central
government department to ask for answers to those questions where things
slip through the gaps.”
85

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive
Questions and Give Answers on that Statement

Councillor Duncan, the Leader of the Council, presented the following
statement:

Council

5

Page 9

Thursday 20 February 2020

LEADER’S STATEMENT
This is our first full Council meeting of 2020 – and it marks the start of both a
new year, and a new decade. I hope we can work together to make this a
year of progress and achievement as we deal with a number of key issues. I
would like to brief members on some important progress that has been made
through the Policy & Resources Committee and its various cross-party
working groups.
Public Services Hub
P&R agreed to proceed with the development of a business case for a Public
Services Hub. This will involve exploring how we can bring essential public
services together into a single, modern, fit-for-purpose facility. We are able to
draw down £70k of funding from the Cabinet Office to support this work.
Construction work has already begun for the Jobcentre to move into Ryedale
House, and tonight we will consider a request for North Yorkshire Police’s
neighbourhood team to also move in. This represents many months of hard
work from our officers and will greatly improve the service we give to the
public.
Refugee resettlement
P&R agreed that the council should once again participate in the
Government’s refugee settlement scheme. The scheme will involve housing
18 people by 2024. There is no direct cost to the council and it is a welcomed
by our housing team.
Milton Rooms
We have held three meetings of the cross-party working party looking at how
the council can best support the Milton Rooms into the future. These have
been interesting and positive discussions, involving a number of different
contributors. At the next meeting, which takes place later this month, we will
hear from trustees of the Milton Rooms Committee. The findings of the
working group will be collated and taken to a future meeting of P&R for
consideration.
Car parking strategy
We are making significant progress with the cross-party car parking working
party, where we are examining the findings of the consultant’s report. We
have already reviewed district-wide recommendations, and we are now in the
process of looking at specific measures for each of the five towns. This is an
important issue for the people and businesses of Ryedale, and members are
playing a full role in making sure we take the right decisions for the future
strategy. It is hoped that the final strategy will be ready for approval by
council in June.

Council

6

Page 10

Thursday 20 February 2020

Housing
An independent review of our approach to tackling homelessness resulted in
the council receiving the highest mark of any council reviewed so far. For the
third year running, we have received the top rating for our administration of
housing benefit, something no other North Yorkshire local authority has
achieved. We have also been successful in attracting additional funding to
address fuel poverty in our district. These are all testimony to the
commitment of the officers delivering these services, and I would like to
record my thanks to the staff for their work.
And finally, I would like to once again express my thanks to members for their
contributions to the important work of this council. By working together in a
constructive way I am confident that we will be able to make significant
achievements by the end of our term.
The following questions were received on the Leader’s Statement:
1. From Councillor Burr
“I'd like to ask a question regarding the bullying report. Firstly sincere
apologies to any staff and former staff who were bullied and not
listened to. It was very sad to read the report conducted in 2017. after
reading the report it's sad to see in the staff survey that 46.5%, just
under half of our staff said that morale was quite low and then it
followed on to 60.6% who said it had become even lower. T2020 was
implemented with force, a lack of compassion and total disregard for
what was needed in staff terms to deliver good services. Our staff
work tirelessly but staff do need to be happy, thriving and a less
stressed workforce. In the summary, it was heartening to see that the
severity and frequency of such behaviours has now diminished and I
know that our new Chief Executive has put in place a much happier,
productive and pleasant place to work. I feel we must learn from this
and we must move forward. Serious bullying cannot be tolerated, so I
ask my Leader, would you with me thank Councillor Clark for all the
work that he has done to bring this bullying report into the public realm
and we can now move forward and be a good Council?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Cllr Burr for your question. It isn't a question that relates to
my statement however, given the topic that has been raised I'm happy
to answer the question and extend my thanks to Cllr Clark and the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee. At the very start of the bullying
enquiry I was a member of Overview & Scrutiny so I was there at the
start of that and I'm pleased that we have now finally got to the point
where we are reporting the findings of that enquiry. I would like to,
while we're on this topic, stress some of the points that you've raised
Cllr Burr, about that fact that we now have new procedures and new
Council

7

Page 11

Thursday 20 February 2020

policies in place, which I feel mean that we're in a very different place
to where we were 2 years ago, 3 years ago, 4 years ago. I'm also
conscious however that there is still more that we need to do as a
Council, that includes Members and also officers of the Council. So I
hope that answers your question, obviously the bullying item is coming
later but I am happy to extend my thanks to all the Members of the
Overview & Scrutiny who have worked on the report.”
2. From Councillor P Andrews
“My question why is there no mention in the Leaders statement in
regard to flooding issues and rising water issues in view of the recent
downpours and I do have a supplementary question Chair.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Cllr Andrews for your question. Strictly speaking I suppose
you could say that is a question on the statement and the absence of
something within it. All I would say as I've said previously, my
statement cannot include all of the work that this Council does and
every single issue and item. It tries to reflect the key items which are
coming forward from the work of the Policy and Resources Committee.
Obviously we have had stormy weather over the past few weeks and
that has had an impact on Ryedale communities but as I say, the
statement is there and I can't include everything.”
Councillor P Andrews asked the following supplementary question:
“My question is something that I have actually raised with Cllr Duncan
and the Chief Executive not so very long ago and that is when are we
going to have the next meeting of the Flooding Liaison Group and why
have we not had quarterly meetings of that group for the last year?”
The Leader then replied:
“Again, I've tried to be generous in allowing questions which do not
relate to my statement and when I did that at the last meeting I gave
an inch and I felt like people took a mile. What I will do is I will provide
you with an answer to that question outside of this meeting because it
does not relate to the contents of my statement.”
Councillor P Andrews requested:
“Could I ask that in your written answer you actually tell me a date for
the next meeting of that group.”
3. From Councillor Potter

Council

8

Page 12

Thursday 20 February 2020

“With regard to housing, at the last meeting I asked a question about
the enabling development for the Fitzwilliam Trust Corporation with
regard to the Cattle Market and the reply from the Leader referred to
such enabling development 227 houses on Showfield Lane, 35
houses in Old Malton, another 50 in Rainbow Lane, plus and I quote
"Commercial development at Eden Camp". Now would Cllr Duncan
agree that for accuracy and I include for the accuracy of the Ryedale
public, he should be quite clear that this about providing a livestock
market and not merely commercial development, because if he was to
look at the actual planning application, that is exactly what it says erection of new livestock market blah, blah and business park.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Cllr Potter. I don't want to give you an answer when I
haven't been able to check the full details and information, so what I
will do is provide you with a written answer to your question.”
4. From Councillor Clark
“Trying to help you with your Leader's statement as I usually do and
the last one being very fulsome in political and leadership terms
wishing us Christmas and very little else, I'd like to point out that it is
the Leaders' statement, not the Chair of P&R's statement and we have
got here Public Service Hub - P&R, Refugee Settlement - P&R, Milton
Rooms - P&R, Car Parking Strategy - P&R, Housing - P&R. On that
basis you said that you weren't going to have any questions that
weren't on your statement and your Leader's statement says nothing
that Leader has done at all, makes it a little difficult. Now I'm sure
that's an administrative error on your part and on that basis I wonder if
you could, rather than tell Council what Council was perfectly able of
watching and seeing what you did in full display at P&R, what you may
have done since the last Full Council in the more translucent areas of
meeting that the Leader may have throughout the county, throughout
the country, however far your wings have spread?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Cllr Clark for your question. I feel that it's important that all
Members of the Council have the opportunity to ask myself, who is
Leader and Chairman of P&R, questions on important issues which
are being discussed by Policy and Resources, some of which have not
come to this Council for decision. I felt that I was hopefully helping out
and being constructive and giving people the opportunity to ask me
about some of things that Policy and Resources has been working on
even if they are not members of the Policy and Resources Committee.
That's why the statement is framed as it is. My last Leader's statement
was doing what I thought again was quite a nice thing to do, which is
trying to wish everybody Merry Christmas and say thank you to
Council

9

Page 13

Thursday 20 February 2020

Members for their hard work in the year that was just passing by. I'll
keep working on my Leader's statement Cllr Clark and try to reflect on
the comments that are raised but I would also stress that it is the
Leader's statement and it is written by the Leader of this Council and
what I put in there and what I don't put in there is down for Leader to
decide.”
Councillor Clark then asked the following supplementary question:
“I'm not sure whether other members are flattered by the fact that
they're whether not capable of being on P&R, attending P&R, listening
to the tape or reading the minutes. But never mind - I did ask you a
question on what you've done as Leader and you then proceeded to
justify that the Leader's statement, the clue is in the name, was all the
things you've done and why you've covered everything to do with
P&R. And then a blank space, nothing has happened as the Leader. I
think that's a clear indication that what we need is a very good, which
I'm sure we have, Chair of P&R and have no need for a Leader of
Council at all.”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you Cllr Clark for your question. In my answer previously I
didn't say that no work has taken place in my role as the Leader of this
Council. What I would like to stress again to all Members is that this
statement is here and people have the chance to ask me questions on
the statement, points of clarification, additional points on the issues
that are there but increasingly people seem to be using it as an
opportunity to ask me a whole host of questions and that is not what
this space of time is meant to be for. This is a statement by myself to
the Council which goes on the record of the agenda papers and I do
try and be flexible, I do try to be reasonable in answering the questions
but I do wonder sometimes how constructive this session may be with
some of the questions that are being asked. Just picking up on one of
the points that you raised Cllr Clark, there are some people who attend
Policy and Resources who are there, listen to what's going on yet still
fail to understand what has happened on some occasions.”
5. From Councillor Burr
“This question you'll be happy to hear is related to your Leader's
statement. I'd like it to be put on record that I personally support the
Hub and I support Ryedale District Council remaining in this building.
Yes, money needs to be spent on the building but I feel that will be far
cheaper than spending £5-6 million on new Council buildings. I think
we have a duty to protect Council Tax payers money. I think the Job
Centre must move into Ryedale District Council building and should
have been done years ago and I'm happy for some North Yorks
County Police to work from this building but what I strongly disagree
with is the closing of Malton Police Station and the glossing over of the
Council

10

Page 14

Thursday 20 February 2020

hugely important matter by saying some of the Police are moving into
RDC. Government has promised more Police on our streets, so why
would we close the Police Station in Malton. My question is would you
agree with me that we need to keep Malton Police Station open at all
cost, we cannot allow it to close. Austerity is now over, we are going to
get more Police and we need Malton Police Station.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Cllr Burr for your question. There's several different angles
to that. The first one is that with regards the work that we are doing as
a Council in terms of the Public Services Hub, you mentioned there
about the relative costs of different options for this building and this
site. What Policy and Resources has commissioned is experts in these
matters to draw up all of the options and compare the costs, the
benefits of all the options, so that we're making the right decision.
Obviously neither me or you are expert surveyors or anything along
those lines so this is going to arm us with the information we need to
make an informed decision with regards to what we do with our
building. Turning to the Police, you are right to reference that obviously
I believe that the Police have been looking for quite some time at their
assets and one of their assets is the current Malton Police Station. We
are not in charge of the Police Service in North Yorkshire, there is a
completely separate governance arrangement and it's for them to
decide how best to use their assets and the Police and Crime
Commissioner obviously is involved with that. I don't think it would be
right for me at this point in time, without more information, to discuss
the future of that building but it's important that we recognise the
messages that we have had, they want to move into this building and
we have the opportunity tonight later in the debate to allow that to
happen and secure a publically accessible police office, which the
people of Malton, Norton and the surrounding area are going to be
able to use. So I'm hoping that Council will endorse that and give it's
backing to what I think will be a really positive and constructive move
for this Council and also for North Yorkshire Police. I know that you'd
voiced opposition to that at Policy and Resources but our staff here,
the Communities Team, the Customer Services team and also the
staff at North Yorkshire Police think that is going to be a really positive
move for both organisations and allow us to work more closely
together on some of the issues where there is a cross over eg antisocial behaviour, rural crime, animal welfare and other items, so I see
it as a real positive and I would like to think that Members of this
Council, in particular Members that represent Malton and Norton will
give their backing to what I think is a really positive and important
move for Ryedale District Council and North Yorkshire Police.”
Councillor Burr then asked the following supplementary question:

Council

11

Page 15

Thursday 20 February 2020

“My question to you was would you agree with me that we need to try
to keep Malton Police Station open and I don't think you quite
answered that. What I don't object to is the Communities team being
here and I think that's really good that we work together and move
forward together but my initial worry is that we are actually closing the
Police Station.”
The Leader then replied:
“What I would say all public sector organisations in this particular era
need to be looking less I think at their assets and their buildings that
the own and focus increasingly more so on the way that we are
delivering services and dealing with the public. I think that's the really
crucial thing is ensuring that we're meeting the needs of the Ryedale
population, the North Yorkshire population, not focussing on particular
buildings and particular assets. So that's what I would say on that and
with regards to your last point that we are closing Malton Police
Station, we - as Ryedale District Council - are not closing Malton
Police Station. It is an issue for North Yorkshire Police and they have
got to make fundamentally, as we do as Ryedale District Council, the
right decisions for the taxpayers of North Yorkshire, which
fundamentally they fund North Yorkshire Police.“
6. From Councillor Thackray
”Didn't expect to be commenting on the Leader's statement tonight but
as we're talking about things that are missing, I must mention the
sculpture of Henry Moore who was as you probably all know was
famous for the big holes that were in his sculpture and indeed Henry
Moore himself considered those to be just as important as the actual
metal part of the works themselves. I look upon Cllr Duncan, the
Leader's statement as being similar in that the bits that are missing
and not there are vitally important. I'd just like to reference as Cllr
Duncan likes to quote things I've written, I'd like to quote what he has
said in the Gazette & Herald in respect of a new baby for me and
something that I intend to see come to fruition, a new roundabout at
the Musley Bank end of the A64 and slip roads at the B1257
Broughton Road. An article appeared in the Gazette on the basis that I
wrote to all members of Council, including the press, to advocate that
we make this a Council priority. Cllr Duncan with his great generosity,
responded to the article in the Gazette by saying "Cllr Thackray seems
to think he's invented the wheel with his proposal for new roundabouts
but this idea has in fact been on the cards for decades. I'm a big
supporter of all direction access at York Road and I believe the public
are too". He added "Anyone and everyone can shout about it but we
actually need to work to make it happen." and this is the key hole in
Henry Moore's sculpture "And RDC is working very productively with
North Yorkshire County Council to do so as quickly as possible." For
members of the public who don't understand the way this Council
Council

12

Page 16

Thursday 20 February 2020

works, which includes me, there is a Notice on Motion tonight which
Cllr Duncan has squirrelled away, he's not going to let us talk about it.
However, I am told, I have it reliably have been told, in respect of the
work that has been very productively progressing with North Yorkshire
County Council, there are no minutes of any meetings having taken
place, so could Cllr Duncan please explain to the Members and to the
members of the public precisely what you're talking about?”
The Leader replied:
“Cllr Thackray. Again your question does not relate to the Leader's
statement and again the Leader's statement is not an opportunity for
Members to make speeches. It is supposed to be an opportunity to
ask questions. There are quite a lot of elements to your question. I
think the key point there is about North Yorkshire County Council and
Ryedale District Council working together to help improve the traffic
situation in Malton and Norton and you know as well as I do the work
that has been happening through the joint study that has taken place
that has reviewed all sorts of options looking at the traffic situation.
You may or may not also be aware that North Yorkshire County
Council has established a steering group looking at traffic congestion
in Malton and Norton and the County Councillors of those two areas,
of which I am one, are members of that steering group. So work has
been taking place, there are minutes of that steering group but that's
not myself as Leader of this Council that's been taking part, it is in my
role as a County Councillor for Norton. We are all determined I believe
to improve the traffic situation in Malton and Norton but there are
processes which we have to go through to get there. It takes time, it's
frustrating I think for everybody that's involved but we nevertheless
have to go through that process and I feel that we are making
progress. On another point that you raised about the motion being
squirrelled away, this meeting is not my meeting, it is the Chairman of
Council's meeting and I have taken no action whatsoever with regards
to that motion. It's on the agenda papers and it will follow the course
as dictated in the Constitution.”
86

Designation of Monitoring Officer and Deputy Electoral Registration Officer for
the Council

The Chief Finance Officer (s151) submitted a report (previously circulated)
which recommended that Council approve;
(i) The proposal that the Council’s Monitoring Officer function will
transfer from the current Council Solicitor role to the new role of
Head of Corporate Governance, and therefore that
(ii) The current delegations for the Council Solicitor post be transferred
to the Head of Corporate Governance post.

Council

13

Page 17

Thursday 20 February 2020

(iii) The proposal that the Council’s Deputy Electoral Registration Officer
function will transfer from the current Democratic Services Manager
role to the new role of Head of Corporate Governance
Councillor Duncan moved
recommendations in the report.

and

Councillor

Burr

seconded

the

Upon being put to the vote the motion was approved.
Resolved
(i) That the Council’s Monitoring Officer function will transfer from the
current Council Solicitor role to the new role of Head of Corporate
Governance, and therefore that
(ii) The current delegations for the Council Solicitor post be transferred
to the Head of Corporate Governance post.
(iii) That the Council’s Deputy Electoral Registration Officer function will
transfer from the current Democratic Services Manager role to the
new role of Head of Corporate Governance
Voting record
20 For
5 Abstentions
87

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 3 January 2020: Minute 85 - RaineDunstan Report

The report was received by the Council and endorsed by consensus.
88

Revenue and Capital Budgets and Setting of Council Tax 2020/21

The Chairman of Council reported on the procedure to be adopted in
considering the above item.
It was proposed that the item be dealt with in two separate parts:
a) Firstly, consideration of the recommendations in Minute 107 of the
Policy & Resources Committee held on 6 February 2020 (excluding
the agreement of council tax rate) and item 12 paragraph roman
numeral I;
b) Secondly, item 12 paragraphs roman numerals II to V relating to the
requisite calculations and the setting of Council Tax.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Garbutt
Moore that Minute No. 107 of the Policy and Resources Committee held on 6
February 2020 (excluding discussion of Council Tax rate, which would follow,
with amendments being submitted) be noted and received by Council, that
Council

14

Page 18

Thursday 20 February 2020

Council adopt the recommendations in the s151 Officer's report and that
Council approve item 12 paragraph roman numeral I relating to the Council’s
revenue budget.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Voting record
Unanimous
Recorded vote
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr,
Clark, Cleary, Cussons, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick,
Graham, Hope, Keal, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter,
Raper, Riby, Thackray and Wass.
There then followed a discussion on setting the rate of Council Tax.
Councillor Duncan moved and Councillor Oxley seconded that Council
adopt the remaining recommendations in Item 12, revised Paragraphs
roman numerals II, III, IV (as revised) and V which relate to the requisite
calculations and setting the Council Tax for 2020/2021.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
“2.1 (ii) Increase Council Tax by £4.91.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was carried.
Voting record
12 For
11 Against
2 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Brackstone, Clark,
Cussons, Hope, Potter, Raper, Riby, Thackray and Wass.
Against
Councillors Bailey, Burr, Cleary, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore,
Goodrick, Graham, Mackenzie, Middleton and Oxley.
Abstention
Councillors, Keal and Mason
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
“The increase of £108,000+ is spent on climate change issues.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Council

15

Page 19

Thursday 20 February 2020

Voting record
10 For
14 Against
1 Abstention
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Keal, Mason, Potter,
Raper, Thackray and Wass.
Against
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Docwra,
Duncan, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Mackenzie,
Middleton and Oxley.
Abstention
Councillor Riby
The s151 Officer then clarified that revised figures would be set out in the
minutes in line with the amended motion. These included the changes to
District/Parish Council Tax Rates (as at III below) and noted that the overall
budget would increase by £108k elsewhere.
Upon being put to the vote the substantive motion was carried.
Voting record
17 For
8 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr,
Clark, Cleary, Cussons, Hope, Keal, Mason, Potter, Raper, Riby,
Thackray and Wass.
Against
Councillors Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham,
Mackenzie, Middleton and Oxley.
Resolved
That Council:
(i)

Approves the following, in addition to the amended recommendations
from Policy and Resources Committee.

I

Budget 2020/2021
That the revised revenue estimates for the year 2019/2020 and the
revenue estimates for 2020/2021, as submitted in the Council’s

Council

16

Page 20

Thursday 20 February 2020

Financial Strategy and Revenue Budget 2020/2021 Book be approved
(copy enclosed).
II

Council Tax Base
That it be noted that, in accordance with Minute No. 363(d)/2005 of
the Policy and Resources Committee held on 8 December 2005,
which was subsequently approved by Council at its meeting on 12
January 2006, Ryedale District Council has (pursuant to Section 101
of the Local Government Act 1972) delegated responsibility to adopt
the Council Tax base to the Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer
in consultation with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources
Committee. The Council calculated the amounts for the year 2020/21,
in accordance with regulations made under Section 31B of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, as set out in Annex A.

III

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the
year 2020/21, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the Act):
(a)

District/Parish Gross Expenditure
£27,488,551.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the
Council estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(2) of the
Act.

(b)

Income (including Government Grants and Collection Fund
Surpluses)
£21,914,405.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the
Council estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(3) of the
Act.

(c)

District/Parish Council Tax Requirement
£5,574,146.00 being the amount by which the aggregate at Part
III(a) above exceeds the aggregate at Part III(b) above,
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of
the Act, as its Council Tax requirement for the year.

(d)

Basic Amount of Tax (including Parish Precepts)
£252.66 being the amount at Part III(c) above, all divided by the
amount at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of
its Council Tax for the year.

Council

17

Page 21

Thursday 20 February 2020

(e)

Parish Precept and Special Expenses
£1,145,626.00 being the aggregate amount of all special items
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

(f)

Basic Amount of Tax (excluding Parish Precepts)
£200.73 being the amount at Part III(d) above less the results
given by dividing the amount at Part III(e) above by the amount
given at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in accordance
with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council
Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which
no special item relates.

(g)

Basic Amount of Tax in Parishes/Towns
The details for each Parish as shown in Annex B, column
headed “Aggregate amount at Band D”, being the amounts
given by adding to the amount at Part III(f) above the amounts
of the special item or items relating to dwellings in those parts
of the Council’s area mentioned above, divided in each case by
the amount at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts
of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its
area to which one or more special items relate.

(h)

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
The details as shown in columns “A” to “H” of Annex B, being
the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at Part III(f) and
Part III(g) above by the number which, in the proportion set out
in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D,
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of
the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in
respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation
bands.

IV

County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner and Fire &
Rescue Authority Tax Rates
That it be noted that for the year 2020/21 precepting Authorities have
stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, as amended, for each of the categories of dwellings shown
below:-

Council

18

Page 22

Thursday 20 February 2020

£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
COUNTY
COUNCIL
£

NYCC
ADULT
SOCIAL
CARE
£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
POLICE &
CRIME
COMMISSIONER
£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
FIRE &
RESCUE
AUTHORITY
£

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

829.07
967.25
1,105.43
1,243.61
1,519.97
1,796.33
2,072.68
2,487.22

79.91
93.22
106.54
119.86
146.50
173.13
199.77
239.72

177.18
206.71
236.24
265.77
324.83
383.89
442.95
531.54

48.46
56.54
64.61
72.69
88.84
105.00
121.15
145.38

BAND

V

Total Council Tax Rates
That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at
Part III(h) and Part IV above, the Council, in accordance with Section
30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended,
hereby sets the amounts set out in Annex C as the amounts of Council
Tax for 2020/21 for each of the categories of dwellings shown.

89

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2020/2021

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.
That Council approve:
i) Members receive this report;
ii) The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £6m;
iii) The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £11.5m;
iv) Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect
movement within the agreed authorised boundary limits for longterm borrowing for 2020/21 onwards.
v) Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect
movement within the agreed operational boundary limits for longterm borrowing for 2020/21 onwards.
vi) The treasury management strategy statement 2020/21 be approved.

Council

19

Page 23

Thursday 20 February 2020

vii) The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2020/21 be
approved.
viii)The treasury management investment strategy for 2020/21 be
approved.
ix) The prudential indicators for 2020/21 which reflect the capital
expenditure plans which are affordable, prudent and sustainable
be approved.
x) The Capital Strategy for 2020/21 be approved
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve:
i) Members receive this report;
ii) The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £6m;
iii) The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £11.5m;
iv) Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect
movement within the agreed authorised boundary limits for longterm borrowing for 2020/21 onwards.
v) Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect
movement within the agreed operational boundary limits for longterm borrowing for 2020/21 onwards.
vi) The treasury management strategy statement 2020/21 be approved.
vii) The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2020/21 be
approved.
viii)The treasury management investment strategy for 2020/21 be
approved.
ix) The prudential indicators for 2020/21 which reflect the capital
expenditure plans which are affordable, prudent and sustainable
be approved.
x) The Capital Strategy for 2020/21 be approved
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

20

Page 24

Thursday 20 February 2020

90

Member Allowances Scheme - Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations from the Independent Remuneration Panel
be approved and adopted.
The Panel recommends the continuance of the index to staff pay for
the annual adjustment of Member allowances until such a time as a
full review of the Member Allowances Scheme has taken place.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
Delete “until such a time as a full review of the Member Allowances
Scheme has taken place” and replace with “until January 2023”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was carried.
Recorded vote:
For: Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Burr, Clark, Cleary,
Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick,
Graham, Keal, Mackenzie, Mason, Oxley, Potter, Raper, Thackray and
Wass.
Against: Councillor Middleton
Upon being put to the vote the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve:
The Panel recommends the continuance of the index to staff pay for the
annual adjustment of Member allowances until January 2023.
Voting record
Unanimous
91

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following
Part 'B' Committee Items:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE - 6 FEBRUARY 2020
Minute 104 - HR Policy Revision

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Oxley that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.

Council

21

Page 25

Thursday 20 February 2020

a) The revised policies are agreed for implementation, subject to an
amendment to the Staff Volunteering Policy to reflect that volunteering
must be undertaken within Ryedale.
b) Administrative amendments to implemented policies:
That the
appropriate officer, under direction from SMB be able to make any
minor administrative amendments to implemented policies; such as
updating references, refreshing any forms attached as appendices as
part of improving workflow. These changes will be documented as
part of document control and will not result in a change of the policy
itself.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor Keal seconded the following
amendment:
“Defer subject until O&S has considered Equalities”
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
8 For
17 Against
0 Abstentions
Councillor Paul Andrews moved and Councillor Burr seconded the following
amendment:
“That each policy be voted on separately no debate”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
10 For
15 Against
0 Abstentions
Councillor Frank moved and Councillor Burr seconded the following
amendment:
Insert
e) Able to undertake one day a year unpaid volunteering for a charitable
organisation
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
3 For
20 Against
Council

22

Page 26

Thursday 20 February 2020

2 Abstentions
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve:
a) The revised policies are agreed for implementation, subject to an
amendment to the Staff Volunteering Policy to reflect that volunteering
must be undertaken within Ryedale.
b) Administrative amendments to implemented policies:
That the
appropriate officer, under direction from SMB be able to make any
minor administrative amendments to implemented policies; such as
updating references, refreshing any forms attached as appendices as
part of improving workflow. These changes will be documented as
part of document control and will not result in a change of the policy
itself.
Voting record
16 For
1 Against
8 Abstentions
Councillors J Andrews, Brackstone, Clark, Potter and Wass requested that
the reason for their votes to abstain on the motion be noted. They supported
some of the policies, particularly the Staff Volunteering Policy, but not all of
the policies presented.
Councillors P Andrews, Burr and Thackray requested that the reason for their
votes to abstain on the motion be noted. They supported all of the policies
presented except the Staff Volunteering Policy.
Councillor Frank requested that the reason for her vote against the motion be
noted. She supported all of the policies presented except the Staff
Volunteering Policy.
Minute 99 - Request to Lease Office Space at Ryedale House

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.
a) A 10 year lease for office space at Ryedale House, with a break at
5 years or to align with a new PSH, is offered as detailed in the
report.
b) Any future PSH rent costs (assuming this is delivered before the 10
Council

23

Page 27

Thursday 20 February 2020

year term and no more space is taken) are set at or around the
rental offer for the transitional space. Those requesting the office
space, reaffirm their funding position which is a guaranteed 10 year
lease rental income. Implementation remodelling costs will be
carried by those requesting the office space.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve:
a) A 10 year lease for office space at Ryedale House, with a break at 5
years or to align with a new PSH, is offered as detailed in the report.
b) Any future PSH rent costs (assuming this is delivered before the 10
year term and no more space is taken) are set at or around the rental
offer for the transitional space. Those requesting the office space,
reaffirm their funding position which is a guaranteed 10 year lease
rental income. Implementation remodelling costs will be carried by
those requesting the office space.
Voting record
17 For
5 Against
3 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Cleary, Arnold, Bailey, Cussons, Dowcra, Duncan, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley,
Raper and Riby.
Against
Councillors J Andrews, Brackstone, Clark, Potter and Wass.
Abstentions
Councillors P Andrews, Burr and Thackray.
Minute 102 - Timetable of Meetings 2020-2021

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.
That Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, subject
to the amendments requested by Policy and Resources.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved

Council

24

Page 28

Thursday 20 February 2020

That Council approve the timetable of meetings, subject to the amendments
requested by Policy and Resources.
Voting record
Unanimous
Minute 103 - Corporate Enforcement Policy

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.
(i) That the Council approves the Corporate Enforcement Policy
(appendix 1 of the report).
(ii) That the Corporate Enforcement Policy is uploaded to the website and
included in publication lists for the authority.
(iii) That the Corporate Enforcement Policy and Department Policies
continues to be reviewed on a regular basis or as the need arises
from factors such as changes to legislation.
(iv) That under the Council’s scheme of delegation, delegated authority is
given to the Heads of Service to undertake the enforcement duties
within the Corporate Enforcement Policy.
(v) That delegated authority is given to the Chief Executive to approve
minor modifications and updates to the policy.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve:
(i) That the Council approves the Corporate Enforcement Policy
(appendix 1 of the report).
(ii) That the Corporate Enforcement Policy is uploaded to the website and
included in publication lists for the authority.
(iii) That the Corporate Enforcement Policy and Department Policies
continues to be reviewed on a regular basis or as the need arises
from factors such as changes to legislation.
(iv) That under the Council’s scheme of delegation, delegated authority is
given to the Heads of Service to undertake the enforcement duties
within the Corporate Enforcement Policy.

Council

25

Page 29

Thursday 20 February 2020

(v) That delegated authority is given to the Chief Executive to approve
minor modifications and updates to the policy.
Voting record
Unanimous
Minute 105 - Budget Monitoring - Q3 2019/20

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendations be approved and adopted.
It is recommended that Council notes the contents of the report.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council notes the contents of the report.
Voting record
Unanimous
92

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11
Proposed by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Mason

[Please note that some minor amendments were made to the motion
between the agenda publication and the meeting]
“In view of the continuing calls for west east access to the A64 from York Rd,
we call on Ryedale District Council to work with North Yorkshire County
Council and the Highways Agency to deliver a roundabout at the Huttons
Ambo junction on the A64 and slip roads on / off the A64 at the B1257
Broughton Road to help alleviate the traffic congestion levels in Malton and
Norton.
The roundabout would allow access to the A64 east from York Road,
reducing the level of traffic, including HGVs, that have to pass through Malton
and Norton to access the A64 and create east/west access at both ends of
the Malton bypass.
Furthermore, with the concern widely expressed for the safety of children and
parents accessing Malton County Primary School and St Mary’s RC School
on Highfield Lane, Malton, thereafter, we call on Ryedale District Council to
support a HGV ban between the Peasey Hill Road junction and Hawthorn
Avenue.”
Under Council Procedure Rule 11.4, the motion stood automatically referred
to the Policy and Resources Committee.
Council

26

Page 30

Thursday 20 February 2020

93

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent

There being no other business, the meeting closed at 8:45pm.

Council

27

Page 31

Thursday 20 February 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL LEVEL DECISIONS MADE UNDER URGENCY POWERS
DURING COVID-19

PUBLIC DECISIONS
Business and Economy Workstream

Pages

Railway Tavern, Norton

37 - 39

Response to Motion to Council and Consultation on Proposed
HCV Restriction

41 - 47

Suspension of Car Parking Charges Across the District

49 - 52

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England)
Regulations 2020 – Officer Authorisation

53 - 55

106 Legal Agreement, Mickle Hill Extra-Care Scheme –
Pickering

57 - 61

NYCC Consultation: Developer Contributions for Education

63 - 68

Planning Application Decisions – 7 May 2020

69 - 73

Local Authority Discretionary Grant Scheme

75 - 90

Planning Application Decisions – 12 June 2020

91 - 94

Volunteer and NHS / Social Care Parking Permit Scheme

95 - 99

Introduction of Pavement Licences under the Proposed
Business and Planning Bill

101 - 106

Planning Application Decisions – 10 July 2020

107 - 112

To approve the appointment of the nominated RDC
representatives to the Malton, Norton and Old Malton Flood
Alleviation Scheme Community Client Group

113 - 116

Planning Applications Decisions – 7 August 2020

117 - 122

Agreement to the process to consider the submission to
Government of the York and North Yorkshire Devolution Asks

123 - 130

Communities and Volunteering Workstream
COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISIONS

Page 33

Pages
URGENCY POWERS 2020

Ryedale Markets

131 - 134

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 12 May 2020

135 - 137

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 19 May 2020

139 - 143

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 26 May 2020

145 - 149

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 2 June 2020

151 - 153

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 9 June 2020

155 - 157

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 30 June 2020

159 - 161

Emergency Community Grant Applications – 7 July 2020

163 - 165

Community, Flood and Section 106 Grant Applications – 6 July
2020

167 - 173

People, Democracy and Communications Workstream

Pages

Additional Capacity in Customer Services

175 - 177

COVID-19 Response

179 - 181

6 Month Rule

183 - 184

Council Plan 2020-2024

185 - 187

Postponement of Annual Council

189 - 191

Elections Print Procurement

193 - 195

Amendments to the Constitution to enable virtual Full Council
and Committee meetings

197 - 235

EXEMPT DECISIONS
Business and Economy Workstream

Pages

Malton Community Sports Centre – Grant Extension

237 - 240

Application to grant powers to officers to authorise rental
payment breaks / reductions for commercial tenants on a caseby-case basis

241 - 245

Malton and Norton Footway Lighting: Award of Tender

247 - 250

Request for Additional Financial Support

251 - 253

Allocation of Discretionary Business Grant Scheme Funding

255 - 258

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISIONS

Page 34

URGENCY POWERS 2020

Allocation of Remaining Discretionary Business Grant Scheme
Funds

259 - 263

Allocation of Discretionary Business Grant Scheme Funding
Round Two

265 - 268

Financial Support for Continuing Leisure Provision

269 - 278

Allocation of the Final Remaining Discretionary Business
Grant Scheme Funds

279 - 283

Allocation of Discretionary Business Grant Scheme Funding –
Third and Final Round

285 - 288

People, Democracy and Communications Workstream
Mechanism for holding Planning Committee consultation
meetings during urgency powers

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISIONS

Page 35

Pages
289 - 294

URGENCY POWERS 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

RAILWAY TAVERN, NORTON

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is required as to whether the recommendations contained in the report to
Full Council are agreed as a Part B item. This will allow the Council to access funding
to progress work on this project.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The recommendations contained in the report to Full Council are agreed as a
Part B item

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

A decision is required at this time in order to enable the Council to draw down funding
from the Homes England – Move On Fund. It is necessary for this funding to be
accessed before the end of the current financial year on 31 March 2020.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

If a decision is not made at this time there is a significant risk that the Council will be
unable to draw down on the funding allocated to it from the Homes England – Move
On Fund.

4.2

There is also a risk at this stage that the scheme does not receive planning permission.
It is scheduled at Planning Committee on 9 June 2020.

4.3

The financial feasibility is made up of commuted sums, HE grant funding and internal
funding. A contingency has already been built into the works cost to cover any increase
in costs following the tender process.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Details of the capital costs, proposed financing, performance output and revenue

Page 37

b)

c)

implications are set out in the report to Full Council
Legal
None
Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Details of specific implications in relation to climate change, staffing and equalities
are set out in the report to Full Council

Page 38

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader. Although this is primarily a matter of substance,
rather than of process, it is suggested that consultation also takes place with the Chair of
Council as the item was pending for consideration at Full Council.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
The Chair of Council was consulted on 25 March 2020 and supported the
recommendations given the views stated at Policy and Resources Committee.
Date consultation completed

25-03-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required to draw down grant funding from Homes England. I have been
able to discuss this with Steve Arnold (Deputy Leader of Council; Ryedale First
Independent group leader), Di Keal (Liberal Democrat group leader; Norton West ward
member) and John Mackenzie (Norton West ward member) who agreed with this
approach.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is approved.
on consultation
Date
31-03-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COUNCIL AND
CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED HCV RESTRICTION

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR OF
ECONONMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is required as to whether the Response to the Motion to Council and
Consultation on the proposed HCV restriction, as amended by the Policy and
Resources Committee on 19 March 2020 is agreed as a Part B item

1.2

A further URGENT decision is required to approve the wording of the Council’s
response to the Consultation on the proposed HCV restriction, to enable a response
to be provided to the ongoing consultation by the deadline of 03 April 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The content of the Response to the Motion to Council and Consultation on the
Proposed HCV restriction, as amended by the Policy and Resources
Committee on 19 March 2020 be noted;

(ii)

The Motion to Council (as amended by Policy and Resources Committee) is
referred to the next full meeting of Council;

(iii)

The wording of the Council’s response to the HCV restriction consultation is
agreed by the Chief Executive (using the urgency powers in consultation with
the Leader and local Ward Members).

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The Policy and Resources Committee considered these items at the meeting on 19
March 2020 and made recommendations to Council in respect of amendments to the
original Motion and parameters for a proposed response to North Yorkshire County
Council’s consultation.

3.2

Due to the linked nature of the Motion to Council and the HCV restriction consultation,
it is considered that both matters should be dealt with as Part B items.

3.3

Officers understand that Policy and Resources Committee expected officers to put
forward a form of words that reflects the view of the Committee for both the consultation

Page 41

response and as an amended Motion to Council (copies of each are attached at
Appendix 1 and 2 respectively).
3.4

A short extension to the original consultation deadline of 26 March was sought from
NYCC to give time for the above matters to be debated at Policy and Resources
Committee on 19 March and decided upon at Full Council on 02 April 2020. The
revised deadline for submission of comments is 03 April 2020.

3.5

Given the cancellation of Council and Committee meetings it is no longer possible for
Council to decide on the response letter and so, in order for a response to be provided
to the consultation prior to the agreed deadline, the urgency powers of the Chief
Executive in consultation with the Leader and local ward members need to be used.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is a risk that RDC will not be in a position to provide a response to North
Yorkshire County Council’s consultation should this item not be agreed at this time.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b)

Legal
The Council has a duty to fulfil its obligations under Part IV of the Environment Act
1995 Local Ait Quality Management and continue to meet these obligations

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are potential health and safety benefits of a prohibition of HCVs on
Highfield Road during the periods of school arrivals and departures. There are
also corresponding potential dis-benefits on the routes via which traffic might be
displaced, including adverse impacts upon air quality.

Page 42

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Given the cancellation of Council and Committee meetings it is no longer possible for Council
to decide on the response letter and so, in order for a response to be provided to the
consultation prior to the agreed deadline, the urgency powers of the Chief Executive in
consultation with the Leader and local ward members need to be used. The Chair of Council
is also to be consulted on how to proceed given that this relates to a matter of business which
was pending for the postponed meeting of Full Council.
7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2

Consultation Summary:
Relevant Ward Members were consulted with a copy of the draft consultation response
(included at Appendix 2) by email on 27 March 2020 (see Appendix 3). Although the proposal
for an HCV restriction specifically relates to an area within Malton, Ward Members for Norton
East, Norton West, and Derwent Ward Members were also copied into this consultation, as
being potentially indirectly affected. The only Ward Member responses, other than from Cllrs
Duncan and Cleary (who had already been consulted in their roles as Leader and Chair of the
Council, respectively) were from Cllr Keal and Cllr Burr as set out below:
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council,
Chair of Policy and Resources,
& Ward Member – Norton East
The Leader of Council was consulted on 25 March 2020 and approved the draft
consultation response prepared by Officers. Further consultation with the Leader took
place on 1 April 2020 and 2 April 2020.
Name of consultee

(iii) The consultation response is urgently required in order for RDC to reply to NYCC’s
deadline. The content of this response should reflect the unanimous view of the Policy and
Resources Committee as stated in Appendix 1.
(ii) The motion, proposed by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Mason, should
stand referred for consideration to the next meeting of Full Council, unless they are
content to accept the amendment recommended by Policy & Resources Committee. It is
vital that the motion is debated in line with the correct democratic procedure.
Date consultation completed
25-03-20; 01-04-20; 02-04-20

Name of consultee

Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
& Ward Member – Derwent Ward

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 43

The Chair of Council was consulted on 25 March 2020 and supported the
recommendation from Policy and Resources Committee given that there is cross-party
support for this. The Chairman suggested that the word ‘strongly’ be added into the
consultation response so that it would read ‘The Council strongly considers...’
Date consultation completed

25-03-20

Cllr Keal – Proposer of Motion
& Ward Member – Norton West
Cllr Keal has advised that she is broadly happy with the consultation reports, however she
is concerned that having restrictions on Highfield Road only in place during school hours
will be extremely difficult to police, with HGV drivers possibly pleading ignorance and
using the route anyway, unless CCTV can be utilised to monitor the situation. She also
advised that she does not think the letter makes clear that the motion is calling for a
smaller roundabout at the Huttons Ambo junction, rather than the bigger proposal that
NYCC has been talking about for some time. She has requested that this point be made
clearer in the response.
Name of consultee

Date consultation completed

27-03-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Lindsay Burr – Ward Member - Malton
Cllr Burr advises that the County and District Councils must actively work together to draw
up a plan in readiness for the LEP in case funding is made available. She states that “we
desperately need a small roundabout at the bottom of Musley Bank and we need slip
roads from the B1257 onto the A64 to take lorries from the North of Ryedale out of the
town”. She and Cllr Thackray have been in talks with Ian Mosely Hauliers and they have
consulted with other hauliers and they are all in agreement with this solution.
Date consultation completed

8.0

27-03-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are agreed.
on consultation
The consultation is to be responded to in line with the
recommendation at Policy and Resources Committee on 19
March 2020. The motion will be considered at the next
meeting of Full Council.
Date
03-04-20

Page 44

Appendix 1

Amended Motion to Council as recommended by P&R (19/03/20):

Part 1 - In relation to A64 junctions:
The Council welcomes the commitment from North Yorkshire County Council to
undertake work to develop proposals for a junction that allows for all-direction
movements between York Road and the A64, near the western end of the Malton
Bypass. It is understood that the intention is to develop proposals to a stage
whereby bids for funding the junction could be submitted at short notice.
Further, officers will continue discussions with colleagues at North Yorkshire
County Council with the aim of identifying options and developing proposals for
a junction or slip roads between Broughton Road and the A64.”
Part 2 - In relation to proposed ban on heavy vehicles:
The Council considers that the only way to solve the issues of HCVs within
Malton and Norton is to upgrade the infrastructure by developing additional
access points onto and off the A64 (for example in the vicinity of Musley Bank
and Broughton Road) in order to minimise the need for through-traffic.

Page 45

Appendix 2

Draft Response to Consultation:

PROPOSED EXPERIMENTAL PART-TIME PROHIBITION OF HEAVY COMMERCIAL
VEHICLES, HIGHFIELD ROAD, MALTON

Thank you for consulting Ryedale District Council on the above matter. This has now been
considered by the Council’s Policy and Resources Committee and the Council’s official
response is set out below.
As a consequence of a number of factors (including the constrained historic road network,
traffic congestion, air quality issues and the declaration of Malton Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA), the limited access points onto and off the A64 and the need to access Showfield
Lane industrial estate) there are no quick or easy solutions to concerns relating to heavy
vehicles passing through residential areas and past the primary schools on Highfield Road.
However, introducing additional HCV restrictions, such as on HCVs using Highfield Road, will
not solve the underlying problem. It is likely to displace traffic onto other routes, exacerbating
existing issues within the AQMA (with additional HCVs queueing to pass through Butcher
Corner) and creating new issues elsewhere (with HCVs following inappropriate alternative
routes, such as Peasey Hills Road, Princess Road, Wentworth Street or Greengate).
The part-time nature of the proposed experimental prohibition may go some way to mitigating
displacement, however, it remains unclear what the impact of such displacement might be. If
North Yorkshire County Council decide to introduce the proposed experimental part-time
restriction on HCVs, the Council suggests that very careful consideration be given to how
these impacts could be minimised, including:




avoiding the restriction being in place when schools are closed;
careful consideration of signage to avoid displacement onto inappropriate alternative
routes;
working with affected businesses and their suppliers to encourage their HCV drivers
to avoid the town centre during the affected times, wherever possible.

The Council strongly considers that the only way to solve the issues of HCVs within the town
is to develop additional access points onto and off the A64 (for example in the vicinity of Musley
Bank and Broughton Road) in order to minimise the need for such through-traffic. Ryedale
District Council is fully supportive of the work being undertaken by North Yorkshire County
Council to consider such proposals.

Page 46

Appendix 3
Ward Member Consultation email:
From: Howard Wallis
Sent: 27 March 2020 16:59
To: Cllr Paul Andrews <cllr.paul.andrews@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Lindsay Burr
<cllr.lindsay.burr@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Angela Raine <cllr.angela.raine@ryedale.gov.uk>
Cc: ccg.people <ccg.people@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Michael Cleary
<cllr.michael.cleary@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Susan Graham
<cllr.susan.graham@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Keane Duncan
<cllr.keane.duncan@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr Ray King <cllr.ray.king@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr
Dinah Keal <cllr.dinah.keal@ryedale.gov.uk>; Cllr John Mackenzie
<cllr.john.mackenzie@ryedale.gov.uk>
Subject: Consultation Response - Proposed Part-Time HCV Restriction on Highfield Rd,
Malton
Importance: High
Dear Councillors
Please see attached a draft letter in response to a County Council consultation on a proposed
experimental Heavy Commercial Vehicles ban on Highfield Road, Malton (copy also
attached). This matter was discussed at Policy and Resources Committee on 19th March and
it was the clear view of the Committee that the response should express that the only way of
solving the HCV issues is by delivering improved infrastructure on the A64. The draft letter
therefore reflects this position.
The Council needs to respond to this consultation by 3rd April 2020.
Although the proposal specifically relates to a proposed restriction in Malton, I have also
copied in both Norton and Derwent Ward Members as being potentially indirectly affected.
If you have any comments please could you respond by 12:00 midday on Monday 30th
March to the following email address:
ccg.people@ryedale.gov.uk
Kind regards
Howard

Regards
Howard Wallis
Senior Economy & Infrastructure Officer
NB – I am currently working away from the office so the best way to contact me is via email
T: 01653 600666 ext 43274
E: howard.wallis@ryedale.gov.uk | www.ryedale.gov.uk
Ryedale District Council | Ryedale House | Malton | North Yorkshire | YO17 7HH
Connect with the Council: Twitter | YouTube | Facebook | Flickr

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

SUSPENSION OF CAR
ACROSS THE DISTRICT

PARKING

CHARGES

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PROGRAMME
DIRECTOR,
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS –
PHILLIP SPURR

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To consider suspending car parking charging across all RDC car parks for the duration
of the Covid-19 public health emergency.

1.2

Scarborough Borough Council who provide a parking enforcement service and cover
all RDC car parks, has provided the following key information:

1.3

Following an announcement by Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government Robert Jenrick, local councils in England are to provide free car parking
for NHS staff and social care workers during the coronavirus outbreak.

1.4

On 26 March 2020 SBC informed all Local Authorities they provide a parking
enforcement service to, they would cease car parking charges for NHS key workers in
line with Government guidance. These NHS key workers will be encouraged to display
appropriate credentials in their windscreen.

1.5

A formal request to suspend car parking charges for three months has also been made
by the National Probation Service in the North East to allow key workers within the
organisation to reduce public transport use and be able to access parking where
required, thus reducing the risk of exposure to the virus.

1.6

Further to the suspension of car parking charges for NHS and social care workers,
additional Government guidance is expected in the coming days regarding the
suspension of all car parking charges as the virus is thought to be able to survive for
up to 72 hours on the plastic and metal of the payment machines.

1.7

Car parking charges have also been suspended by Hambleton District Council and
Scarborough Borough Council across all of their respective car parks.

1.8

It should be noted that whilst charges would be suspended, the car parks will remain
open for use. For the majority of car parks we have no way of closing them. This is
also not proposed as it would be to the detriment of key workers who may still need to
use them. Any use which does not conform to government guidance to stay at home
unless absolutely necessary, or social distancing / social isolation requirements, will
be a matter for police action.

1.9

The available Enforcement Officer for Ryedale will continue to patrol the area to identify
any significant issues and ensuring there are no instances of dangerous of obstructive

Page 49

parking in both on-street and off-street locations.
1.10

Hambleton District Council and Scarborough Borough Council have already
suspended all car parking charges across the district, and York City Council are
offering free car parking across the city for NHS and social care workers, as well as
those who work in supermarkets and food outlets.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

All car parking charges be suspended until further notice for the safety of
members of the public, RDC contractors, and in order to provide essential
parking facilities for key workers and volunteers.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The suspension of all car parking charges is likely to come into force in the coming
days. As things currently stand, the majority of people are not permitted to travel for
leisure or recreation purposes, and the car parks are therefore expected to see very
little use. A much reduced level of income is therefore expected during this period.

3.2

An offer has currently been made from SBC for the Enforcement Officer currently
covering Ryedale to cover the machines and add a notice to them stating parking
charges have been suspended. This would mean an ask would not need to be made
of the Streetscene team or any other RDC department at a later date, adding additional
pressure and demand. As RDC does not have covers for its machines like SBC, the
team at SBC have recommended heavy duty refuse sacks to cover them with an official
RDC notice attached to each stating the machine is not currently in use.

3.3

Enforcement capacity is currently significantly down on normal levels (currently only
one officer covering Ryedale). This means activity has been scaled back to only cover
instances of dangerous parking. Given this situation and the expected lower levels of
income expected during this period, the need for collection services will also be
reduced.

3.5

These actions will result in a reduction in income generated to RDC based on previous
years income and ticket sales figures, although given the current government guideline
to stay at home and not under-take non-essential travel, this is considered to be
minimal given the current situation.

3.6

There will likely be a number of volunteers out doing work for us in the community and
free use of the car parks will be essential for them. A total suspension of car parking
charges would remove additional work for us to produce car parking passes.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The following risks have been identified:
•
Additional pressure on limited RDC resources and capacity if the covering of
car parking machines is postponed and then required at a later date.
•
Currently cash collection from the machine is still scheduled to take place – this
presents a health and safety risk to [redacted], the company contracted to
provide this service to us.
•
Asking members of the public to interact with a machine which may put them

Page 50

at greater risk of catching the virus through contact with the plastics and metal
of the machine is a public health risk which cannot be overlooked.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
No additional budget is required to implement the proposed action. The Finance
team have provided figures which suggest that there is projected to be a general
downturn in income generated from car parking fees of around £70-80k per month.
It should be noted that even without suspending car parking charges, due to the
lockdown situation and social distancing / isolation, revenue generated will be
significantly decreased.
•
RDC currently pay a management fee of approx. £27,000 per annum to SBC to
deliver an Enforcement service in Ryedale. Across the course of the year the
income generated through Parking Charge Notice’s (PCN) generally offsets this
charge making the service cost neutral. SBC have confirmed that no changes to
the management fee are proposed as charges are determined at the year end and
are dependent on the percentage of visits made between on and off street
locations.
b)

Legal
Government guidance is that where caravan sites are not places of primary
residence, these are to be closed; and that Local Authorities must provide free car
parking to NHS and social care key workers. RDC must comply with this guidance.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None identified

Page 51

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Requires consultation with the Leader as it is varying fees and charges agreed by Members.
The Chair of Council has been informed but there is no need for consultation as this is a
matter of substance and not of process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required in order to protect public health. But the suspension of charging
should not be indefinite, it should be reviewed when the government relaxes any or all of
its restrictions. Enforcement of dangerous parking situations should continue.
Date consultation completed
02-04-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is agreed.
on consultation
Date
03-04-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 52

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

THE HEALTH PROTECTION (CORONAVIRUS,
RESTRICTIONS) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2020 –
OFFICER AUTHORISATION

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

Arrangements need to be made to authorise Officers of Ryedale District Council to
enforce The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020
because current authorisations under the Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984
does not cover CoVid-19.

1.2

Under the Council’s Officer Scheme of Delegation and the above Regulations there is
a requirement to designate relevant officers to ensure they are specifically authorised
to act under these Regulations.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

Authorisation is granted to designate the following officers to enforce The
Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) Regulations 2020:
a.
Robert Robinson
b.
Matthew Pawson
c.
Keith White
d.
Mark Heaton
e.
Serena Williams

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The current authorisations under the Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984 do
not cover powers under the new regulations and therefore specific designations of the
above officers are required in order for the officers to go about their duties to close
relevant premises as defined in the regulations and to make sure they remain closed
during the emergency period.

3.2

Without providing specific designations, the officers cannot use the powers contained
in the regulations. Powers to:

•
•

Issue a Prohibition Notice
Issue a Fixed Penalty Notice

Page 53

3.3

The Head of Customer Services has been consulted and is in agreement that the five
officers named above provides sufficient resource and resilience to undertake this
work.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk is minimal, the significant risk here is that if the authorisation is not granted
then the Officers named above cannot enforce the new Regulations.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no financial implications
b)

Legal
The appropriate power has been granted under the new legislation

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
All 5 officers should be given the same powers.

Page 54

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

As this decision requires amendments to the Constitution, both the delegated powers listed
under the Policy and Resources Committee Terms of Reference and the Officer Scheme of
Delegation, which would normally have been considered by Full Council, consultation is
required with the Leader. The Chair of Council has been informed but there is no need for
consultation as this is a matter of substance and not of process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required to allow officers to ensure compliance with regulations aimed at
protecting public health. A common-sense approach should be taken, with enforcement
action as a very last resort.
Date consultation completed

8.0

07-04-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is agreed.
on consultation
Date
07-04-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

106 LEGAL AGREEMENT. MICKLE HILL EXTRACARE SCHEME, PICKERING

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR. PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is needed on whether the District Council will agree to a request from North
Yorkshire County Council to temporarily suspend clauses in a Section 106 legal
agreement which restrict the occupancy of affordable unit’s extra-care units on the site.
The clauses currently restrict occupancy of these units to individuals from a local
Pickering geography, and a wider Ryedale geography if necessary.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

It is agreed not to enforce against legal clauses which restrict the occupancy of
affordable units on the extra-care site at Pickering as a temporary measure for
a three month period.

(ii)

The District Council consider a further extension to this time period following
an update from NYCC after 3 months, and a rolling review takes place every 3
months.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

North Yorkshire County Council (Health and Adult Services) has formally asked the
District Council to temporarily suspend clauses in legal agreements which cover the
geographic allocation of units within extra-care schemes in the District. There are three
extra-care facilities in Ryedale. Only the Mickle Hill retirement complex at Pickering is
the subject of legal agreement that this Authority is party to. One site falls within the
National Park in Helmsley and the other is a former NYCC care home in Norton and is
not subject to a legal agreement.

3.2

The request has also been made to other District Councils across North Yorkshire. It
has been made to provide NYCC and the NHS with the flexibility needed to most
effectively manage extra-care capacity that is available in the short-term, whilst
maintaining strict infection control and risk management.

3.3

If suspended, NYCC is proposing that:
“Allocations panels shall allocate available units of affordable housing on a licence to

Page 57

occupy basis to any person who is a permanent resident of North Yorkshire (as defined
by their current permanent address)”.
3.4

To safeguard the long term nature of extra- care in North Yorkshire, NYCC has stated
that the following conditions would be in force alongside changes to S.106
arrangements:
•
•

The suspension would be in place for a period of 3 months with rolling review
thereafter
The new allocations criteria will only apply to people in need of short-term care
and support as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. No-one will be granted
permanent status within a scheme as a result of this change

3.5

NYCC has also confirmed that no existing residents will be moved from the site and
that the proposed arrangements will only relate to vacancies which arise.

3.6

Under the normal course of events any change to a legal agreement, even as a
temporary measure, would be dealt with through a formal deed of variation to the
agreement. This would need to be prepared and agreed by all of the signatories to the
original agreement. This is a process which will take time and which would be frustrated
by the current restrictions on movement.

3.7

It is considered that there is a need to act swiftly and positively to the County Council’s
request. Without a formal variation to the legal agreement the clauses cannot be
suspended. However, the District Council can agree not to enforce against any breach
of the occupancy clauses. This should provide NYCC with the reassurance that is
needed in order to best utilise available extra-care resources in the current emergency.

3.8

The County Council will need to agree this approach with the site operators. It is
anticipated that the latter will also require reassurance that the Planning Authority will
not enforce against non- compliance with the legal agreement. If the decision is agreed,
it is considered that the District Council will write to the site operator to confirm this.

3.9

The County Council has requested a suspension for a three month period and for this
to be the subject of a rolling review. It is considered that the District Council’s position
should be confirmed for a three month period and reviewed after that time in the light
of NYCC’s proposed rolling review.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with the recommendation.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
NYCC has confirmed that all costs associated with the short-term use of extracare as a result of the COVID-19 will be funded through national contingency
arrangements and not through the District’s current housing benefit system.
b)

Legal
The request and proposed response has been discussed and agreed with the
solicitor. The legal issues are addressed in the main body of the pro-forma.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate

Page 58

Change, Crime & Disorder)
No implications.

Page 59

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Planning Committee granted planning permission, subject to a legal agreement which
covered these occupancy restrictions. Consultation has therefore taken place with the Chair
of Planning Committee. Her view is that the recommendations should be supported for a 3
month period or even a 6 month period in the current circumstances. She also suggested
that there should be consultation with the local ward members as there had been some
opposition at the time of the original decision (although the local ward members were
different at that time).
As the recommendation seeks to vary an occupancy restriction which benefitted Pickering
residents, consultation with local ward members is supported.
Consultation is also required with the Leader.
Note – the Chair of Planning Committee declared a personal non-pecuniary but not
prejudicial interest as a member of NYCC and a member of its planning committee.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Cllr Goodrick – Chair of the Planning
Committee
Planning Committee granted planning permission, subject to a legal agreement which
covered these occupancy restrictions. Consultation has therefore taken place with the
Chair of Planning Committee. Her view is that the recommendations should be supported
for a 3 month period or even a 6 month period in the current circumstances. She also
suggested that there should be consultation with the local ward members as there had
been some opposition at the time of the original decision (although the local ward
members were different at that time).
Name of consultee

Note – the Chair of Planning Committee declared a personal non-pecuniary but not
prejudicial interest as a member of NYCC and a member of its planning committee.
Date consultation completed
08-04-20

Name of consultee

Comments collated by Cllr Mike Potter in
consultation with Cllrs Joy Andrews, Clive
Wass and Carrie Brackstone

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 60

Having consulted with the other three Pickering ward councillors, we are broadly in
agreement with the request from NYCC, but only with the following conditions:
1.

2.
3.

It is agreed not to enforce against legal clauses which restrict the occupancy
of affordable units on the extra-care site at Pickering as a temporary measure
for a six month period, with a specified end date, with provision for a review
after 3 months.
NYCC will have the right to request a 3 month extension and rolling reviews
every 3 months thereafter, but each with a specified end date.
For the safety of existing residents, staff and carers, any person moved onto
this site as part of this agreement, whether temporary resident or carers, must
be tested for Covid-19 prior to movement.

It appears that the site developer has not delivered the plans that Methodist Homes
submitted for this retirement village (the approval of which contravened RDC’s LPS) and
that many of the units remain empty, including the affordable ones. This is clearly due to
the very expensive purchase, management and care package costs. We therefore fully
expect NYCC to robustly negotiate a fair price for use of this facility to the taxpayer, based
on the existing low level of demand. We also recommend that NYCC are absolutely clear
about precisely who is providing care services, to what level and at what cost to
whom. There should be a clear legal contract agreed prior to any referrals.
We have not been impressed to learn that the allegedly ‘affordable’ 2 bedroom units, which
remain empty after several years, are now for sale at £220,000, plus statutory fees of around
£5,000 pa.
Date consultation completed

09-04-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is urgently required to deal with North Yorkshire’s response to the Covid-19
emergency. The Chief Executive should give regard to the comments made by Pickering
ward members about time limitations.
Date consultation completed

8.0

13-04-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation not to enforce against legal clauses
on consultation
which restrict the occupancy of affordable units on the extracare site at Pickering as a temporary measure is agreed.
Following consultation, this agreement is made for a six
month period ending on the 15 October 2020. After this, the
District Council may consider a further extension to this date
following an update from NYCC after 3 months (June 2020).
A subsequent 3 month rolling review will be in place
thereafter if required. In confirming its response, the District
Council will request that NYCC ensure that any necessary
COVID testing is undertaken prior to the movement of people
into the extra care site. Other feedback will also be shared
with NYCC for their consideration.
Date
16-04-20

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

NYCC
CONSULTATION:
CONTRIBUTIONS FOR EDUCATION

DEVELOPER

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIP

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To consider North Yorkshire County Council’s (NYCC) proposed new policy for
developer contributions for education and to agree Ryedale District Council’s
response.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The Council’s response to the consultation is as follows:

“Ryedale District Council is committed to ensuring that the impact of new development
on infrastructure capacity is addressed and to securing developer contributions for this
purpose. However, the proposed policy appears to be well advanced and in this
respect, it is very disappointing that the implications of the proposed approach have
not been discussed at an earlier stage. As drafted and as it stands, the approach would
not be economically viable in Ryedale.
Ryedale District Council operates the Community Infrastructure Levy. Whilst the
District Council is entirely aware that Section 106 pooling restrictions have been lifted
and that Section 106 and CIL can both be used to fund infrastructure, CIL charges in
Ryedale are established. The CIL charges have been independently examined. They
have been set at a level which ensures that plan-compliant affordable housing
contributions can also be secured from development sites and that development
remains economically viable. The CIL charge is a mandatory charge. Section 106
agreements are secured by negotiation. If NYCC’s policy is to seek education
contributions through the use of Section 106 agreements, the contribution will directly
compete with the ability of development sites to deliver affordable housing. This is not
acceptable to this Authority. In this Council’s experience, sites will not be economically
viable if education contributions are sought in addition to affordable housing
contributions and mandatory CIL charges. The District Council has no plans to cease
the operation of CIL in Ryedale and it will be several years before the charge is
reconsidered/ revised. The proposed approach will provide less certainty that
necessary school places could be funded.
Against this context it is imperative that the County Council reconsider this
matter – particularly in areas of the County which operate the CIL.
The District Council would be happy to discuss how CIL receipts can be used to

Page 63

address the educational requirements arising from levels of planned growth and to use
the new Infrastructure Funding Statements to confirm this. The District Council
recognise that the County Council does need a greater level of certainty over the use
of CIL contributions. The IFS’s provide the vehicle for achieving this and will also help
to ensure that (CIL) contributions can be prioritised ‘holistically’ to reflect other
infrastructure requirements which relate to highways requirements for example, as well
as education infrastructure.
The District Council has progressed its development plan and the allocation of sites for
new development on the basis of the use of CIL. The infrastructure required as a result
of planned levels of growth has been agreed with the County Council, including school
improvements. Contributions secured to date have helped to secure extensions to
Malton, Pickering and Norton Primary Schools. It would be helpful to understand if
requirements have changed. The County Council is aware that the Ryedale will secure
land at Norton for a new primary school and that the CIL will be used to progress the
delivery of a new school. The District Council would appreciate urgent confirmation
that the County Council remain committed to the delivery of this school and an
indication of the financial contribution required for the new primary school at Beverley
Road Norton, based on the anticipated number of new homes proposed for the site.
Under the proposed method, the level of contribution would be in the region of
£2,794.500.00. The District Council would be grateful if the County Council could
confirm that this is now the level of contribution that is required for this scheme.”

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Developer contributions are an important way in which to ensure that the impact of
growth in the District can be mitigated. Contributions are integral to the implementation
of the Development Plan and Council Plan objectives.

3.2

NYCC is consulting on their proposed approach between February 2020 and 1 April
2020. All responses received by this date were due be considered by the County
Council’s Executive on 21 April. In view of the current COVID emergency, NYCC has
extended the consultation period to 1 May 2020 and NYCC’s executive will consider
the proposed approach at its meeting on 19 May 2020. It is important that the District
Council’s views on the proposed approach are considered by the County Council.

3.3

Developer contributions for infrastructure improvements can be sought from
developers in order to mitigate the impact of development. They are secured in three
main ways through: ‘Section 106’ legal agreements; the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) and via Section 278 Highway Agreements. Section 106 agreements and CIL are
the main ways in which a range of infrastructure improvements are funded. Affordable
housing contributions are always secured by Section 106 agreements.

3.4

Section 106 agreements are legal agreements which are entered into as part of the
grant of planning permission. The contribution must be directly related to the
development proposed. This generally means that money is spent in the area close to
where the development is located. The level of contribution is negotiated and the legal
agreement is used to specify the way in which contributions are to be used. Section
106 agreements will include clauses to ensure that money is returned to a developer if
it is unspent or spent in a way which is not in accordance with the legal agreement.
Section 106 contributions can only be sought if three tests are met. These are: that
they are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; directly
related to the development and, fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

Page 64

3.5

The CIL is a charge which is levied on new development. If CIL is in operation in an
area it is a mandatory charge and is non-negotiable. The CIL can be used to fund
infrastructure outside of the local area in which the money is raised. It can only be
charged in an area if the statutory process for bringing the charge into effect has been
followed. The charge should also be consistent with and support the implementation
of an up to date development plan.

3.6

National policy makes it clear that Local Planning Authorities should ensure that the
combined total impact of requests for developer contributions do not undermine the
deliverability of planned development. Viability assessment is integral to the ability to
use CIL and the plan-making process.

3.7

Up until September 2019, restrictions limited the extent to which Section 106
contributions and CIL could operate together. In essence, if CIL was in place in an
area, Section 106 contributions could not be sought to fund the infrastructure listed on
a CIL ‘Regulation 123’ list –a situation commonly referred to as ‘double dipping’. To
encourage the use of CIL, central government imposed restrictions on the pooling of
Section 106 contributions.

3.8

Recent changes to the legislation have amended this situation. Pooling restrictions
have been lifted and both forms of contribution can be used to fund infrastructure,
providing the use of Section 106 agreements meet the three tests referred to above
and that CIL receipts are spent on the infrastructure needed to support development
in a charging authority’s area.

3.9

The changes have removed the Regulation 123 list. This is the list of infrastructure to
be funded by CIL. The Regulation 123 list is to be replaced by Infrastructure Funding
Statements. (IFS’s) Authorities are required to set out in an IFS the infrastructure that
they intend to fund and to detail the different sources of funding available to fund
infrastructure requirements. National guidance makes it clear that in two tier areas, CIL
charging authorities and contribution receiving authorities should work closely and
collaboratively on the preparation of IFS’s.

3.10

Ryedale adopted its CIL charging schedule in March 2016. The accompanying
Regulation 123 list lists a broad range of infrastructure types that CIL will contribute to.
This reflects the infrastructure requirements required to support the planned growth
committed through the development plan. To date, the Council has not prioritised CIL
expenditure against specific infrastructure projects. Notwithstanding this, the
development plan secures land for the provision of a new primary school in Norton
which will also require CIL funding to deliver.

NYCC – Proposed Policy
3.11

In summary, NYCC is proposing to request Section 106 contributions for education
across the County, including those areas that have CIL in operation. If insufficient
capacity exists to accommodate proposed development, NYCC propose to:





Seek contributions of £15,766 per primary school place and £21,601 per
secondary school place for existing school expansions (or £18,630 and
£22,764 for a secondary school where a new school is required). This will be
calculated based on a pupil yield per house of 0.25 for primary education and
0.13 for secondary education
Seek primary education contributions from sites of 10 dwellings* or more and
for secondary education contributions from sites of 25 dwellings* or more
(*dwellings of two or more bedrooms)
£63,064 for special educational needs and disabilities place provision,
calculated at yield of 0.01 (place) per dwelling on sites of 100 houses or more

Page 65



£15,766 for early years provision based on a yield of 0.08 (place) per dwelling
on sites of 100 houses or more

3.12

Historically, NYCC has had a policy of requesting developer contributions from sites
which will generate a requirement for additional school places. These have been
calculated using standard costs per school place and based on yield assumptions and
site thresholds. The proposed policy updates costs; establishes a standard site
threshold for each education type and seeks contributions towards Early Years and
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities provision as well as for Primary and
Secondary provision. In view of historic restrictions on ‘double dipping’, Section 106
Developer contributions for education have not been sought in areas in North Yorkshire
that have adopted a CIL charging schedule. In these areas CIL has been justified on
the basis that it will be used to address the education requirements arising from
planned levels of growth.

3.13

The County Council has produced its new policy following the lifting of S106 pooling
restrictions and confirmation that both Section 106 and CIL can be used to find
infrastructure. It is unclear however, if the implications of the new policy are fully
understood by the County Council and it is unfortunate that these have not been
discussed in any detail with district Local Planning Authorities prior to consultation on
the proposed detail and operation of the policy.

3.14

Ryedale currently uses the CIL and at present there are no plans to cease its use. In
accordance with the legislation, the CIL charges in Ryedale were set on the basis that
they represented an appropriate balance between the funding of infrastructure and
affordable housing provision and the effect on the viability of development across the
District.

3.15

Irrespective of whether the opportunity now exists to use CIL and Section 106
agreements to fund infrastructure, CIL is a mandatory charge in Ryedale. Therefore, if
contributions are to be sought for education provision from Section 106 agreements
these will directly compete with the ability to achieve plan-compliant levels of affordable
housing contributions from sites. The delivery of affordable housing to meet housing
need is a council priority. Assuming that this Council will look to secure compliance
with its affordable housing policy, it is highly likely therefore that the education
contributions sought will not be economically viable and that they will be unachievable.

3.16

Developers in Ryedale are expecting the CIL charge to address off-site infrastructure
requirements. This is the basis on which the development plan has been prepared and
sites selected and justified. It is not considered to be reasonable to impose further
requirements at this stage.

3.17

The County Council will need to reconsider its proposed policy in those areas of the
County that apply the CIL. The approach to making necessary improvements to
education provision through CIL funding can then be the subject of joint Infrastructure
Funding Statements that both parties can agree. This would provide the upper tier
authority with the certainty that contributions will be forthcoming to fund necessary
infrastructure. Such a process would also enable the County Council to confirm its
priorities for infrastructure holistically across its service areas. (Including other
infrastructure such as highway improvements.)

3.18

On a more detailed point, the Ryedale Plan and requirements for a new primary school
at Norton have progressed on the basis that CIL contributions would be used to fund
this school. In view of the current consultation, it is considered that the County Council
should confirm their position in respect of this project at the earliest opportunity. A
planning application for the site in Norton is expected imminently.

Page 66

3.19

It would be helpful if the County Council could confirm the contribution that would be
required for this project. Under the proposed Section 106 calculation the contribution
required towards new primary school provision is £18,630 per required place.
Assuming no current capacity in the local primary school and that 600 new homes are
to be built on the site, this would equate to a requirement for 150 new places and a
total contribution of £2,794,500. This figure is less than costs that have been previously
indicated. In order to support the smooth progression of the planning application and
to reassure the local community that the school will be delivered, it is important that
the District Council seeks clarification that NYCC remain committed to the delivery of
the school and that the required level of funding is clarified.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with the recommendation. It is considered
that the proposed policy is not appropriate in areas that currently charge CIL and will
risk making development proposals unviable. In such circumstances the District
Council as decision maker will need to ensure that the developer contributions sought
do not make development unviable. This is likely to mean that the contributions sought
by the County Council and the form in which they are sought will not be achievable.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The mechanism for securing developer contributions has implications for the
economic viability of development sites
b)

Legal
None Identified

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Developer contributions are integral to the delivery of the development plan

Page 67

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

As planning policy falls within the remit of P&R, the only required consultation is with the
Leader. It is suggested that the Chair of Planning Committee be informed of the decision
as Planning Committee has to apply planning policy.
Although some specific examples are cited in the proposed response to the consultation,
the policy affects all areas of the District, so no consultation with local ward members is
required.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required to meet the deadline set by NYCC. It asks for NYCC to enter into
meaningful discussions with RDC about developer contributions, which should hopefully
be of benefit to both authorities into the future.
Date consultation completed
17-04-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is agreed.
on consultation
Date
17-04-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 68

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

GARY HOUSDEN. HEAD OF PLANNING AND
REGULATORY SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To determine four planning applications following the virtual consultation meeting of
the members of the planning committee held on the 5 May 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Item 1. Application ref: 20/00128/MFUL – Land off Butterwick Road, Butterwick.
Approval subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Legal Agreement to
secure the ecological monitoring of the site; conditions listed in the officer report
and further conditions as required by the Local Lead Flood Authority.
Item 2. Application ref: 20/00069/HOUSE – 6 Herongate, Pickering. Approval
subject to conditions listed in the Officer report.
Item 3. Application ref: 20/00091/73A – 54 Westlands, Pickering. Approval
subject to conditions listed in the officer report
Item 4. Application ref: 20/00214/HOUSE – Broughton Lodge, Broughton
Road, Malton. Refusal for the reasons detailed in the officer report

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The process for determining those planning applications (which would otherwise be
determined by the planning committee) under Urgency Powers has been the agreed.

3.2

In order to inform the determination of applications, a virtual consultation meeting of
the members of the planning committee was held at 6.00pm on 5 May 2020. Four
applications were considered by the members of the planning committee during the
virtual meeting. The members that participated in the meeting were as follows:
Councillor P Andrews
Councillor M Cleary
Councillor C Docwra (Sub)
Councillor J Frank (Sub)
Councillor C Goodrick (Chair)
Councillor S Graham
Councillor S Mason
Councillor M Potter
Councillor A Riby
Councillor J Windress

Page 69

3.3

In advance of the consultation meeting, hard copies of officer reports covering each
item, site photographs and update papers were distributed to every councillor attending
the meeting. All applicants and third parties were also informed of the decision making
process under urgency powers in advance of the virtual meeting and were asked to
submit any further representations before 11.00 am on the 5 May 2020 .

3.4

Further written representations were received in relation to the following items




Item 1. A written statement from the youngest son of the applicant
Item 3. A written statement from the applicant and four written representations from
three third parties
Item 4. A written statement from the applicant and a written statement from Councillor
L Burr (Ward Member)

3.5

The Officer reports, site photographs and the further written representations of
applicants and third parties are available on the Council’s planning portal.

3.7

At the start of the meeting the chair confirmed the purpose of the meeting, meeting
etiquette and her intention that the meeting would be conducted in a way that would
closely mirror the consideration of applications at formal meetings of the planning
committee. For each application this included: a short presentation by officers;
representations from applicants and third parties to be read out in full (in lieu of public
speaking); questions to officers; debate, followed by a vote for each item.

3.8

The outcome of the consultation meeting, which is to be followed by the Chief
Executive in determining the applications is as follows:

Officer
Recommendation

Moved
Seconded
Vote
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Docwra
Cllr Frank
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Mason
Cllr Potter
Cllr Riby
Cllr Windress

Item 1
20/00128/MFUL
Approval subject
to
the
prior
completion of a
Section 106 Legal
Agreement
to
secure
the
ecological
monitoring of the
site;
conditions
listed in the officer
report and further
conditions
as
required by the
Local Lead Flood
Authority
Approve
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Andrews

Item 2
20/00069/HOUSE
Approval subject
to conditions listed
in the officer report

Item 3
20/00091/73A
Approval
subject
to
conditions listed
in the officer
report

Item 4
20/00214/HOUSE
Refusal for the
reasons detailed in
the officer report

Approve
Cllr Potter
Cllr Andrews

Approve
Cllr Potter
Cllr Windress

Approve
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Frank

For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
10 For approval
Unanimous

For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
10 For approval
Unanimous

For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
10 For approval
Unanimous

For
Against
Against
For
Against
Against
Against
Against
Against
Against
2 For approval
8Against
approval

Page 70

3.9

The members of the meeting unanimously voted to approve Items 1, 2 and 3, in line
with the officer recommendation. A move to approve Item 4 against officer
recommendation was defeated.

3.10

Two of the written representations received from third parties expressed concern that
the taking of decisions by an unelected official under urgency powers is undemocratic.
In response, the Council has carefully followed its own constitution in enacting and
operating within its urgency powers. The process for the determination of planning
applications has been given careful consideration. The planning committee
consultation meeting has been established to ensure that elected members/ members
of the planning committee are able to fully consider applications and to provide a view
to the Chief Executive on whether an application should be approved, refused or
deferred. The Council’s agreed process whilst operating under urgency powers is that
the Chief Executive will make decisions on applications which will follow the view of
the planning consultation meeting. The process also ensures that third parties and
applicants have the right to make further representations to elected members before
decisions are made.

3.11

It is considered that the process by which applications are determined in Ryedale under
emergency powers ensures that democracy is not undermined, that decisions are
made in a transparent way and that no person is disadvantaged by not being able to
make their views known to elected members.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with the recommendations. The
recommendations are made taking into account planning decision making principles,
including the policies of the development plan and material planning considerations.
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Not applicable
b)

Legal
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other specific implications associated with the recommendations.

Supporting documents to planning applications are available on the Council’s planning
portal. Please note that any documents not currently accessible online due to the covid-19
public health emergency will be made available as soon as possible.
Relevant documents for the applications considered in this decision notice are as follows:
Item 1: 20/00128/MFUL. Officer Report. Written statement by Henry Mason on behalf of the
applicant
Item 2: 20/00069/HOUSE. Officer Report

Page 71

Item 3: 20/00091/73A. Officer Report. Written statement by the applicant (Mr Catterall). X 4
Third party written representations (Mr Stirzaker; J Verrill ( x2); C & A Jennison
Item 4: 20/00214/HOUSE. Officer Report. Written statement by the applicant (Mrs
Hopkinson) . Written statement of Councillor Lindsay Burr
Site Photographs

Page 72

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation has been undertaken with the Planning Committee Chair and its members, as
agreed under the approved process for dealing with planning applications under urgency
powers, which would normally have gone to Committee. Consultation is now required with
the Leader.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is agreed as the decisions reflect the outcome of the consultation planning meeting.

Date consultation completed

8.0

07-05-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are agreed.
on consultation
Date
07-05-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

LOCAL AUTHORITY
SCHEME

DISCRETIONARY

GRANT

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP
SPURR,
PROGRAMME
DIRECTOR,
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To outline the process and gain agreement for the criteria for the distribution of funds
under the Local Authority Discretionary Grants Scheme (DGS) so that it can be
launched on 8 June 2020. £1,125,500 of funding has been allocated to Ryedale.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the process outlined at paragraph 3.2 is noted.

2.2

That the proposed eligibility criteria, based upon Government guidance, (as set out in
the appended Discretionary Business Grant Scheme policy), is approved:
“Any business which meets all four of the following criteria, with the exception of mobile
businesses due to their lack of fixed commercial property and relatively low overheads,
will be eligible”:
 Small and micro businesses, as defined in Section 33 Part 2 of the Small
Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 2015 and the Companies Act 2006.
 Businesses with fixed commercial property related costs. Fixed property related
costs are considered to be outgoings which include, but are not limited to, rent or
mortgage payments, utilities, insurance and phone/broadband.
 Businesses which have suffered a significant income reduction in the period
March–May 2020 compared to the period March–May 2019.
 Businesses which occupy property, or part of a property, with a rateable value or
annual rent or annual mortgage payments below £51,000.

2.3

That the following proposed funding levels are endorsed:



2.4

Between £1,000 and up to £10,000, with the amount to be determined after the
two-week application process has closed
£25,000 in exceptional cases where, the business has high property costs
and the failure of the business would have a significant impact on the
economy of the District. (Officer discretion will be used to judge these
instances on a case by case basis.)

That the costs of administering the fund as outlined at paragraph 5.1(a) are noted.

Page 75

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

RDC will receive DGS funding from central government and is required to allocate the
funding in line with guidance to support local businesses and the Ryedale economy.

3.2

The process to allocate the funding will be as follows:









Application window of 2 weeks opening on 8th June and closing at midnight on 21st
June.
Applications will be processed and checked for eligibility as they are received during
the two week window, but no decisions or payments will be made until the window
has closed and the number of grant applications are known. Exact grant values will
then be determined and payments issued.
One payment run will be made per week, but the allocation process may take some
weeks to complete depending on the volume of applications received. It is
anticipated, however, that the end date for payments will be the end of July.
Assessment and administering of grants will involve a range of Council staff,
including Economic Development, Finance and Revenues to support the front and
back end of the process and facilitate the link into CIVICA and Northgate IT systems.
It is anticipated that the necessary work will place significant demands on these
teams. It is expected that the Economic Development Team will be fully occupied on
processing work for at least a month meaning that most of the team’s other work will
be put on hold.
At the conclusion of the assessment process each applicant will receive a letter
either confirming they have been successful and the value of the grant given, or
explaining why they have been unsuccessful.
A grant appeals process is in place and the process will be made publically available.

3.3

The intention is to assess the number of applications at the end of the application
window period and then allocate funding accordingly to maximise support for Ryedale
businesses. This approach is proposed as it is not known how many applications will
be received for the limited level of grant funding.

3.4

10% of allocated funding will be set aside in the first instance in case appeals are
received and subsequent payments need to be made. It must be stressed that all
funding will be spent and allocated as quickly as possible.

3.5

It should be noted that mobile businesses have specifically been excluded as it is
considered that they have no commercial space from which they operate and therefore
no fixed costs directly associated with property and very few overhead costs. This
does not refer to market traders, who will be eligible to apply for this funding.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant pressures to ensure these funds are distributed in a timely
manner, and in a way that will see the Council supporting as many businesses as
possible in the most appropriate way. Unfortunately, the level of funding available is
limited, and the criteria are restrictive. This means it will not be possible to support to
every business in Ryedale.

4.2

Public perception and business expectation levels are high. A clear, consistent and
fair grant administration process will be put in place. Clear communication will be
required to ensure that expectations are managed. A coordinated communications
plan to provide these messages will help to mitigate against any negative press or

Page 76

social media comments.
4.3

Businesses with a rateable value of over £51,000 have already requested assistance
through this scheme under the discretionary element. As they will not be eligible, a
separate Decision Notice will be prepared and submitted to consider what support the
council may be able to offer to such businesses. At minimum, the Decision Notice will
recommend lobbying Government to seek additional funding for this purpose.

4.4

In developing the proposals set out above, a number of North Yorkshire-wide meetings
have been attended, and a number of individual conversations with colleagues from
other North Yorkshire District and Borough Councils have taken place. Officers are
confident that RDC’s proposals strategically align with those of our neighbouring
authorities, while meeting the needs of Ryedale’s economy.

4.5

As the Revenues Service has just returned to Ryedale from Scarborough, with staffing
gaps and a workload backlog, it is necessary to secure additional expertise in this area
to ensure these grants are administered effectively and efficiently.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The Finance team have confirmed that funding for the scheme is being provided
by central government with the expectation that Local Authorities manage
allocations within the funding given. Any overspends would have to be met by
RDC. The scheme has therefore been designed to enable the Council to receive
all applications before confirming final awarded grant values to businesses. A
contingency sum of 10% is being held for appeals, though it should be stressed
that all available funds will be allocated to Ryedale businesses as quickly as
possible. There will also be no additional cost to RDC for Victoria Forms to create
the application form as this is covered under our existing subscription
arrangements with them. Other costs relate to the deployment of existing staffing,
communications, the production of the Discretionary Grant Scheme policy, and the
cost of additional Revenues expertise. These costs will be met from the £580k
received from Government for COVID management and are currently being
finalised.
b)

Legal
The State Aid Regulations grants will be considered in detail during the two week
application window to ensure we are compliant with EU Regulations.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Staffing resources from across the Council will be dedicated to administering the
grants throughout the application assessment, determination and grant offer
process. It is anticipated that this will be required for a four week period.

Page 77

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

As this is a policy matter relating to who is eligible for the grants and what level of funding
will be provided, this falls within the remit of the Policy and Resources Committee and
consultation is therefore required with the Leader of Council.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
The policy is agreed, with note taken of the officer recommendation that government
guidelines should be followed when awarding grant money. Further consideration should
be given by officers to how RDC can support those businesses outside of the criteria who
are facing problems.
Date consultation completed
08-06-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
10-06-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 78

Ryedale District Council
Discretionary Business Grant Scheme
2020/21

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 79

1

Version Control

Version

Version date

Revised by

Description

1
2
3

June 2020
June 2020
June 2020

DA
DA
DA

Scheme
Amendments AT
Amendments AT

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 80

2

Contents
1.0

Purpose of the scheme ....................................................................................................................... 4

2.0

Funding .............................................................................................................................................. 4

3.0

Eligibility criteria of the fund .............................................................................................................. 4

4.0

Definitions – Eligibility Criteria ........................................................................................................... 5

5.0

National Priority Businesses ............................................................................................................... 7

6.0

Definitions - National Priority Businesses........................................................................................... 7
Small businesses in shared offices or other flexible workspaces which do not have their own business
rates assessment ...................................................................................................................................... 7
Regular market traders who do not have their own business rates assessment ..................................... 8
Bed and Breakfast premises which pay Council Tax instead of business rates ........................................ 8
Charity properties in receipt of charitable business rates relief which would otherwise have been
eligible for Small Business Rates Relief or Rural Rate Relief ................................................................... 9

7.0

Ineligible Sectors ................................................................................................................................ 9

8.0

How will grants be provided to businesses? ...................................................................................... 9

9.0

How much grant will be payable ...................................................................................................... 10

10.0

Limitation of funds and applications ................................................................................................ 10

11.0

EU State Aid requirements ............................................................................................................... 11

12.0

Notification of decisions ................................................................................................................... 11

13.0

Reviews of decisions ......................................................................................................................... 11

14.0

Complaints ....................................................................................................................................... 12

15.0

Other scheme conditions ................................................................................................................. 12

16.0

Managing the risk of fraud ............................................................................................................... 12

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 81

3

1.0 Purpose of the scheme
1.1

The purpose of this document is to determine eligibility for a payment under the Council’s
Discretionary Business Grants Scheme.

1.2

The new Discretionary Business Grant Scheme has been developed in response to an announcement
made by the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 1st May 2020
which sets out circumstances whereby a grant payment may be made by the Council to a business
who has not previously qualified for a direct business grant and is suffering a significant fall in
income due to the COVID-19 crisis.

1.3

Whilst the awarding of grants will be at the total discretion of the Council, the Department for
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has set down criteria which must be met by each
business making an application for a discretionary grant. The Department has also indicated the
types of business which should be given priority in all cases.

1.4

This document sets out the criteria which BEIS have provided to the Council to determine eligibility
for the Discretionary Business Grant. It also outlines the approach the Council will take in
determining whether an award should be paid or not.

2.0 Funding
2.1

Central Government has provided the Council with a sum of £1,125,500. The funding level is finite
and therefore the Council, although keen to ensure that grants are given to the maximum number
of businesses, is conscious that its expenditure cannot exceed that amount.

2.2

The Council will limit the total awards to the level of funding available from Central Government.

3.0 Eligibility criteria of the fund
3.1

Central Government, whilst wanting Councils to exercise their local knowledge and discretion, have
set national criteria for the funds. In all cases, the Council will only consider businesses for
Discretionary Business Grant where all of the criteria are met.

3.2

Any business failing to meet the criteria or failing to provide the Council with sufficient information
to determine whether they meet the criteria, will not be awarded a Discretionary Business Grant.

3.3

Government has stated that the intention of the scheme is to provide assistance to businesses that
meet the following criteria:
§ Small and micro businesses, as defined in Section 33 Part 2 of the Small Business, Enterprise
and Employment Act 2015 and the Companies Act 2006;

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 82

4

§
§
§
§
3.4

Businesses with relatively high ongoing fixed property-related costs;
Businesses which can demonstrate that they have suffered a significant fall in income due to
the COVID-19 crisis;
Businesses which occupy property, or part of a property, with a rateable value or annual rent or
annual mortgage payments below £51,000; and
Businesses must have been trading on 11th March 2020.

In addition, businesses which are eligible for any of the following are ineligible for any
Discretionary Business Grant:
§ Small Business Grant Fund;
§ Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant;
§ The Fisheries Response Fund;
§ Domestic Seafood Supply Scheme (DSSS);
§ The Zoos Support Fund;
§ The Dairy Hardship Fund.

4.0 Definitions – Eligibility Criteria
4.1

For the sake of clarity the following definitions are provided in respect of the criteria set out in
paragraphs 3.3 and 3.4:
§ Small Businesses under the Companies Act 2006 must meet two of the following
requirements in a year:
o Turnover must not be more than £10.2 million per annum;
o The Balance sheet total should not be more than £5.1 million; and
o The number of employees should be less than 50.
§

Micro Businesses under the Companies Act 2006 must meet two of the following
requirements in a year:
o Turnover must not be more than £632,000 per annum
o The Balance sheet total should not be more than £316,000; and
o The number of employees should be less than 10.

§

Businesses must have relatively high ongoing fixed building-related costs – for the
purpose of this scheme, the Council determines fixed building-related costs to be;
o Payments of mortgage, lease, rent or licence for business premises and not domestic
premises (apart from the exception of Bed and Breakfast premises as defined in part 6
of this scheme);
o The payments must represent a high proportion of expenses in relation to the overall
income of the business; and
o The payments are unavoidable and are ongoing.

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 83

5

The Council has determined that each business will have to provide evidence of high on-going
fixed building-related costs. The Council will require the business to provide evidence of
liabilities including mortgage, lease, tenancy, service charges, licence, utilities, insurance etc.
§

Businesses must demonstrate that they have suffered a significant fall in income
due to the COVID-19 crisis – the Council has determined that businesses must certify that
there has been a significant fall in income for the period March to May 2020 compared with the
same months in 2019.
The Council will require businesses to submit bank statements for both periods.
The Council must be sure that the fall in income is due to the COVID-19 crisis and not a general
failure of business. Where necessary businesses may need to provide evidence to the Council to
support their application;

§

Businesses must be trading on 11th March 2020 – the Council will require proof that the
business was trading on 11th March 2020 and was not dormant, subject to a winding up order,
in administration or subject to striking off;

§

Eligible to a grant under the Small Business Grant Scheme or the Retail Hospitality
or Leisure Scheme1 – where the business is either eligible to receive or has received a grant
under either of the two schemes administered by the Council, no Discretionary Business Grant
shall be awarded;

§

Eligible to assistance under the Fisheries Response Fund – as administered by the
Marine Management Organisation (MMO) and funded by HM Treasury and the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Where the business or person is eligible to assistance
under this fund, no Discretionary Business Grant shall be awarded;

§

Eligible to assistance under the Domestic Seafood Supply Scheme (DSSS) as
administered by the Marine Management Organisation (MMO) and funded by HM Treasury and
the Maritime and Fisheries Fund. Where the business or person is eligible to assistance under
this fund, no Discretionary Business Grant shall be awarded;

§

Eligible to assistance under the Zoos Support Fund as administered by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Where the business or person is eligible to assistance
under this fund, no Discretionary Business Grant shall be awarded;

§

Eligible to assistance under the Dairy Hardship Fund as administered by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Where the business or person is eligible to assistance
under this fund, no Discretionary Business Grant shall be awarded;

1

Eligibility Criteria for either the Small Business Grant or Retail Hospitality and Leisure Grant as determined by the Department
for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy and administered by the Council;
Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 84

6

§

Businesses which occupy property, or part of a property, with a rateable value or
annual rent or annual mortgage payments below £51,000 – The Council has decided
that this shall be a key determinant of priority under the scheme and, as such, where businesses
have rateable values of £51,000 or more or make payments of mortgage, lease, rent or licence
of £51,000 or more per annum, no Discretionary Business Grant shall be awarded.
For the avoidance of doubt, the Council has decided that in calculating the figure of £51,000,
all buildings occupied by the business (or the responsibility of the business) shall be taken into
account.

5.0 National Priority Businesses
5.1

Government are asking Councils to prioritise the following types of businesses for grants from within
this discretionary fund:
(a) Small businesses in shared offices or other flexible workspaces e.g. industrial parks,
science parks, incubators etc., which do not have their own business rates assessment;
(b) Regular market traders who do not have their own business rates assessment;
(c) Bed and Breakfast premises which pay Council Tax instead of business rates; and
(d) Charity properties in receipt of charitable business rates relief which would
otherwise have been eligible for Small Business Rates Relief or Rural Rate Relief.

5.2

The list set out above is not intended to be exhaustive, but it is intended to guide Councils as to the
types of uses that the Government considers should be a priority for the scheme. The Council will
decide whether particular situations not listed are broadly similar in nature to those above and, if so,
whether they may be eligible for grants from this discretionary fund.

6.0 Definitions - National Priority Businesses
6.1

In line with Government’s priorities for the fund, the following definitions have been used to
determine whether any particular business should be treated as a priority for the funding:
Small businesses in shared offices or other flexible workspaces which do not have their
own business rates assessment

6.2

These are defined by the Council as businesses which do not have a separate assessment for NonDomestic Rating (i.e. those businesses who do not occupy a separate hereditament within the 2017
Rating List) and who, on the 11th March 2020 were trading and shared the premises with other
businesses.

6.3

Primarily, these businesses will not be assessed individually for Non-Domestic Rating on the basis
that the landlord has paramount occupation of the premises.

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 85

7

Regular market traders who do not have their own business rates assessment
6.4

As with the other priority businesses for this fund, these will be businesses who do not have a
separate assessment for Non-Domestic Rating (i.e. those businesses who do not occupy a separate
hereditament within the 2017 Rating List).

6.5

The Council has decided that for the purpose of this scheme, market traders shall be defined as:
“ a business or person who sells goods wholly or mainly to visiting members of the public from a
stall, pitch or similar, from a place or market recognised by the Council as a market”.
Where the business is street trading, the business or person must hold a valid street market licence
issued by the Council.

6.6

All market traders must prove to the Council that as at 11th March 2020, they had a regular pitch or
stall within the Council’s area from which they sold goods to visiting members of the public or that
they maintain a store or similar again within the Ryedale district.

6.7

For the purposes of this scheme, ‘regular’ is defined as at least weekly. Where the market trader
traded less frequently, the Council will not consider the business as priority for a grant.

6.8

Where a market trader operates in more than one local authority area, the applicant will need to
certify that they trade primarily in the Council’s area or have fixed business base within the Council’s
area. Where a grant is claimed from another authority, no grant will be awarded by the Council.
Bed and Breakfast premises which pay Council Tax instead of business rates

6.9

For the purpose of this scheme, these businesses are those who do not occupy a separate
hereditament within the 2017 Rating List and who the Valuation Office Agency would deem to fall
within the Council Tax Valuation List.

6.10

For the avoidance of doubt, the Council will consider this as a priority business if:
(a) the Bed and Breakfast property is domestic and therefore subject to council tax rather than
business rates;
(b) It provides short stay accommodation for no more than six persons at any one time within the
past year;
(c) The property is the sole or main residence of the proprietor(s) and the bed and breakfast use is
subsidiary to the private use; and
(d) The business was trading on 11th March 2020.

6.11

In determining subsidiary use the Council shall take into account:
§ Whether the majority of the premises is being used for business purposes: and
§ If the premises have been adapted to alter the character of the property beyond that of a private
house.

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 86

8

6.12

Where the Council has determined that the Bed and Breakfast premises should have been subject
to Non-Domestic Rating, the business shall not be considered as a priority for a Discretionary
Business Grant.

6.13

The Council has determined that any premises where it considers that the Bed and Breakfast business
is basically ‘home sharing’ and where advertising is wholly undertaken through ‘home sharing’
websites will not take priority for the fund.
Charity properties in receipt of charitable business rates relief which would otherwise
have been eligible for Small Business Rates Relief or Rural Rate Relief

6.14

In certain cases, where a charity was in receipt of mandatory relief under Section 43 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988, it would not have been entitled to either Small Business Rates Relief
or Rural Rate Relief. As such it would not have been able to receive a grant under the Small Business
Grant Fund.

6.15

The Council will give priority to charities who, were it not for the receipt of mandatory relief, would
have met the qualifying criteria for the Small Business Grants (see the Council’s policy for Direct
Business Grants). It should be noted that this only relates to premises that would, but for the receipt
of mandatory rate relief, have received a percentage reduction under the Small Business Rates
Criteria. In the main this will be premises with a Rateable Value of £15,000 or less and where the
ratepayer occupies only one premises (excluding any premises which would be disregarded under
the Small Business Rates Relief scheme).

6.16

The Council has decided that any charitable business receiving other help from public funds (i.e.
from Government, Local Authorities etc.) shall not be priority for a Discretionary Business Grant.

7.0 Ineligible Sectors
7.1

Grants cannot be awarded where the business is primarily mobile in nature. To be eligible for a grant,
the business must be connected with, or operated alongside, fixed business premises (not domestic
premises) where there are relatively high ongoing fixed building-related costs.

8.0 How will grants be provided to businesses?
8.1

The Council is fully aware of the importance of grants to assist businesses and support the local
community and economy. The Discretionary Business Grant scheme will offer a lifeline to businesses
who are struggling to survive due to the COVID-19 crisis.

8.2

In all cases, an application form is required, and this can be completed on-line at the Council’s
website www.ryedale.gov.uk

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 87

9

Supplementary information may also be required, and all businesses should look to provide this,
where requested to the Council as soon as possible.
8.3

An application for a Discretionary Business Grant is deemed to have been made when a duly
completed application form is received via the Council’s online procedure.

9.0 How much grant will be payable
9.1

Central Government has determined that there shall be a ‘cap’ on grants of £25,000 per business
and that the next level of grant shall be £10,000. However, the Council under Central Government
guidance, has the following discretion:
(a) Whether to award grants at the £25,000 or £10,000 level; and
(b) To determine whether grants of less than £10,000 should be awarded.

9.2

The Council has decided that, for the purposes of this scheme, the following Discretionary Business
Grants may be awarded:
§ £25,000 in exceptional cases where, the business has high property costs and the failure of the
business would have a significant impact on the economy of the District; and
§ Between £1,000 and up to £10,000 where the amount will be determined after the two-week
application process has closed so that the Council can assess all businesses which will enable
the maximum amount of businesses to be supported in the District’s area;

9.3

Grants will be payable after the two-week application process has closed as soon as it is practicable
to do so.

9.4

Only one Discretionary Business Grant will be awarded to any business. This will also apply if more
than one Limited Company has the same director (s) or where more than one business has the same
proprietor (either sole traders or partnerships).

10.0 Limitation of funds and applications
10.1

All monies paid through the Discretionary Business Grant scheme will be funded by Central
Government and paid to the Council under S31 of the Local Government Act 2003. However, as
mentioned in paragraph 2, the funds are limited and, as such, the Council is not able to award a
grant where funds are no longer available.

10.2

In order to fairly administer the scheme, the Council has decided that awards will be determined as
follows:
(a) There will be a two-week period during which applications can be made. This will be between 8th
June 2020 until midnight 21st June 2020;

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 88

10

(b) Any businesses wishing to claim should complete the necessary form on the Council’s website
as shown in paragraph 8.2. This will also include the provision of such evidence as required by
the Council;
(c) All claims will be made online;
(d) Once the application period is closed, all awards will be considered against the criteria laid down
within this scheme, as soon as practicable;
(e) Depending on the number of applications and the amount left in the grant fund, the Council
reserves the right to provide other application periods if appropriate;
(f) If the grant fund is oversubscribed, then the Council reserves the right to allocate funds by
assessing the local needs of the economy in line with the criteria in sections 3 and 4.

11.0 EU State Aid requirements
11.1

Any Discretionary Business Grant is given as aid under the Temporary Framework for State aid
measures to support the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak published on 19 March 2020.
This means that businesses receiving support under these provisions can receive up to €800,000 in
aid over three years (being the current and the previous two years).

11.2

Any grant awarded is required to comply with the EU law on State Aid. This will involve the applicant
declaring to the Council if they have received any other de minimis State aid or aid provided under
the EU Commission Covid-19 Temporary Framework.

11.3

If the applicant has not received any other de minimis State aid, they are not required to make that
declaration to the Council or to complete any declaration statement.

12.0 Notification of decisions
12.1

All decisions made by the Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing or by email. A
decision shall be made as soon as practicable after the closure of the application period.

13.0 Reviews of decisions
13.1

The Council will operate an internal review process and will accept an applicant’s request for an
appeal of its decision.

13.2

All such requests must be made in writing to the Council, within 14 days of the Council’s decision,
and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with the decision of the Council. New
information may be submitted at this stage to support the applicant’s appeal.

13.3

The application will be reconsidered as soon as practicable and the applicant informed in writing or
by email of the decision.

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 89

11

13.4

A further appeal may be made, and that decision shall be final.

14.0 Complaints
14.1

The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be applied in the event
of any complaint received about this scheme.

15.0 Other scheme conditions
15.1

The Council has been informed by Treasury that all grants are taxable. Applicants should make their
own enquiries to establish any tax position or liability.

16.0 Managing the risk of fraud
16.1

Neither the Council, nor the Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the scheme and
fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain grant money or failing to declare
entitlement to any of the specified grants will face prosecution and any funding issued will be
recovered from them.

16.2

Applicants should note that, where a grant is paid by the Council, details of each individual grant
may be passed to Government.

16.3

The Council reserves the right to reclaim any grant paid in error.

Ryedale/Discretionary Business Grants Scheme /V3-05062020

Page 90

12

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

GARY HOUSDEN. HEAD OF PLANNING AND
REGULATORY SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To determine four planning applications following the consultation meeting of the
members of the Planning Committee held on the 9 June 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the following applications are determined as follows:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Item 1. Item 1 was withdrawn from the agenda and was not considered.
Item 2. 19/01254/MFUL – Swallows Barn, Church Lane, East Heslerton.
Approval subject to conditions outlined in the Officer report and with the
inclusion of a condition preventing the burning of manure waste
Item 3. 19/01406/FUL – Buildings at Station Road, Ganton
Approval subject to conditions outlined in the Officer report.
Item 4. 20/00033/FUL – Studley House Farm, 67 Main Street, Ebberston
Approval subject to conditions outlined in the Officer report
Item 5. 20/00326/HOUSE – 1 Russett Road, Malton
Approval subject to conditions outlined in the officer report

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The process for determining those planning applications (which would otherwise be
determined by the planning committee) under Urgency Powers has been agreed.

3.2

In order to inform the determination of applications, a consultation meeting of the
members of Planning Committee was held at 6.00pm on 9 June 2020. Four
applications were considered by the members of Planning Committee during the virtual
meeting. The members that participated in the meeting were as follows:
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Burr (Sub)
Cleary
Frank (Sub)
Goodrick (Chair)
Graham
Keal (Sub)
Mackenzie
Potter
Riby
Windress (Vice Chair)

Page 91

3.3

In advance of the consultation meeting, hard copies of officer reports covering each
item, site photographs and update papers were distributed to every councillor attending
the meeting. All applicants and third parties were also informed of the decision making
process under urgency powers in advance of the virtual meeting and were asked to
submit any further representations before 11.00 am on the 9 June 2020.

3.4

Further written representations were received in relation to the following items



Item 3. A written statement from the applicant
Item 4. A written statement from the applicant and a written statement from a
Neighbour.

3.5

The Officer reports, site photographs and the further written representations of
applicants and third parties are on the application files.

3.7

At the start of the meeting the Chair confirmed the purpose of the meeting, meeting
etiquette and her intention that the meeting would be conducted in a way that would
closely mirror the consideration of applications at formal meetings of the planning
committee. For each application this included: a short presentation by officers;
representations from applicants and third parties to be read out in full (in lieu of public
speaking); questions to officers; debate, followed by a vote for each item.

3.8

The outcome of the consultation meeting, which is to be followed by the Chief
Executive in determining the applications is as follows:

Officer
Recommendation

Moved
Seconded
Vote
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Frank
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Keal
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Potter
Cllr Riby
Cllr Windress

Item 2
19/01254/MFUL
Approval subject
to
conditions
listed in the officer
report

Item 3
19/01406/FUL
Approval subject
to conditions listed
in the officer report

Item 5
20/00326/HOUSE
Approval subject
to conditions listed
in the officer report

Approve
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary

Item 4
20/00033/FUL
Approval
subject
to
conditions listed
in the officer
report
Approve
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary

Approve
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10 For approval
Unanimous

Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10 For approval
Unanimous

Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10 For approval
Unanimous

Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10 For approval
Unanimous

Approve
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary

3.9

The members of the meeting unanimously voted to approve all items in line with the
officer recommendation.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with the recommendations. The
recommendations are made taking into account planning decision making principles,
including the policies of the development plan and material planning considerations.
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed.

Page 92

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Not applicable
b)

Legal
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other specific implications associated with the recommendations.

Supporting documents to planning applications are available on the Council’s planning
portal. Please note that any documents not currently accessible online due to the covid-19
public health emergency will be made available as soon as possible.
Relevant documents for the applications considered in this decision notice are as follows:
Item 1: N/A
Item 2: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
https://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
Item 3: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, Statement
from the applicant. https://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
Item 4: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, Statement
from Neighbour and Statement from applicant
https://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
Item 5: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation response
lhttps://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

Page 93

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation has been undertaken with the Planning Committee Chair and its members, as
agreed under the approved process for dealing with planning applications under urgency
powers, which would normally have gone to Committee. Consultation is now required with
the Leader.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is agreed as the decisions reflect the outcome of the consultation planning meeting.

Date consultation completed

8.0

12-06-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are agreed.
on consultation
Date
12-06-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 94

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

VOLUNTEER AND NHS / SOCIAL CARE PERMIT
SCHEMES

OFFICER REQUESTING:

AMY
THOMAS
–
PRINCIPAL
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

ECONOMIC

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To seek approval for a Volunteer Car Parking Permit Scheme and an NHS / Social
Care Worker Car Parking Permit Scheme as outlined below.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

(ii)

The existing Volunteer Permits which have been issued by NYCC as part of
the Community Connect Volunteer Scheme are formalised into an RDC
scheme so they can be managed and accounted for fully.
A new RDC administered scheme for NHS and Social Care workers is
established to meet the needs of those who cannot currently access the
government universal health care and volunteers parking pass and
concessions scheme.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Currently there are approx. 135 NYCC issued volunteer permits in circulation in
Ryedale. These were issued to volunteers registered with the Community Support
Organisation by NYCC / the Community Support Organisation without prior agreement
of RDC. This permit entitles the holder to free parking in all RDC car parks whilst
undertaking duties in relation to their volunteering role.

3.2

Volunteers are expected to begin ending their volunteering roles on a phased basis
from 31 July. It is proposed that the existing permits are retained and that permit
holders are informed via the Community Support Organisation that these permits are
valid until the date their volunteering role ends, after which point they will expire and a
valid ticket will be required to park.

3.3

The number of active volunteers and live permits will be reviewed in mid-September
and if permits are still required for volunteers beyond the end of September, the
Community Support Organisation will inform RDC and time limited RDC permits will be
issued.

3.4

Any enquires for permits from volunteers volunteering on an independent basis will be
directed to the Community Support Organisation to register with them and receive a

Page 95

permit if deemed appropriate.
3.5

Any new RDC permits and their expiry date will be issued in consultation with the Head
of Customer Service.

3.6

It has become apparent that the Government’s universal parking pass and
concessions scheme for NHS and health care workers is not accessible to all who are
working in this sector. Passes for this scheme are applied for through the NHS and
Local Authorities, however the council is not aware of NYCC issuing these permits.
Several direct communications have been received from local GP surgeries and the
CCG requesting permits for staff as they cannot access this scheme and are looking
to RDC to provide some assistance. As free car parking for workers in this sector is
legally required, an RDC scheme to fill the gap is required. There is no indication of
how many passes would be required. It should be noted that the universal scheme
permits will also be eligible in Ryedale due to some NHS workers already having these.

3.7

Government guidance online (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19health-care-and-volunteer-workers-parking-pass-and-concessions/covid-19-healthcare-and-volunteer-workers-parking-pass-and-concessions) for the Health, Care and
Volunteer Workers Parking Pass and Concessions Scheme states that the ‘pass
provides evidence of entitlement to free parking for those on duty as an NHS staff
member, health or social care worker, or NHS Volunteer Responder. This is to enable
them to access parking concessions in local authority-owned off-street car parks and
on-street bays during the COVID-19 emergency response period’. The guidance does
not specify which roles this will apply too. Blanket coverage is therefore assumed.

3.8

It is proposed that an online application form be developed and an application be
submitted by each Ryedale based health organisation requiring permits for staff
working in Ryedale. Requests will be processed by the Customer Services Team /
Communities Team and issued to each organisation. Both teams have been involved
in discussions and the design of the process. In addition the IT team have been
consulted and have agreed to this process.

3.9

As no government confirmation has been received regarding how long this scheme is
to be offered for, permits will initially be issued until 30 September 2020.

3.10

Applicant organisations will be requested to submit details for each member of staff
requiring a permit including name, position or role within the organisation, temporary /
permanent staff, car registration number and NHS number if applicable.

3.11

RDC produced permits suitable for use in all RDC car parks will be issued with the
above details on. Standard terms and conditions of use (similar to those on RDC Staff
Permits) will be printed on the reverse along with the requirement for the applicant
organisation to surrender the permit if an individual leaves the organisation. Permits
will not be transferable.

3.12

If additional permits are requested in the future, these requests must be made via the
same online form and requests will be processed as and when required.

3.13

The situation will be reviewed in early September and new, extended permits can be
issued if required.

3.14

Details of any schemes developed will be shared with the Parking Enforcement Team
at SBC.

3.15

Any vehicle parked without displaying a valid permit will be issued with a Parking
Contravention Notice if appropriate.

Page 96

3.16

All permit holders must adhere to all existing rules of use as indicated both on the
permit and on existing car park signage.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There appears to be a significant number of health care workers employed via the
CCG or GP practices, which technically operate as small businesses within the NHS
system (as NHS England pays GP surgeries to deliver services), who cannot access
the government scheme. For example, in Pickering Medical Practice alone, permits
have been requested for around 50 members of staff. Issuing permits on this scale
across Ryedale could result in a significant impact on car park revenue generation and
space availability, particularly in those car parks closest to medical centres such as
Water Lane in Malton, Vivis Lane in Pickering and Town Farm car park in
Kirkbymoorside. As permits will be required to be requested by the employer, permits
will only be issued to workers working in Ryedale and therefore requiring use of the
car parks. The existing government guidance does not distinguish between different
roles that would be eligible for a permit – it only states it is for ‘those on duty as an NHS
staff member, health or social care worker, or NHS Volunteer Responder’.

4.2

The number of permits which will be requested and issued is unknown as we have no
way of knowing how many health and social care workers there are within both the
public sector and private health care providers.

4.3

Other independent volunteers / volunteer groups not connected to the Community
Support Organisation may also request permits for their volunteering duties. A small
number of comments / complaints about the lack of provision of permits for volunteers
has been made via social media. Communications will need to be clear that volunteer
permits are only being provided to volunteers registered with the Community Support
Organisation. A permit system open to all individuals volunteering on an independent
basis will be difficult to manage and monitor for authenticity, and could be open to misuse.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial – the following figures have been discussed with Finance officers.
 Car parking charges were reintroduced from 6 June 2020. If permits are
provided with an expiry date of 30 September 2020, this is the equivalent
of approximately 4 months free car parking. To provide an indication of
cost, the closest permit the council offers to this is a 6 month short stay
permit at £30.00. Across the 135 volunteers this equates to £4,050. This
figure will be added to the MHCLG Cost Register.
 For the health and social care workers scheme, as the council has no
indication of how many permits will be requested. The cost of providing
this cannot be indicated in advance. However as an example if 100 permits
are issued the cost of this will be a further £3,000. A register of permits
issued will be maintained and a figure will be provided for the MHCLG Cost
Register in the future.
 The online form and permits can be created and produced in-house. This
has been discussed with the Customer Services, Communications and IT
teams.
 The costs associated with purchasing card for the permits and the cost of
postage will be recorded and assigned to the COVID ledger codes and
identified on the MHCLG Cost register. These are expected to be minimal

Page 97

as permits will be posted in single batches to applicant organisations.
Postage costs will depend on how many permits are requested and their
collective weight.
b)

Legal
Provision of free car parking for health and social care workers and NHS
Volunteers is a government requirement of Local Authorities.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
The proposed schemes have been discussed with the appropriate officers from
the Customer Services and Communities Teams as staffing from within these
teams will be utilised to administer the schemes. IT and Communications support
will also be required and this has been discussed with the relevant officers. All
teams have confirmed that they are able to resource the above proposals.

Page 98

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

This is effectively a policy decision to agree to exempt certain groups from the agreed car
parking fees through the operation of two permit schemes. The Leader as the Chair of the
Policy and Resources Committee should therefore be consulted.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This decision is urgently required in order to comply with the government’s new scheme
and recognise hard-working volunteers. The permits should be strictly controlled and timelimited to ensure they are benefitting those who are eligible.
Date consultation completed
10-07-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO
(Phillip Spurr) based on The recommendations are approved.
consultation
Date
10-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

INTRODUCTION OF PAVEMENT LICENCES UNDER
THE PROPOSED BUSINESS AND PLANNING BILL

OFFICER REQUESTING:

ROB ROBINSON – ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
MANAGER

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To outline the Council’s approach to Pavement Licensing and the processing of
applications following the re-opening of the hospitality sector on 4 July 2020.

1.2

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

To grant delegated powers to determine pavement licence applications
To set a pavement licence application fee
To set standard pavement licence conditions

The determination of applications be delegated to the Environmental Health
Manager (or in his absence the Environmental Health Officer employed in the
Environmental Health Department or Senior Licensing Officer).
The fee for applications be set at £100 (statutory maximum)
The standard pavement licence conditions attached at Annex A be approved,
noting the proposed changes to the minimum pavement width and barriers
outlined at sections 3.6 & 3.8 below.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

On Thursday 25 June 2020 the Business and Planning Bill was introduced to the
House of Commons by the Government which introduces a new ‘temporary pavement
licence’ to enable businesses selling food and drink to apply to their local authority for
authorisation to put furniture such as tables and chairs on the highway adjacent to their
premises. The regime is a temporary measure, with licences granted lasting up to 30
September 2021 unless surrendered or revoked by the local authority.

3.2

The current regime for placing tables and chairs on the highway is administered by
North Yorkshire County Council under the Highways Act 1980 which is recognised as
both a complex and lengthy process. The new Bill introduces a streamlined, fast-track
process for businesses to secure a licence which would be determined and
administered by Ryedale District Council. The Bill outlines a 7 day public consultation
period, followed by a further 7 days for the local authority to determine the application,
if no decision is made the licence is automatically deemed granted for a period of 12
months.

Page 101

3.3

Although the Bill is yet to become law, there are a number of matters which need to be
considered to ensure the Council is in a position to accept applications for these
licences. Given the nature of available highways/pavements within Ryedale and its
main towns, it is estimated that between 20-30 premises may be able to provide such
seating.

3.4

The reasons for the above recommendations are as follows:
 Delegation - Given the tight timescales involved it is not practicable for applications
to be determined by the Licensing Committee. Instead it is proposed that Officers
make decisions based on set criteria and after taking into account consultation
responses, legal provisions and relevant guidance.
 Fees - The Bill permits local authorities to charge an application fee not exceeding
£100. It is proposed to charge the statutory maximum as it is unlikely to cover the
full costs incurred in processing applications.
 Consultation - Officers consider it important to consult broadly when determining
applications thereby helping to mitigate any potential issues which may arise from
street furniture being placed on the highway. Consultees will include the Police
Authority, Fire Authority, the Council’s Environmental Health Department and
Town/Parish Councils on applications, in addition to the statutory consultation with
the public and Highways Authority.
 Conditions - The draft guidance encourages local authorities to publish draft
conditions which address matters such as public health and safety, public amenity
and accessibility.

3.5

When deciding on conditions Officers have tried to mitigate the risks identified below
whilst trying to not over burden businesses. This has resulted in two key changes
between the conditions currently imposed by NYCC under the Highways Act 1980 and
those proposed by Officers under the new regime. These changes are outlined below.
Available pavement width

3.6

Officers have considered the current requirement of NYCC for a 2 metre wide
unobstructed pedestrian route to be maintained for those walking past a premises with
table and chairs. Taking into account the premises in Ryedale and street widths
available, such a requirement may disqualify the majority of premises from applying.

3.7

Therefore to ensure as many businesses as possible are able to benefit from a licence,
it is proposed that a reduced width of 1.5m be adopted which is provided for in the
Inclusive Mobility guidance in cases where there are physical constraints. The impact
this proposal has on pedestrian flow and access would be closely monitored and
amended if required.
Barriers

3.8

Again Officers have considered the current requirement of NYCC for the operator to
install barriers around the boundary of the licensed area. Although barriers can define
an area, they may also potentially impede pedestrian flow and may not be appropriate
in all circumstances. It is also considered that the added cost of barriers may be
disproportionate and contrary to the aims of the new regime. To address this Officers
recommend consideration of the need for barriers on a case by case basis and request
barriers where deemed necessary.

Page 102

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The following risks have been identified:
 Risks to public health or safety – i.e. encouraging users to breach government
guidance on social distancing by placing tables and chairs too close together or a
failure to control the area
 Obstruction of the highway (other than by anything permitted by the licence)
 Anti-social behaviour or public nuisance – i.e. increased amounts of noise
generated late at night and litter affecting neighbouring properties
 Risk to the economic recovery of premises who could benefit from the extra covers
generated by a pavement licence by not granting a licence

4.2

In mitigation of the above the local authority reserves the right to revoke a licence
should an operator fail to rectify a related issue or concern and thus protect public
safety and amenity. The same also applies if a condition imposed on a licence (either
by the local authority) or nationally is breached.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Officers do not consider it likely that there will be a significant uptake of these
licences. Additional costs not covered by the fee will be tracked and recorded for
the MHCLG submission.
b)

Legal
The Business and Planning Bill is yet to receive Royal Assent and therefore may
be subject to amendment. In addition the guidance available is currently in draft
form.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Reducing the width of available highway may be of detriment to less able people,
particularly those who require the use of a wheelchair or are visually impaired.
Therefore it is important that the needs of a business are balanced against the
safety of all pedestrians.

Page 103

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The decision around delegations would normally be a Full Council decision, based on a
recommendation from Licensing Committee and is a matter of process, so the Chair of
Council, the Leader and the Chair of Licensing Committee should be consulted. The fee is
also a Full Council decision under business as usual, on the recommendation of Policy and
Resources Committee, and this is covered by the consultees above.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
Cllr Cleary confirmed on 7 July 2020 that he is satisfied with the recommendations.
Date consultation completed

07-07-20

Cllr Windress – Chair of the Licensing
Committee
Cllr Windress confirmed on 9 July 2020 that he is satisfied with the recommendations.
Name of consultee

Date consultation completed

09-07-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This decision is urgently required in order to designate powers in line with government
legislation. It will help hospitality businesses boost trade at this difficult time.
Date consultation completed
10-07-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO
(Phillip Spurr) based on The recommendations are approved.
consultation
Date
10-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 104

Pavement Licence – Conditions
1

This permission is not transferrable.

2

This permission will be in force for the dates stated on the consent or where no limit
have been placed on its duration, it will expire on 30th September 2021, unless it is
previously surrendered, suspended or revoked

3

The area so permitted to be used solely for the purpose of consuming food and drink
purchased on the premises. It is strictly forbidden to prepare any food and drink in this
area.

4

A 1.5 meter wide unobstructed pedestrian route shall be maintained for those passing
the premises. In no circumstances will a license be issued where this would result in a
remaining usable width of pavement of less than 1.5 metres.

5

The Holder(s) shall not cause any obstruction to the highway (outside the licensed
area) or danger to persons using it and shall not permit persons to gather so as to
cause a nuisance or annoyance or danger to any persons lawfully using the highway.

6

Not withstanding the specific requirements in condition 5 above the Holder(s) shall not
do or suffer anything to be done in or on the highway which in the opinion of the Council
may be or become a danger, nuisance or annoyance to or cause damage or
inconvenience to the said Council or to the owners or occupiers of any adjacent
premises or to members of the public

7

The Holder(s) shall not make any excavations or indentations of any description
whatsoever in the surface of the highway or place or fix any equipment of any
description in the said surface.

8

The licence holder shall indemnify the Council against all actions, proceedings, claims
demands and liability which may at any time be taken, made or incurred in
consequence of the use of the chairs and tables and other objects and for this purpose
must take out at the permit holder’s expense a policy of insurance approved by the
Council in the sum of at least £2 million in respect of any one event and must produce
to the Council on request the current receipts for premium payments and confirmation
of the annual renewals of the policy.

9

This permit does not relieve the holder from any requirements under licensing law for
appropriate authorisation where it is required.

10

A duly authorised Officer of the Council or Police Officer shall have the right to inspect
the licensed area and make any suitable changes to the layout of the area if deemed
necessary in the interests of highway safety.

11

The Holder(s) shall maintain the licensed area and the immediate adjacent area, in a
clean and tidy condition during the Permitted hours and shall leave the same in clean
and tidy condition and unobstructed, which shall include (1) washing down the area,
and (2) removing any refuse and litter deposited on the highway in the vicinity of the
licensed area. This will be carried out whenever necessary and in a way which does
not create a nuisance to other parties and neighbouring premises. Food waste must
not be washed down a storm water drain

Page 105

12

Upon request Holder(s) will be required to clearly define the permitted area by the
use of barriers of a type agreed with the Council. Barriers shall not be placed so as to
obstruct any entrance or exit to buildings.

13

The Holder (s) shall not display any signs, adverts or banners anywhere on the
Highway or around the perimeter of the licensed area without the permission of the
Council.

14

The Holder(s) shall remove all furniture or equipment, litter bins, perimeter railings or
other articles placed on the licensed area in accordance with this Permission at the
expiry, surrender or revocation of the Permission and at the end of the Permitted Hours
each day.

15

The Holder(s) may from time to time be notified of temporary suspension of the
permission granted to allow for maintenance, installation works or any other lawful
activity (including Street Works and Road Works) to take place. In other cases, where
the use of the highway alters, the permit may be revoked by issue of a notice.
Permission may also be revoked for non-compliance with the above conditions and
the Council shall not in any circumstances be liable to pay compensation to the
Holder(s) in respect of such suspension or revocation.

16

Anything done by the licence holder pursuant to the holder, or any activity of other
persons which is enabled by the licence, must not have an effect of:
(a) Preventing traffic, other than vehicular traffic from, from –
(i)
Entering the relevant highway at a place where such traffic could otherwise
enter it (ignoring any pedestrian planning order or traffic order made in
relation to the highway),
(ii)
Passing along the relevant highway, or
(iii)
Having normal access to premises adjoining the relevant highway,
(b) Preventing any use of vehicles which is permitted by a pedestrian planning order
or which is not prohibited by a traffic order,
(c) Preventing statutory undertakers having access ti any apparatus of theirs under, in
on or over the highway, or
(d) Preventing the operator of an electronic communications code network having
access to any electronic communications apparatus kept installed for the purposes
of that network under, in, on or over the highway.

Page 106

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

GARY HOUSDEN. HEAD OF PLANNING AND
REGULATORY SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To determine eleven planning applications following the consultation meeting of the
members of the Planning Committee held on the 7 July 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the following applications are determined as follows:
(i)

Item 1. 19/00236/MOUT Agricultural Contractors, Welham Road, Norton – this
Item was WITHDRAWN from the agenda.

(ii)

Item 2. 19/01180/MFUL – Land adjacent to Auburn Cottages, Langton Road,
Norton. APPROVE – subject to the completion of a variation to a Section 106
agreement and conditions.

(iii)

Item 3. 20/00/230/MFUL – Field off Hungerhill Lane, Wombleton. DEFERRED –
until breaches of planning control on the site are addressed.

(iv)

Item 4. 20/00350/MFUL- Land to the south of Cherry Farm Close, MaltonAPPROVE – subject to conditions and the detailed requirements of the Local
Lead Flood Authority.

(v)

Item 5. 20/00374/MFUL – New Cliff House, Cross Lane, Sinnington. APPROVE
– subject to conditions

(vi)

Item 6. 20/00037/HOUSE – 3 Southlea, Rillington. APPROVE – subject to
conditions

(vii)

Item 7.20/00043/FUL – Railway Tavern, 2 Wold Street, Norton. APPROVE –
subject to conditions

(viii)

Item 8. 20/00167/FUL – Middlecave Yard, Middlecave Road, Malton.
DEFERRED FOR A SITE VISIT – to consider the site in context and in light of
objections and concerns raised.

(ix)

Item 9 20/00360/ADV – 5 Welham Road, Norton. APPROVE – subject to
conditions and amendments to condition 7 to include specified time periods.

(x)

Item 10. 20/00386/FUL – Land south of Middlecave Road, Malton. REFUSE

Page 107

(xi)

Item 11.20/00395/73A – The Limes, 33 Undercliffe, Pickering. APPROVE –
subject to conditions.

(xii)

Item 12. 20/00420/FUL – Land Rear of Goodlands, Main Street, Terrington –
APPROVE, subject to conditions.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The process for determining those planning applications (which would otherwise be
determined by the planning committee) under Urgency Powers has been agreed.

3.2

In order to inform the determination of applications, a consultation meeting of the
members of Planning Committee was held at 6.00pm on 7 July 2020. Eleven
applications were considered by the members of Planning Committee during the virtual
meeting. The members that participated in the meeting were as follows:
Councillor P Andrews
Councillor Burr (Sub)
Councillor Cleary
Councillor Frank (Sub)
Councillor Goodrick (Chair)
Councillor Graham
Councillor Mackenzie
Councillor Mason
Councillor Potter
Councillor Windress (Vice Chair)

3.3

In advance of the consultation meeting, hard copies of officer reports covering each
item, site photographs and update papers were distributed to every councillor attending
the meeting. All applicants and third parties were also informed of the decision making
process under urgency powers in advance of the virtual meeting and were asked to
submit any further representations before 11.00 am on the 7 July 2020.

3.4

Further written representations were received in relation to the following items






Item 2. A written statement/ speech from the applicant. Further representations from
Yorkshire Housing and one third party/neighbour
Item 3. Written Statements/speeches from Wombleton Parish Council; Objector and
the Applicant. Further representations from third party objectors.
Item 6. Written Statement/ speech from Objector
Item 10. Written statement/speech from Objector and Applicant/Agent
Item 12. Written statements of x2 Objectors and Applicant

3.5

The Officer reports, site photographs and the further written representations of
applicants and third parties are on the application files.

3.6

At the start of the meeting the Chair confirmed the purpose of the meeting, meeting
etiquette and her intention that the meeting would be conducted in a way that would
closely mirror the consideration of applications at formal meetings of the planning
committee. For each application this included: a short presentation by officers; written
statements from applicants and third parties to be read out in full (in lieu of public
speaking); questions to officers; debate, followed by a vote for each item.

3.7

The outcome of the consultation meeting, which is to be followed by the Chief
Executive in determining the applications is as follows:

Page 108

Item 2

Item 3

Item 4

Item 5

Officer
Recommendation

Approval subject
to variation of the
Section
106
agreement and
conditions.

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Moved

Approval
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Frank

Deferral
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Andrews

Approval
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Mason

Approval
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary

Refuse/Against
Declared Interest
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Not present
Approve/For
Approve/For
Abstain
Approve/For
6 For ( Approval)
1 Against
1 Abstention

Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Defer
Abstain
9 For (deferral)
1 Abstention

Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10For
(Approval)
Unanimous

Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
10For (Approval)
Unanimous

Item 6

Item 7

Item 8

Item 9

Officer
Recommendation

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Moved

Approval
Cllr Burr
Cllr Frank

Approval
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Cleary

Site Visit
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Burr

Approval
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Burr

Approve/For
Approve/For
Refuse/Against
Approve/For
Approve/For
Refuse/Against
Approve/For
Abstain

Refuse/Against
Abstain
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Abstain

Refuse/Against
Approve/For
Approve/For
Abstain
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Abstain

Approve/For
Approve/For
7 For ( Approval)
2 Against
1 Abstention

Approve/For
Approve/For
7 For ( Approval)
1 Against
2 Abstentions

For
For
For
Against
Against
For
For
Declared
Interest
Against
Abstain
5
For (Site
Visit)
3 Against
1 Abstention

Seconded
Vote
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Frank
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Mason
Cllr Potter
Cllr Windress

Seconded
Vote
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Frank
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Mason
Cllr Potter
Cllr Windress

Page 109

Approve/For
Not present
6 For ( Approval)
1 Against
2 Abstentions

Item 10

Item 11

Item 12

Officer
Recommendation

Refusal

Conditional
Approval

Conditional
Approval

Moved

Refusal
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Burr

Approval
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Cleary

Approval
Cllr Frank
Cllr Potter

Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Approve/Against
Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Refuse/For
Not present
8 For ( Refusal)
1 Against

Not present
Not present
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Approve/For
Declared Interest
Not present
6 For ( Approval)
Unanimous

Not present
Not present
Abstain
Approve/For
Abstain
Abstain
Abstain
Approve/For
Approve/For
Not present
3
For
(
Approval)
4 Abstentions

Seconded
Vote
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Burr
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Frank
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Mason
Cllr Potter
Cllr Windress

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The recommendations are made taking into account planning decision making
principles, including the policies of the development plan and material planning
considerations. The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been
followed. In terms of Item 3 – there is a real risk of a non- determination appeal if the
applicant is not agreeable to resolve the matters as Members would wish.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Not applicable
b)

Legal
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other specific implications associated with the recommendations.

Supporting documents to planning applications are available on the Council’s planning
portal. Please note that any documents not currently accessible online due to the covid-19
public health emergency will be made available as soon as possible.
Relevant documents for the applications considered in this decision notice are as follows:
Item 1: N/A
Item 2: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, applicant’s
statement

Page 110

Item 3: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, Statements
from the applicant, Parish Council and objector
Item 4: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 5: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 6: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, statement
from objector
Item 7: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 8: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 9: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 10: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, statement
from objector and applicant
Item 11: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses
Item 12: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, statements
of objectors and applicant
https://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

Page 111

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation has been undertaken with the Planning Committee Chair and its members, as
agreed under the approved process for dealing with planning applications under urgency
powers, which would normally have gone to Committee. Consultation is now required with
the Leader.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is agreed as the decisions reflect the outcome of the consultation planning meeting.
Date consultation completed

8.0

10-07-20

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO
(Phillip Spurr) based on The recommendations are agreed.
consultation
Date
10-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 112

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF THE
NOMINATED RDC REPRESENTATIVES TO THE
MALTON, NORTON AND OLD MALTON FLOOD
ALLEVIATION SCHEME COMMUNITY CLIENT
GROUP

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR –
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To approve the appointment of the nominated RDC representatives on to the
Community Client Group for the Malton, Norton and Old Malton Flood Alleviation
Scheme.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The representatives nominated for this new Community Client group are:
Malton – Councillor Paul Andrews
Norton East – Councillor Ray King
Norton West – Councillor John Mackenzie

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

NYCC, as Lead Flood Risk Management Authority, responsible for the delivery of the
Malton, Norton and Old Malton Flood Alleviation Scheme (MNOMFAS), is setting up a
Community Client Group.

3.2

The objective of the Community Client Group is to share progress during delivery of
the Flood Scheme, allow opportunity for discussion and questions and provide a point
of contact to ensure there is effective communication with the community.

3.3

The first meeting is expected to take place in July/early August and then every 2
months during delivery through to completion on 31 March 2021.

3.4

NYCC will lead this Community Client Group with representatives being invited from
Environment Agency, LEP, Malton and Norton Town Councils in addition to NYCC and
Ryedale District Council nominated representatives.

3.5

Therefore three representatives from RDC have been invited to be appointed to this
group, with one representative to be nominated from each of the three wards affected,
namely Malton, Norton East and Norton West.

Page 113

3.6

The nominated representatives have been made following consultation with the group
leaders for each of the wards.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is a reputational risk associated with not adopting an inclusive approach
involving community leaders and key stakeholders during the delivery of this important
flood alleviation scheme with sustainable benefits which seek to minimise the flood risk
affecting the communities of Malton, Norton and Old Malton. These appointments will
serve to mitigate this risk.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
None

b)

Legal
None

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 114

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Under business as normal this would have been a Full Council decision. Consultation is
required with the Leader of Council and also, as this is a matter of process, the Chair of
Council.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Cllr Keal – Group Leader – Liberal
Democrats
Cllr Keal was consulted about the nomination for the Norton West Ward. She responded
that she didn’t feel there was any need to have another member from Norton West on this
group and she is happy to be involved as both a town and district councillor
Date consultation completed
03-07-20
Name of consultee

Cllr Burr – Group Leader – Independent
Group
Cllr Burr was consulted about the nomination for the Malton Ward.
Name of consultee

Date consultation completed

07-07-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
The Head of Waste and Environment consulted with the Chair of Council who confirmed
that progressing with the nominations was supported on the basis that all Group Leaders
had been consulted which would have been the process if a meeting of Council had taken
place.
Date consultation completed
15-07-20
Cllr Arnold – Group Leader – Ryedale First
Independents
Cllr Arnold was consulted and supported the nominations.
Name of consultee

Date consultation completed

15-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 115

Name of consultee
Cllr Clark – Group Leader – Liberal Group
Cllr Clark declined to comment on the basis that he did not consider he should be
consulted on this decision.
Date consultation completed
16-07-20
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is urgently required to ensure oversight and representation of local views. The
decision reflects the wishes of ward members and gives a cross-section of political
representatives.
Date consultation completed
17-07-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is approved.
on consultation
Date
17-07-20

Page 116

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

GARY HOUSDEN. HEAD OF PLANNING AND
REGULATORY SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To determine three planning applications and one enforcement matter following the
consultation meeting of the members of the Planning Committee held on the 4 August
2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the following applications are determined as follows:

(i)

Item 1. Refusal for the following reasons:

1 The proposed use of the site and associated activity would generate noise, odour and
disturbance that would be detrimental to the amenities currently enjoyed by the
occupants of adjacent dwellings contrary to Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan
Local Plan Strategy (2013)
2 The site is located in close proximity to the edge of Malton Town Centre at a transition
point where the predominant surrounding land use is residential. The proposal, by virtue
of the scale of operations and the nature of the uses proposed together with its
associated activity, is out of character with the predominant (residential) land use and to
the detriment of the ambience of the immediate locality and in this respect the proposal
is contrary to Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan Local Plan Strategy (2013).
3 The proposed development is by virtue of its height, span, building footprint and
external finish, industrial is its scale and appearance. The proposed design is considered
to be incongruous in the existing street scene and it would detract from the traditional
built form and character of this part of the town and would be contrary to Policies SP16
and SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy

3.0

(ii)

Item 2. Conditional Approval (pending confirmation from the Secretary of State
of a call-in request decision)

(iii)

Item 3. Conditional Approval

(iv)

Item 4. Approve and proceed to take enforcement action.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 117

3.1

The process for determining those planning applications and the enforcement case
(which would otherwise be determined by the planning committee) under Urgency
Powers has been agreed.

3.2

In order to inform the determination of the applications and the enforcement case, a
consultation meeting of the members of Planning Committee was held at 6.00pm on 4
August 2020. Three planning applications and one planning enforcement report were
considered by the members of Planning Committee during the virtual meeting. The
members that participated in the meeting were as follows:
Councillor P Andrews
Councillor Cleary
Councillor Goodrick (Chair)
Councillor Graham
Councillor Hope
Councillor Mackenzie
Councillor Mason
Councillor Potter
Councillor Riby
Councillor Windress (Vice Chair)

3.3

In advance of the consultation meeting, hard copies of officer reports covering each
item, site photographs and update papers were distributed to every councillor attending
the meeting. All applicants and third parties were also informed of the decision making
process under urgency powers in advance of the virtual meeting and were asked to
submit any further representations before 11.00 am on the 4 August 2020.

3.4

Further written representations were received in relation to the following items




Item 1. Written statement/ speech from the applicant.
Item 2. Written Statements/speeches from Wombleton Parish Council and 6 Third
party objectors.
Item 3. Written statement from the applicant.

3.5

The Officer reports, site photographs and the further written representations of
applicants and third parties are on the application files.

3.6

At the start of the meeting the Chair confirmed the purpose of the meeting, meeting
etiquette and her intention that the meeting would be conducted in a way that would
closely mirror the consideration of applications at formal meetings of the planning
committee. For each application this included: a short presentation by officers; written
statements from applicants and third parties to be read out in full (in lieu of public
speaking); questions to officers; debate, followed by a vote for each item.

3.7

Members were advised that Item 2 was the subject of a call in request to the Secretary
of State. Officers reported that they had confirmed with the national planning casework
unit that a decision would not be issued until the Secretary of State has confirmed
whether he will determine the application.

3.8

The outcome of the consultation meeting, which is to be followed by the Chief
Executive in determining the applications is as follows:

Page 118

Item 1

Item 2

Item 3

Item 4

Officer
Recommendation

Conditional
Approval.

Conditional
Approval

Moved

Refusal

Conditional
Approval
(
subject to further
revisions
to
proposed
condition 5)
Approval

To
take
Enforcement
Action in line with
the
recommendations
in the report.
Officer
Recommendation

Cllr Andrews

Cllr Windress

Cllr Mason

Cllr Mackenzie

Cllr Riby

Cllr Goodrick

Cllr Andrews

Cllr Andrews

For/Refuse
For/Refuse
For/Refuse
For/Refuse
For/Refuse
Abstain
Declared Interest
Against/Approve
For/Refuse
Against/Approve
6 Refusal
1 Abstention
2 Approve

Against/ Refuse
For/Approve
For/Approve
Abstain
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
Against/Refuse
Against/Refuse
For/Approve
6Approve
3 Refuse
1 Abstention

For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
10 Approve
Unanimous

For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
For/Approve
10 Approve

REFUSE

MINDED
APPROVE

APPROVE

APPROVE
/PROCEED WITH
ENFORCEMENT
ACTION

Seconded
Vote
Cllr Andrews
Cllr Cleary
Cllr Goodrick
Cllr Graham
Cllr Hope
Cllr Mackenzie
Cllr Mason
Cllr Potter
Cllr Riby
Cllr Windress
Decision/
Recommendation
to
CEO
and
Leader

TO

Approval

3.9

The members resolved to refuse Item 1 against officer recommendation. In considering
the report and following a site visit, the members expressed concern over the impact
of the proposed development on: the residential amenity of the occupiers of nearby
residential properties; the nature and character of land uses in the locality and the built
form and character of the building group and immediate locality. The members placed
greater weight on the impact of the proposal on these issues in the planning balance.

3.10

The members were minded to approve item 2 and in the knowledge that further minor
revisions were required to condition 5. The condition is proposed to read as follows:
5 The land edged in Blue and the land edged in Red as shown in the site Layout Plan
24.02.2020. Is subject to the following requirements:
Within the Runway Strip as defined by CAA CAP 168 for a Code 1A non-instrument
runway by there shall be no obstacles under any circumstances including fences and
trees, positioned on or above the ground in accordance with site layout plan WA-HL1.1.
Within the extended 30 degree zones from the marked take off points 105 metres in
from each end and which are sectors either side of the runway centre line identified as
safety areas for the purposes of CAA CAP 793 (RESA CAP 168 3.68) there shall be
no obstacles under any circumstances including fences and trees, positioned on or
above the ground in accordance with site layout plan WA-HL-1.1.

Page 119

No obstacles (including trees) shall penetrate or protrude through the Transitional
Surface as identified in CAA CAP 168 for a Code 1A non-instrument runway.
No obstacles (including trees) shall penetrate or protrude through the Approach
Surface as identified in CAA CAP 168 for a Code 1A non-instrument runway.
In the event of cranes being required during construction they either do not penetrate
the Transitional Surface or notice is provided to the owner of runway 17/35 of the timing
and duration of such events.

Reason: To ensure that the safe operation of the runway is not prejudiced, in
accordance with Policy SP20 (General Development Management Issues) of the
adopted Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy which requires that adjacent land uses are
not compromised by new development, and in accordance with the hereby approved
plans.
INFORMATIVES
The Runway Strip includes a defined zone around the runway. It should be at least
32.4 metres wide from the centreline of the runway in the case of runway 17/35 in
accordance with CAA CAP 168, and it also extends, notionally, 30m from the runway
threshold (ends).
There are also zones of land forming 30o sectors from the marked take off points 105
metres in from each runway end to either side of the centre line of the runway extending
away from the runway thresholds (ends). These are identified at either end of the
runway as safety areas for the purposes of CAA CAP 793. (RESA CAP 168 3.68)
The Transitional Surface sometimes known as Slope of the Transitional Obstacle
Limitation Surface, is a non-physical boundary. It starts at the outer side edge of the
Runway Strip, and representing a 1:5 rising slope identified the area within which no
obstacle is allowed to be higher (penetrate) that level rising up to a height of 45 metres.
The Approach Surface is an Obstacle Limitation Surface and commences at ground
level at each end of the Runway Strip (thus 30m from the runway end) with a
corresponding width and rising away from the Runway Strip and away from ground
level at a slope of 1:20 and with a diverging angle of 10 degrees each side. It comprises
a non-physical surface above which a plane may fly to land safely.
4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The recommendations are made taking into account planning decision making
principles, including the policies of the development plan and material planning
considerations. The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been
followed.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Not applicable
b)

Legal
The Council’s agreed process under urgency powers has been followed

Page 120

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other specific implications associated with the recommendations.

Supporting documents to planning applications are available on the Council’s planning
portal. Please note that any documents not currently accessible online due to the covid-19
public health emergency will be made available as soon as possible.
Relevant documents for the applications considered in this decision notice are as follows:
Item 1: Officer reports, application supporting material, consultation responses, applicant’s
statement
Item 2: Officer reports, application supporting material, consultation responses, Statements
from the Parish Council and objectors
Item 3: Officer report, application supporting material, consultation responses, Statement
from the applicant
Item 4: Officer report

https://planningregister.ryedale.gov.uk/caonlineapplications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

Page 121

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation has been undertaken with the Planning Committee Chair and its members, as
agreed under the approved process for dealing with planning applications under urgency
powers, which would normally have gone to Committee. Consultation is now required with
the Leader.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is agreed as the decisions reflect the outcome of the consultation planning meeting.
Date consultation completed

8.0

07-08-20

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO
(Louise Wood) based on The recommendations are agreed.
consultation
Date
07-08-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 122

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

AGREEMENT OF THE PROCESS TO CONSIDER THE
SUBMISSION TO GOVERNMENT OF THE YORK AND
NORTH YORKSHIRE DEVOLUTION ASKS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

PHILLIP SPURR – PROGRAMME DIRECTOR,
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
PARTNERSHIPS

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To determine whether RDC considers its agreement to the submission of the York and
North Yorkshire devolution asks to Government under Urgency Powers, or whether
the decision to consider submission of the asks is taken through a formal committee
and Full Council meeting.

1.2

It must be stressed that under whichever circumstance a decision is taken upon
whether to support submission of the asks, this would be the start of a negotiation
process with Government. A decision would not, at this stage, be about agreeing the
asks or a final negotiated devolution deal. It would simply be about endorsing the
submission to Government so that devolution negotiation can commence.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

To consider whether RDC:



Endorses the submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution asks to
Government under Urgency Powers, or
Takes a decision about the submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution
asks to Government through the democratic process, which will involve
submission to P&R followed by full Council.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

In its manifesto in 2019, the Conservative Party set out an ambition for full devolution
across England. In essence this involves Central Government devolving some powers
down to local level, and committing to a programme of investment to drive economic
growth.

3.2

Any area that seeks a devolution deal must prepare proposals setting out what level
of strategic investment is requested from Government, and how that investment would
be spent to drive future sustainable growth. Proposals also include how the local
governance structure would work for the devolved geography.

3.3

Many councils around the country are currently discussing whether, or how, they might
want to engage in the devolution agenda, and what benefits it could bring to their

Page 123

residents. The Leaders of the Councils in York and North Yorkshire have also been
having such discussions.
3.4

A devolution deal proposal for York and North Yorkshire has been worked up. If the
proposal is goes ahead and is accepted by Government, it could mean investment of
around £2.4bn on initiatives to transform places, lead the way on a green future,
support businesses and people, and make communities safer.

3.5

For the residents of Ryedale, it could mean major investment into improved transport
infrastructure, digital inclusion, vibrant market towns, housing and skills. It could also
see organisations in our district becoming part of a world centre of excellence for
bioscience and bio-renewables.

3.6

Specifically, proposals within the devolution asks comprise:

3.7

Officers have worked with the York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership
and Councils across the area over many months to help shape the proposals to reflect
the needs of Ryedale.

3.8

Meetings to discuss the draft proposals were held with Group Leaders on 6th May and
27th May 2020, and on 19th May an email was sent to all Members inviting comments
on the proposals. This generated six responses with respondents recognising the
importance of devolution and the potential benefits it could bring to Ryedale, while
raising concerns around governance, and highlighting the need for a strong Ryedale
voice in the forward process.

3.9

A further All-Member Briefing was held on 23rd July 2020 to outline the final devolution
proposal, including presentations on the overarching deal and on what opportunities it
could offer to Ryedale. There was recognition in this meeting of the importance of
securing a deal and support for the submission of the asks to Government.

3.10

RDC (like all other Councils across York and North Yorkshire) is required to confirm its
support for the submission of the asks prior to submission to Government. It must be

Page 124

stressed that at this stage RDC is simply being asked to consider endorsing
submission of the asks as the basis of negotiations with Government, and is
formally agreeing the asks themselves. Any formal decision upon the asks and
negotiated devolution deal will be the subject of formal consideration through
Council’s committee and Council processes later in the year.

the
not
the
the

3.11

Consideration of agreement to the submission the asks could be taken under Urgency
Powers. Alternatively, a decision could be delayed until it can progress through P&R
and Full Council, which would allow the opportunity for the matter to be considered
through a formal decision-making process with Elected Members.

3.12

In parallel with the devolution process on 7th July Simon Clarke, the Minister of State
at the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, met with all Council
Leaders across York and North Yorkshire to discuss devolution. Chief Executives were
also in attendance. At that meeting, the Minister again sent a clear message that the
Government would be interested to see devolution proposals from York and North
Yorkshire. However, a significant change was communicated, with the Minister making
it clear that devolution proposals needed to be linked to local government
reorganisation. Work on reorganisation proposals is progressing in parallel to this
devolution process.

3.13

Given that devolution is now inextricably linked to local government reorganisation and
the timescales for delivering devolution have slipped to 2023, any delay in the decisionmaking timescale on submission of the asks is unlikely to have a significant impact.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Should RDC not agree to the submission of the devolution asks to Government this
would potentially threaten the overall York and North Yorkshire devolution deal.

4.2

If a devolution deal is not agreed £2.4bn of investment into York and North Yorkshire
would potentially be lost, with Ryedale losing its share of that investment. The powers
and funding that devolution offers to Ryedale and the wider North Yorkshire area are
crucial to our future economic prosperity. This is even more so in the context of the
Covid emergency as we seek to support and grow the district’s economy.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There are no direct financial implications associated with the submission of the
devolution asks to Government. As highlighted above, devolution offers the
potential to bring £2.4bn of investment into York and North Yorkshire with a
significant proportion of this being invested into the economy of Ryedale.

b)

Legal
The are no direct legal issues associated with agreeing to submit the asks. RDC
is not formally agreeing the asks at this stage but rather simply endorsing their
submission as the basis of negotiations with Government.
Any decision upon formal RDC agreement of the asks, and the resultant devolution
deal proposals, will be taken though the normal committee/Council processes.

Page 125

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
The asks are anchored by a devolution vison of York and North Yorkshire
becoming England’s first carbon negative economy.
Equalities issues will be addressed in the detailed development of individual
devolution investment proposals.

Page 126

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

My advice is that the devolution asks should be considered first at Policy and Resources
Committee and then Full Council to allow full and detailed consideration by elected
members.
Consultation has already taken place with elected members.
As this is a decision about process and this item of business would have been considered
by Policy and Resources Committee and Full Council under business as usual, the Leader,
as Chair of Policy and Resources Committee, and the Chair of Council should be consulted.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2

Name of consultee
Elected Members
Draft devolution proposals, and the forward approvals process (including a presentation
by James Farrar, Chief Operating Officer of the York and North Yorkshire LEP), discussed
with Group Leaders (Cllrs Arnold, Burr and Duncan) on 6th May 2020. (Cllr Keal was
unable to join the call, and was subsequently briefed separately on 27th May. Cllr Clark
gave his apologies to the meeting.)
All-Member email issued on 19th May inviting comments on the draft devolution
proposals. Six sets of comments were received (from Cllrs Arnold, Burr, Duncan,
Goodrick, Keal and Oxley). Comments are attached.
Responses to the All-Member email discussed with Group Leaders (Cllrs Arnold, Burr,
Duncan and Keal) on 27th May 2020. Cllr Clark gave his apologies to the meeting.
All-Member devolution briefing session held on 23rd July, comprising:
presentation of the overall devolution proposals by James Farrar
presentation on potential opportunities offered by devolution to Ryedale by Phillip
Spurr
Question & Answer session
Date consultation completed

Between 06-05-20 & 23-07-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is not urgently required, and is also likely to be controversial given it relates to local
“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 127

government reorganisation, therefore this item should be considered through the formal
member decision-making process.
Date consultation completed

26-08-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
Cllr Cleary was consulted on 27 August 2020 and advised that if this is to be decided on at
all in its current form it should be through the formal member decision-making process.
Date consultation completed

8.0

27-08-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based A member decision on this matter is required under the
on consultation
Committee/Council process.
Date
27-08-20

Page 128

Devolution – Stage 1 Consultation, Elected Member Feedback
Elected Member
Cllr Arnold

Page 129

Comments
 everyone agrees we should join, we cannot not join whether we like it or not.
 we need to work together to get best value for local people
 we need a voice on any committees to stand up for the north
 is HS2 best value for money
 need a good deal so we are not left behind
 share with other Councils to get the A64 moving
 join together to get rid of duplicated working
 malton-tc.gov.uk needs a southern bypass or ring road to cater for the extra trains
 how local are decisions going to be
 need to level up the north and south
 we’ve heard about broadband before but it never happens
 electric cars will never happen we will never provide enough charging points or generate enough electricity
 more affordable housing, great, low carbon housing great
 no powers given up without local consent- not sure about that
 spatial plan is good
 circular economy is good
 everything is not about Malton-tc.gov.uk
 if we don’t join we will miss out
 when you look at the money and the spending proposals it’s not that much really

Cllr Goodrick



Cllr Oxley

Summarised comments as follows:
 Stressed the importance of greater district council joint working; a clear role for the LEP going forward; an
independent Elected Mayor; and the importance of a bottom up approach

Cllr Duncan

 Group consensus is that Ryedale should be part of the process, and the benefits of devolution can be seen

Concerns about what's in it for Ryedale. I can see the advantages in some areas and disadvantage in others.

Page 130







The additional funding and powers on offer are welcomed
It is clear that Ryedale needs the same voting rights as bigger authorities
The key to success will be working together
Need to clarify whether the LEP chair is on the CA board/voting rights held
Need to clarify how the national park fits into the process?

Cllr Burr






Is some reluctance, but a recognition of the need to do this
Devolution offers positives for Ryedale – ie. important investment
Need to clarify who picks up the cost of the mayor/mayor’s office
Need to clarify issues of power/control/who feeds Ryedale’s views into the mayor

Cllr Keal

 Is a danger that a small authority like Ryedale could get lost – need to avoid this
 Concerns around the cost of the mayor/mayor’s office
 Need to be clear where the power base lies

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

RYEDALE MARKETS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE, HEAD OF CUSTOMER
SERVICE

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To seek approval to adhere to the Government guidance that Markets remain open for
essential goods and the closing of stalls for non-essential goods. To request that
Markets traders are given a three month holiday on pitch site fees for all traders as a
gesture of support local business in challenging times.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

Markets stay open for essential goods and we inform non-essential market
traders that they cannot trade.

(ii)

Approval for a three month suspension on all market fees including essential
traders is given.

(iii)

It is noted that the Police will now enforce non-compliance on social distancing

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Guidance from the Government Covid-19 and NMTF (National Market Traders
Federation) recommends that all markets should remain open but only for essential
goods which include, food and grocery, household goods, hardware supplies, bicycle,
pet supplies and newsagents. The recommendation that all other traders that are nonessential should cease trading.

3.2

The closure of non-essential stalls will have a significant effect on traders’ livelihoods.
The market traders have made a request that in the circumstances Ryedale District
Council supports them in these difficult times and suspends fees. Other local
authorities have suspended pitch site fees and have guaranteed the market traders
their pitches back after the lockdown.

3.3

Ryedale District Council has a very good working relationship with the Market traders
which we want to maintain. We have already received complaints that we have not
done enough to help support them in this difficult time.

3.4

Financial assistance at this time would ensure our good working relationship and also
help towards traders getting back to normal after the Covid-19 outbreak and

Page 131

maintaining that good community spirit.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is significant reputational risk to Ryedale District Council if it does not support
our local Markets in these challenging times. There is a financial cost to the council,
however, not suspending fees could result in market traders possibly running up debt
due to none payment.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There is a financial cost to the council over the three months period of suspensions
of fees as highlighted below total cost over a three month period to suspending
market fees would be £ 13,500
Markets
Impact

Financial
Weekly

Helmsley
Food
Essential
Non-Essential
Non-attendancenotified
Total

Pickering
Food
Essential
Non-Essential
Non-attendancenotified
Total

No
Pitches
4
2
9
8

Income £

3
Months
Impact
Income £

100.00
50.00
225.00
200.00

1200.00
600.00
2700.00
2400.00

23

575.00

6,900.00

Weekly
No
Pitches
5
2
10
5

Income £

3
Months
Impact
Income £

125.00
50.00
250.00
125.00

1,500.00
600.00
3,000.00
1,500.00

22

550.00

6,600.00

b)

Legal
Government have issued Covid-19 guidance that Markets should only remain
open for essential good.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate

Page 132

Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 133

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required to comply with government guidance and support market traders
at this difficult time. I have been able to discuss this with Steve Arnold (Deputy Leader of
Council; Ryedale First Independent group leader; Helmsley ward member) and Di Keal
(Liberal Democrat group leader) who agreed with this approach.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved
on consultation
Date
31-03-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 134

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 12 May 2020 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget of £40,000 is available, each organisation can apply for up to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 135

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 12 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
12-05-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 12 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
12-05-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
22-05-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 136

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 12.05.20
Available to allocate: £40,000

Page 137

Date
Grant
received Reference Organisation
Ryedale Community Transport - CV19 additional
29.04.20 EG01
activity
29.04.20 EG02
Helmsley Walled Garden, Horticultural Therapy
Sight Support Ryedale - Post Covid 19 recovery
29.04.20 EG03
activity
29.04.20 EG04
Ryedale Special Families - loss of income
30.04.20 EG05
Ryedale Liberal Club, Loss of income
1.05.20
EG06
Ryedale Lions - fish and chip delivery
1.05.20
EG07
Musical Memories, Tune a Day
1.05.20
EG08
Kirkbymoorside Cricket Club, loss of income1
Total
1

Grant
Grant
Requested Recommended

Cllr Cussons and Cllr Riby have been consulted as Ward Members. No feedback was received.

£4,000 defer
£4,000
£4,000
£4,000 defer
£3,000 reject
£1,500
£4,000
£3,000 reject
£27,500

£4000
£4000

£1500
£4000
£13,500

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 19 May 2020 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Providing the recommendations of 12.05.20 are approved, a budget of £26,500
remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each organisation can apply for up
to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)

Page 139

None

Page 140

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.
Application EG12 comes from a community interest company called Environmental Smart,
of which Councillor Steve Mason and his wife are directors. Councillor Mason made this
declaration to the Monitoring Officer, both verbally and in writing. He has not taken any part
in the decision making process and confirmed that he would not seek to influence the
decision making process in any way as an elected member. This was drawn to the attention
of those considering the application, so that they were fully aware and could declare any
conflict of interest which may arise in their own participation (such as being a close personal
friend). No conflicts of interest were declared.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 19 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
19-05-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 19 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
19-05-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 141

Date

01-06-20

Page 142

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 19.05.20
Available to allocate: £26,500
Grant Reference
EG01
EG04
EG09
EG11
EG12

1

Organisation
Ryedale Community Transport - CV19 additional activity
Ryedale Special Families - loss of income
Pickering Town Football Club, loss of income 1
Next Steps Mental Health Resource, 1 to 1 client support
and loss of income
Environmental Smart, Ryedale Volunteer Network
expenses
Total

Grant Requested
£4,000
£4,000
£1,200

Grant Recommended
£4,000
£4,000
Reject

£4,000

£4,000

£4,000
£17,200

reject
£12,000

Ward members consulted 19.05.20. Cllr Joy Andrews , Cllr Carrie-Anne Brackstone , Cllr Mike Potter , Cllr Clive Wass

Page 143

Feedback:

21.05.20 Cllr Mike Potter
After consultation with the other Pickering councillors,
Whilst we can understand the need to prioritise a limited pot of money, it's worrying that some clubs and societies could be at serious risk of sinking, when
they will need to remain as an important part of the Pickering community - particularly those with costly physical infrastructure to maintain, and likewise all
across Ryedale. This of course includes the club facilities and other events that they organise being put at risk. Various sports clubs, the Memorial Hall and
Kirk Theatre spring to mind.
On the surface, it's understandable that organisations providing immediate support to vulnerable people will be prioritised, but serious thought needs to be
given to consider that many of these organisations are already receiving direct support in the form of money, contributions and voluntary assistance from
within the community, whereas others are not. We need to ensure that important community facilities have access to enough temporary support to be able to
survive the crisis and continue their valuable community contributions into the future. The future social costs of their loss would far exceed a small bail out
grant.

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 26 May 2020 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Providing the recommendations of 19.05.20 are approved, a budget of £14,500
remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each organisation can apply for up
to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate

Page 145

Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 146

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 26 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
26-05-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
A consultation meeting was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working
Party on 26 May 2020. The consultation meeting informed the recommendations made by
the Head of Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
26-05-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
01-06-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 26.05.20

Available to allocate: £14,500

Grant Reference
EG 13
EG 14

Organisation
Scarborough, Whitby, Ryedale Mind, Mental Health Support
Worker
Scarborough & Ryedale Carers Resource Partnership, Volunteer
Expenses

Total
1

Condition: that the funding is used to support Ryedale residents only.

Page 149

Note: Appendix updated on 30 June 2020 to correct an administrative error.

Grant
Requested

Grant Recommended

£3885

£38851

£2000
£5885

Defer. More information
sought.
£3885

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 02.06.20 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget of £10,615 remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each
organisation can apply for up to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 151

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
02.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
02-06-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
02.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
02-06-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
05-06-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 152

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME: 02.06.20
Available to allocate: £10,615

Grant Reference
EG 15

1

Organisation
Acorn Community Care, client group support
Total

Grant
Requested
£3968

Grant Recommended
£39681

£3968

£3968

Additional condition: Further information on how the additional support workers will support clients in their own supported living accommodation that is in
addition to what they already do should be provided prior to grant payment.

Page 153

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 09.06.20 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget of £6,647 remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each organisation
can apply for up to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 155

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
09.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
09-06-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
09.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
09-06-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
10-06-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 156

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 09.06.20
Available to allocate: £6,647

1

Grant Reference

Organisation

EG 01
EG 16

Ryedale Community Transport – Amendment to previous
application detail. (No amendment to amount.)
Thornton Dale Hub, Britain in Bloom 1
Total (New applications)

Grant
Requested
£4,000
(previously
approved)
£2770

Grant Recommended

Amendment approved
Rejected 2

£2770

0

Thornton Dale Ward Members (Cllrs Oxley and Delaney) consulted 28.05.20

Page 157

The Hub does a tremendous job in Thornton le Dale and is active in many community areas.
Specifically during the last months it has been the bedrock of the volunteer group supporting and helping people through the COVID situation.
Recognition at this level is a significant achievement and honour for the group and the village.
The work of the hub has a beneficial impact on both community involvement and pride and I would love to see this opportunity maximised.
To this end I am happy to support their application.
Will Oxley
Additional recommendation: The applicant be given special dispensation for a ‘late’ application to the S106 Public Open Space and Recreation grant fund for
this project. (Closing date was 31.05.20.)
2

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 30.06.20 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget of £6,647 remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each organisation
can apply for up to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 159

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
30.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
30-06-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
30.06.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
30-06-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO The recommendations are approved.
(Phillip Spurr) based on
consultation
Date
06.07.20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 160

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 30.06.20
Available to allocate: £6,647

Grant Reference

Organisation

EG17

Norton Hive Library, Loss of Income

Total

1

Grant
Requested
£4000
£4000

Grant Recommended
£4000 1
£4000

Additional recommendation: The applicant be requested to report on re-opening preparations for Norton Hive Library and how this grant will be used to
support re-opening requirements.

Page 161

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The establishment of the Emergency Community Grants scheme was agreed 22 April
2020. Applications are considered on a weekly basis by the Head of Customer
Service. She makes recommendations on grant awards to the Chief Executive
following consultation with the Chair of the Grants Working Party and the Leader of
the Council. The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or
defer applications received. The Elected Ward Member will be informed if the
group/activity is specific to their ward area. Under urgency powers, the Chief
Executive will make the decision on grant awards, based on the recommendation
received.

1.2

This report contains the recommendations from 07.07.20 at Appendix A.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk are mitigated through the appraisal process. This highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the Emergency Grants criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget of £2,647 remains from the original budget of £40,000. Each organisation
can apply for up to £4,000.
b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 163

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

The process previously agreed for dealing with Emergency Grant applications requires
consultation with the Leader and Chair of the Grants Working Party. This has taken place
in respect of the applications referred to. For ward specific applications, consultation takes
place with local ward members as part of the appraisal process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
07.07.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
07-07-20
Cllr Arnold – Chair of the Grants Working
Party
Consultation was held with the Leader and the Chair of the Grants Working Party on
07.07.20. The consultation informed the recommendations made by the Head of
Customer Service and Communities set out in Appendix A.
Date consultation completed
07-07-20
Name of consultee

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the Acting CEO
(Phillip Spurr) based on The recommendations are approved.
consultation
Date
10-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 164

COVID 19 EMERGENCY COMMUNITY GRANTS SCHEME : 07.07.20
Available to allocate: £2,647

Grant Reference
EG14

Organisation
S&RCR Partnership, transition costs. (Resubmission
following deferral)
Total

Grant
Requested
£2000
£2000

Grant Recommended
£2000
£2000

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

COMMUNITY, FLOOD AND SECTION 106 GRANT
APPLICATIONS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

MARGARET WALLACE
HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

The Council offers a range of ‘community based’ grants to support voluntary groups
and activities.

1.2

Community, Flood and Section 106 Grants (Open Space and Recreation)
applications are considered three times per annum by the Grants Working Party.

1.3

The recommendations that can be made include to accept, reject or defer
applications received and to add any particular grant conditions.

1.4

Elected Ward Members are consulted if the group/activity is specific to their ward
area.

1.5

Under urgency powers, the Chief Executive will make the final decision on grant
awards, based on the recommendations received from the Grants Working Party.

1.6

The recommendations from 06.07.20 Grants Working Party are attached at Appendix
A.

1.7

The report contains Ward Member consultation comments at Appendix B.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That the recommendations in Appendix A are approved.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The grants will support community and voluntary sector projects in Ryedale.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risks are mitigated through the appraisal process, which highlights issues such as
the deliverability of the projects and their fit with the criteria.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There is £48,694 available in the Community Grants budget. There is also
sufficient Section 106 funding available to support the recommendations.

Page 167

b)

Legal
The Decision will result in Grant Offer letters being prepared. The award of grant
support to groups is public information.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 168

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Recommendations from the Grants Working Party are normally considered by the Policy
and Resources Committee and consultation is therefore required with the Leader, who is
also the Chair of this Committee. For ward specific applications, consultation takes place
with local ward members as part of the appraisal process. The following members were
present when the Grants Working Party made these recommendations: Cllr Arnold in the
Chair and Cllrs King and Garbutt Moore.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is urgently required to ensure charity and community groups can access muchneeded funded. The recommendations from Grants Working Party should be agreed.
Date consultation completed
17-07-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
17-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 169

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A Grant Working Party Recommendations 06.07.20
Members in attendance: Cllrs Arnold, Garbutt Moore and King. Officers in attendance: Simon Copley, Jos Holmes, Jane Graham.
Community Grants

Applicant

Grant
Reference

Total
Project Cost

Grant
Requested

Grant
requested
%
intervention

Recommendation

%
Intervention

Ryedale Foodbank, Additional Support Requirements

CG 99

£20,240

£1,000

5%

£1,000

5%

Community Counselling, Young People Support

CG 100

£34,182

£5,000

15%

£5,000

15%

CG 101

£2,500

£625

25%

£625

25% 1

CG 102
CG 103

£30,000
£13,950

£7,500
£3,480

25%
25%

£5,000
£3,480

17%2
25%

CG 104

£1,000

£750

75%

£750

75%

CG 105
CG 106

£10,654
£584

£2,600
£460

24%
79%

£2,600
£460

24%
79%

Scarborough and Ryedale Carers Resource, Mental
Health Support

CG 107

£15,011

£3,750

25%

£3,750

25%

Sheriff Hutton Junior Cricket Club, Pitch Improvement
Equipment,

CG 108

£25,794

£5,000

19%

£5,000

19%

£153,915

£30,165

Page 171

Malton and Old Malton Football Club, Storage
Building.
Brooklyn Football Club, Pitch Rental
Sight Support Ryedale, Confidence Building
Pickering Ladies Hockey Club, Goalkeeping
Equipment
Welburn Village Hall, AV and Kitchen Improvements.
Westow Cricket Club, Outside Area Improvements.

Total

£27,665

Additional Conditions:
1
2

Grant to be released at a time no sooner than when all relevant planning permissions have been approved.

Grant to be released at a time no sooner than when the club can demonstrate that it can cover any shortfall, with details to be provided in writing to
Ryedale District Council

Section 106 Public Open Space and Recreation Grants
Applicant

Grant
Reference

Total Project
Cost

Grant
Requested

Recommendation

%
Intervention

Ampleforth Activity Class, Equipment and
Storage

S106-66

£459

£459

100%

£459

100%

Pickering Recreation Ground Committee,
Pitch Improvement

S106-067

£71,329

£7,150

10%

£7,150

10%

S106-68

£1,584

£1,584

100%

£1,584

100% 1

Thornton Dale Village Hub, Britain in
Bloom equipment

Additional Conditions:
1

Grant requested
% intervention

Page 172

Government Guidelines regarding social distancing to be adhered to during this project

Appendix B. Ward Member Comments
Project
Code
Ward Members consulted
Malton and Old Malton
Football Club
Brooklyn Football Club

CG 101

Pickering Ladies Hockey
Club
Welburn Village Hall

CG 104

Westow Cricket Club

Cllr Burr: Agree

CG 105

Cllrs P Andrews, Burr and
Raine
Cllrs P Andrews, Burr and
Raine
Cllrs J Andrews, Brackstone,
Potter, Wass
Cllrs Graham, Cleary

CG 106

Cllrs Graham, Cleary

Cllr Cleary :I have great pleasure in endorsing this application for a well run and well used
facility. Cllr Graham: I am very happy to endorse this application from Westow Cricket Club.
The members have worked extremely hard over the last few years to get the pavilion up and
running as a facility, not only for the Cricket Club, but also as a first class community centre.
The premises are well used for many social functions, including that of a place for people who
might otherwise feel lonely or cut off from village life, as well as providing sporting and fitness
sessions. In the present circumstances, they are well-deserving of this Community Grant to
enable them to carry on with this valuable community resource.

CG 108

Cllr Hope

S106-66

Cllr Bailey

I am aware of this application I endorse this the youngsters are very active it would be good if
we could help them with a grant.
I'm very supporting of this activity.

CG 102

Page 173
Sheriff Hutton Junior Cricket
Club
Ampleforth Activity Class,
Equipment and Storage
Pickering Recreation Ground
Committee, Pitch
Improvements
Thornton Dale Village Hub,
Britain in Bloom equipment

Ward Members comments

No comments
No comments
Gllr Cleary: I have no hesitation in endorsing this application. The Village Hall is very active and
the Committee strives to make full use of the facility which these improvements will enhance
and make more inclusive. Cllr Graham: I am very happy to endorse the application from this
group. I’m sure the improvements they indicate will enrich the experience for many people.

s106 - 067 Cllrs J Andrews, Brackstone, No comments
Potter, Wass
S106 - 68 Cllrs Oxley and Delaney

Cllr Oxley: The Hub does a tremendous job in Thornton le Dale and is active in many
community areas.Specifically during the last months it has been the bedrock of the volunteer
group supporting and helping people through the COVID situation.Recognition at this level is a
significant achievement and honour for the group and the village.The work of the hub has a
beneficial impact on both community involvement and pride and I would love to see this
opportunity maximised.To this end I am happy to support their application.

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

ADDITIONAL CAPACITY IN CUSTOMER SERVICES

OFFICER REQUESTING:

LOUISE WOOD, COVID PEOPLE WORKSTREAM
LEAD

PURPOSE
1.1

To appoint x6 Customer Services Assistants (front-line customer contact centre
operatives) on six month fixed-term contracts in order to respond to an increase in
citizen calls for service during the COVID public health emergency.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

Six additional Customer Services Assistants be appointed on a six-month
fixed term contract

(ii)

These are Grade 4 roles, with a salary of between £20,751-£22,911.
Assuming appointments are made at the top of the grade, and assuming 25%
on-costs, the maximum financial liability is: £85,914. This is requested from
the £250,000 emergency fund agreed by P&R in March 2020. Although this
is a maximum cost, it is anticipated that the actual cost may be slightly lower
as not all appointments will be made at the top of the grade.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

RDC has seen an uplift in calls from citizens due to COVID-19. We predict we will
continue to receive calls at a high level throughout the public health emergency –
especially as the government instruction to stay home means that customers are
more likely to call than visit the offices in person. To answer and direct citizen calls, it
is vital that RDC retains numbers in its frontline customer contact centre – which is
staffed by Customer Services Assistants.

3.2

At the same time as seeing an increase in demand, RDC is facing a reduction in
capacity in the Customer Services Team. This is due to members of the team having
to be redeployed into grant-making and benefits functions in order to support the
Council’s priorities during COVID. These posts need to be back-filled, and additional
capacity is also needed in order to cope with the continued extra demand.

3.3

RDC officers deem it prudent to recruit numbers beyond the immediate gaps, in order
to plan for potential staff absence of up to 30% due to sickness. This will protect the
frontline service, and enable citizen calls to continue to be answered and directed to
the correct place within the Council.

Page 175

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The customer service assistant role has been identified as a key worker under the
government definition. It requires some time spent at Ryedale House fulfilling rotas as
well as some home-working. We will mitigate health and safety risk by advertising that
candidates should be fit and well, and not in any of the most “at risk” categories for
COVID-19.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Maximum £85,914. This is requested from the £250,000 emergency fund agreed
by P&R in March 2020.

b)

Legal
None anticipated. Recruitment of these posts would be on fixed-term contract
and subject to HR law around such contracts. Notice period for termination of
contract would be one week.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None.

Page 176

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader as this would normally have been a member
decision owing to the costs involved.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan - Leader
This is urgently required to deal with increased customer demand and capacity constraints
at this critical time. I have been able to discuss this with Steve Arnold (Deputy Leader of
Council; Ryedale First Independent group leader) and Di Keal (Liberal Democrat group
leader) who agreed with this approach. I feel that additional capacity as required should
also be drawn from volunteers, including elected members and furloughed employees of
other public authorities.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
31-03-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 177

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

COVID-19 RESPONSE

OFFICER REQUESTING:

LOUISE WOOD – HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS,
TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is required as to whether the Covid-19 response is agreed as a Part B item,
given that decisions are now being made in line with the urgency powers set out in the
Constitution. This allows the Chief Executive to take decisions in consultation with
specified Elected Members.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The Covid-19 response is agreed as a Part B item.

(ii)

Consultation is required with the Leader and the Chair of Council.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The Chief Executive is now making decisions in line with the urgency powers available
to her under the Council’s Constitution, to ensure that the Council is able to respond
effectively to the ongoing Covid-19 public health emergency and service delivery can
continue with minimal risk to the public, Members and staff. It is recommended that
the response is agreed as a Part B item to provide clarity and transparency with regard
to the Council’s response to the pandemic.

3.2

Policy and Resources supported the report at its meeting, prior to urgency powers
being in place.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Not making a decision now is not an option. Not having access to immediate funding
will result in service delivery failure and could in the worst case scenario mean that we
aren’t able to support vulnerable people and communities.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial

Page 179

The funds identified are available in the Council’s Strategic Reserve. A financial
record of any decisions taken will be made.
b)

Legal
The Council’s Constitution authorises the Chief Executive to take decisions in
cases of emergency and urgency.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
All relevant implications are considered, as decisions are made relating to the
Council’s response to the Covid-19 situation.

Page 180

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader and the Chair of Council.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader
This is urgently required to support our citizens at this critical time. Further consultation on
spending within the agreed budget should take place with members as appropriate. I have
been able to discuss this with Michael Cleary (Chairman of Council), Steve Arnold (Deputy
Leader of Council; Ryedale First Independent group leader) and Di Keal (Liberal
Democrat group leader) who agreed with this approach.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
The Chair of Council’s role was to give advice on process, rather than substance, and he
agreed that as this was an urgent item it needed to be dealt with now, rather than held
over until Full Council could meet.
Date consultation completed

8.0

31-03-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved
on consultation
Date
31-03-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

6 MONTH RULE

OFFICER REQUESTING:

SIMON COPLEY – DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
MANAGER & DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is needed to grant a dispensation from the 6 month rule for any Members
who cannot attend meetings owing to Covid-19.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

A dispensation is approved from the 6 month rule for any Members who cannot
attend meetings owing to Covid-19.

(ii)

The Leader and Chair of Council is consulted.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure no Members are deemed to have resigned because they have not attended
meetings owing to illness or self-isolation.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

None

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b)

Legal
Legal advice has confirmed this is a lawful way to deal with this issue.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Page 183

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader and the Chair of Council as this is a matter of
process.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan - Leader
This is urgently required to ensure no member is penalised due to the coronavirus
outbreak. I have been able to discuss this with Michael Cleary (Chairman of Council),
Steve Arnold (Deputy Leader of Council; Ryedale First Independent group leader) and Di
Keal (Liberal Democrat group leader) who agreed with this approach. Power should be
delegated to the Monitoring Officer to give dispensation as required, after considering
circumstances on a case by case basis, but this power should last only until the next
meeting of Full Council, after which council can give dispensation as required.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
The Chair of Council was happy with this approach.
Date consultation completed

8.0

25-03-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
31-03-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 184

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

COUNCIL PLAN 2020-2024

OFFICER REQUESTING:

SIMON COPLEY – DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
MANAGER & DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is required as to whether to approve the Council Plan 2020-2024 or defer
the decision until the next Full Council meeting can take place.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

A decision is made as to whether to approve the Council Plan 2020-2024 or
defer the decision until the next Full Council meeting can take place.

(ii)

Consultation is required with the Leader of Council, who may wish to consult
with other Group Leaders, and the Chair of Council.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is necessary to make a decision as to whether the Council Plan 2020-2024 is
approved as a decision taken through the Covid-19 (Urgency Powers) procedure, or
whether the decision should be deferred to be taken by members at the next Full
Council meeting.

3.2

At the Policy and Resources Committee on 19 March 2020 members voted 4 in favour
and 2 against recommending the approval of the Council Plan to Full Council. The
Liberal Group had presented their suggested amendments to this meeting but these
were not moved as amendments, given there was to be opportunity for this at Full
Council.

3.3

Considerable engagement has taken place in developing the Council Plan, including
submissions from political groups, two member workshops, a staff workshop and a
staff questionnaire.

3.4

There is a need for a strategic document to guide council business. Once the Council
Plan has been approved, more detailed documents need to be prepared and this work
cannot be commissioned until the Plan is in place. The performance framework could
take up to 6 months to prepare, so delaying approval of the Council Plan could result
in a year’s delay in getting this framework in place.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

Page 185

4.1

There is a risk that if the Council Plan 2020-2024 is not approved at this time, future
planning and priority setting within the organisation will not be possible and progress
following the end of the public health emergency will occur more slowly.

4.2

Conversely, there is a risk that if the Plan is approved during the current emergency
situation, it will not be possible for open and full debate to occur between all members,
particularly given that not all political groups are supportive of the proposed Council
Plan 2020-2024.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Any financial implications arising from the implementation of the Council Plan
2020-2024 will be highlighted when detailed proposals are brought forward to
Members for approval.
b)

Legal
Any legal implications arising from the implementation of the Council Plan 20202024 will be highlighted when detailed proposals are brought forward to Members
for approval.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Any specific implications arising from the implementation of the Council Plan
2020-2024 will be highlighted when detailed proposals are brought forward to
Members for approval.

Page 186

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Consultation is required with the Leader and the Chair of Council.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan - Leader
Defer to the next meeting of Full Council. This is not urgently required. It is only right and
proper that the Council Plan is given full democratic scrutiny. I have been able to discuss
this with Michael Cleary (Chairman of Council), Steve Arnold (Deputy Leader of Council;
Ryedale First Independent group leader), Di Keal (Liberal Democrat group leader) and
John Clark (Liberal group leader) who agreed with this approach.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
The Chair of Council’s role was to give advice on process, rather than substance, and he
agreed that as this was not an urgent item and it would benefit from the input of all
members it did not need to be dealt with now, but held over until Full Council could meet.
Date consultation completed
31-03-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based Decision deferred until the next meeting of Full Council.
on consultation
Date
01-04-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 187

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

POSTPONEMENT OF ANNUAL COUNCIL

OFFICER REQUESTING:

SIMON COPLEY
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER & DEPUTY
MONITORING OFFICER

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A completed decision notice is requested to confirm postponement of the meeting of
Annual Council scheduled on 14 May 2020 until at least September 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

The meeting of Annual Council scheduled on 14 May 2020 to at least
September 2020 is endorsed.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Owing to the Covid-19 outbreak and associated restrictions it will not be possible to
hold an Annual Council meeting in May 2020 as scheduled. The government has
recognised this and allowed councils to postpone these meetings.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is no risk involved with postponing the meeting of Annual Council. All
appointments made at Annual Council in 2019 will continue until the next meeting.

4.2

The decision has been communicated to Elected Members and was discussed with
the Leader in advance of the communication being issued.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None.
b)

Legal
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020 allows the postponement of Annual Meetings of Councils.

Page 189

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None.

Page 190

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

As the date of Annual Council is set by Full Council and can only be changed by Full Council
or the Chair, this would normally be a member level decision and is clearly a matter of
process, so the Leader and the Chair of Council have been consulted in advance of the
decision being communicated to elected members.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
This was discussed with the Chair of Council on 27 April 2020, who confirmed he was
content with the decision.

Date consultation completed

27-04-20

Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This was discussed with the Leader of the Council on 20 April 2020 prior to a
communications being issued to all Elected Members, who confirmed he was happy with
this approach.

Date consultation completed

8.0

20-04-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is agreed
on consultation
Date
27-04-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 191

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

ELECTION PRINT PROCUREMENT

OFFICER REQUESTING:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SIMON COPLEY

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

To seek approval, as required under Financial Regulation 13.9, to undertake a
procurement for elections and electoral registration printing and associated mailing,
and enter into a contract with the successful supplier following a tender process.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that approval be given, as required under Financial Regulation 13.9,
to undertake a procurement for elections and electoral registration printing and
associated mailing, based on an anticipated spend of approximately £45k per year, for
an initial two year term, with the option to extend for two additional one year terms, and
enter into a contract with the successful supplier following an open tender process.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

A procurement process is required to be undertaken for election print arrangements
from 2021 and this needs to be run over the summer of 2020, to appoint a successful
supplier in order to commence works in autumn 2020 in preparation for the elections
in spring 2021.

3.2

The approval sought ensures that the procurement will be compliant with the Council’s
Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Ensuring Financial Regulations are complied with reduces the risk of any challenge to
the procurement process.

4.2

Timely procurement of a suitable specialist supplier supports risk management and
project planning for successful delivery of the elections in 2021 and subsequent years.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The anticipated spend is approximately £45k per year, for an initial two year term,
with the option to extend for two additional one year terms, subject to satisfactory

Page 193

performance and not exceeding the OJEU threshold.
The elements of spend related to electoral registration and District and Parish
elections are included routinely in the annual budget approved by Full Council.
Spend related to other elections is reimbursed to the Council by national
government, or, for the County elections, the County Council.
b)

Legal
There are no legal issues with the decision requested and the procurement
process proposed.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no other implications arising directly from this decision request. Health
and safety and climate change implications are considered as part of the
procurement process.

Page 194

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

Under business as normal, this decision would have been taken at Policy and Resources
Committee, so consultation is required with the Leader of Council, who Chairs this
Committee. As approval of the associated budgets is dealt with separately through the
Council’s budget setting process, this is not a Full Council decision.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
Cllr Duncan was consulted on 3 July 2020 and was satisfied with the recommendation.
Date consultation completed

8.0

03-07-20

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendation is approved.
on consultation
Date
03-07-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 195

This page is intentionally left blank

URGENCY POWERS
PRE-DECISION CONSULTATION

TITLE OF CONSULTATION:

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION TO ENABLE
VIRTUAL FULL COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

OFFICER REQUESTING:

SIMON COPLEY
HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0

PURPOSE

1.1

A decision is required in respect of proposed amendments to the Constitution to enable
virtual Council and/or Committee meetings to be held.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The proposed amendments to the Rules of Procedure – Meetings and
Proceedings of Full Council, outlined in Appendix A, be approved and the
Constitution updated accordingly.
The proposed amendments outlined to the Rules of Procedure – Meetings and
Proceedings of Committees, outlined in Appendix B, be approved and the
Constitution updated accordingly.
The proposed amendments to the Rules of Procedure – Miscellaneous
matters, outlined in Appendix C, be approved and the Constitution updated
accordingly.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The Council’s Constitution does not currently contain mechanisms required for virtual
Council or Committee meetings to be held. Approval of the recommended
amendments to the Rules of Procedure for Full Council and Committees will ensure
that these mechanisms are in place for holding virtual meetings when necessary.

3.2

Physical meetings will continue to be held when it is safe and legal to do so, as
informed by continuing risk assessments and consideration of developing Government
guidance, legal advice and health and safety advice. However, the proposed changes
will reflect the need for an alternative mechanism for holding democratic meetings to
be available, where physical meetings are deemed unsafe.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There is a risk that the Council may be unable to hold physical meetings safely and
legally should lockdown restrictions tighten or Government guidance change, for
example in the event of a local outbreak or a national ‘second peak’ of COVID-19. In

Page 197

addition, it may not always be advisable to hold physical meetings for reasons arising
from the ongoing risk assessment process.
4.2

The recommended amendments to the Constitution would mitigate the risk of the use
of urgency powers being required again, through allowing Council and Committee
meetings to continue virtually should physical meetings be unable to take place.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommended changes
to the Constitution.
b)

Legal
No legal implications are anticipated to arise from the proposed amendments to
the Constitution.
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 makes provision for local authorities to
hold virtual meetings.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are no additional direct implications arising from the recommended
changes.
In the event that physical meetings are deemed unsuitable for reasons of Health
and Safety, the amendments to the Constitution will provide an alternative
mechanism for meetings to continue to be held. An equalities impact assessment
has been undertaken in respect of both virtual and physical meetings.

Page 198

6.0

MONITORING OFFICER ADVICE

This would be a Full Council decision under business as usual. The Leader and, as this is
a matter of process, the Chair of Council should be consulted.

7.0

CONSULTATION RECORD

According to the Constitution, under urgency powers, decisions usually taken by the Council
and its committees are taken by the CEO following consultation with the appropriate elected
members.
The appropriate elected members are:




The Leader of the Council
The Chair of the appropriate committee, for matters relating to that specific committee1
Relevant Ward member(s), if any, for matters of particular relevance to that ward2
Name of consultee
Cllr Duncan – Leader of Council
This is urgently required in case virtual meetings of council and/or committees are
required in the future.
Date consultation completed
26-08-20
Name of consultee
Cllr Cleary – Chair of Council
Cllr Cleary was consulted on 27 August 2020 and confirmed that he was in agreement
with the recommendations.
Date consultation completed
27-08-20

8.0

DECISION

Decision of the CEO based The recommendations are approved.
on consultation
Date
28-08-20

“Chairman of the appropriate Committee” refers to committee specific matters and
does not mean that all Committee Chairs will be consulted on everything
1

“Relevant Ward Member(s), if any” refers to ward specific matters
and does not mean that all Members will be consulted on everything
2

Page 199

This page is intentionally left blank

CONTENTS
Rule
Part I - Meetings and Proceedings of Council
1.

Annual Meeting of the Council

2.

Ordinary Meetings

3.

Extraordinary Meetings

4.

Time and place of meetings

5.

Notice of and summons to meetings

6.

Chairman of meeting

7.

Quorum

8.

Duration of meeting

9.

Questions by the public

10.

Questions by Members

11.

Motions on notice

12.

Motions without notice

13.

Rules of debate

14.

Previous decisions and motions

15.

Voting

16.

Minutes

17.

Record of attendance

18.

Exclusion of public

19.

Members’ conduct

20.

Disturbance by public

21.

Recording and Other Equipment

22.

Petitions

23.

Suspension and amendment of Council Procedure Rules

Page 201

PART I - MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS OF COUNCIL
1.

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

1.1

Timing and business

In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the Annual Meeting will take
place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing councillors. In any other year,
the Annual Meeting will take place in May, on a date to be fixed in advance.

The Annual Meeting will:

(i)

elect a person to preside if the Chairman of Council is not present;

(ii)

elect the Chairman of Council;

(iii)

appoint the Vice-Chairman of Council;

(iv)

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

(v)

receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or Head of the Paid Service;

(vi)

appoint an Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in addition to the Licensing
Committee and such other committees as the Council considers appropriate;

(vii) decide the size and terms of reference for those committees with exception of
the Licensing Committee (as set out in Part 3 of this Constitution);
(viii) to elect Chairman and appoint Vice-Chairman of the Council’s Committees, SubCommittees and Working Groups for the ensuing Municipal Year. If the Council
does not make these appointments, Committees, Sub-Committees and Working
Groups may appoint their own Chairman and Vice-Chairman subject to
confirmation at the next meeting of the Council.

(ix)

consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting;

(x)

if following a local election, to receive the report of the Chief Executive upon:-

Page 202

(i)

the result of the elections of Councillors to the Wards of the Council held
on the day fixed for the purpose by the Secretary of State under the
provisions of the Local Government Act 1972;

(ii)

(xi)

the acceptance of office of Councillors elected.

authorisation to the payment of the proper expenses of the Elections.

The Council may elect a Leader and a Deputy Leader.

1.2

Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies

At the Annual Meeting, the Council will:

(i)

decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the political
balance rules;

(ii)

receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each committee and outside body;
and

(iii)

appoint to those committees and outside bodies except where appointment to
those bodies has been delegated by the Council.

1.3

Variation of Order of Business

Except for items (i), (ii) and (iii) of Rule 1.1 above the order of business may be varied
either:

(a)

by the Chairman at his/her discretion; or

(b)

by a resolution of the Council, passed on a motion (which need not be in writing)
duly proposed and seconded which, once moved, shall be put without discussion.

Page 203

2.

ORDINARY MEETINGS

2.1

Timing and Business

Ordinary Meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a programme
decided by the Council at an Ordinary Meeting in the previous municipal year.
Ordinary Meetings will:

(i)

elect a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are not present;

(ii)

deal with any business required by statute to be done before any other
business;

(iii)

deal with any questions submitted by Members of the Public;

(iv)

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

(v)

deal with any business expressly required by statute to be done;

(vi)

receive any declarations of interest from Members;

(vii)

receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid
Service;

(viii)

deal with formal questions from Members under Rule 10;

(ix)

deal with petitions or similar communications submitted by members of the
public under Rule 22;

(x)

dispose of any business from the last Council meeting;

(xi)

receive a statement from the Leader of Council, which will be circulated with
the agenda, and receive questions and answers on that statement;

(xii)

receive reports from the Council’s committees and receive questions and
answers on any of those reports;

Page 204

(xiii)

consider motions submitted by Members pursuant to Rule 11 in the order in
which they have been received;

(xiv)

consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting, and
reports of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for debate; and

(xv)

2.2

to authorise, where necessary, the sealing of documents.

Variation of Order of Business

Except for items (i), (ii) and (iii) of Rule 2.1 above the order of business may be varied
either:

(a)

by the Chairman at his/her discretion; or

(b)

by a resolution of the Council, passed on a motion (which need not be in writing)
duly proposed and seconded which, once moved, shall be put without
discussion.

3.

EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS

3.1

Calling Extraordinary Meetings

Those listed below may request the Proper Officer to call Council meetings in addition
to Ordinary Meetings:

(i)

the Council by resolution;

(ii)

the Chairman of the Council;

(iii)

the Monitoring Officer; or

(iv)

any five Members of the Council if they have signed a requisition presented to
the Chairman of the Council. If the Chairman refuses to call a meeting or fails
to call a meeting within five working days of the presentation of the requisition,
the five members concerned may require the Proper Officer to call the meeting.

Page 205

The requisition must specify the business which it is proposed to transact at
the meeting.

3.2

Business

The summons for the Extraordinary Meeting must set out the specified business to be
transacted, and no other business can be considered at the meeting.

4.

TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS

The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Council in advance and
notified in the summons.

5.

NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS

5.1

The Proper Officer will give notice to the public of the time and place of any meeting in
accordance with the Access to Information Rules. At least five clear days before a
meeting, the Proper Officer will send a summons signed by him or her in writing to
every Member of the Council. The summons will give the date, time and place of each
meeting and specify the business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such
reports as are available.

6.

CHAIRMAN OF MEETING

The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the Chairman.
Where these rules apply to committee meetings, references to the Chairman also
include the chairman of committees.

7.

QUORUM

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of Members and
shall, in any event, be not less than 3 Members. During any meeting if the Chairman
counts the number of members present and declares there is not a quorum present,
then the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be considered at
a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining
business will be considered at the next Ordinary Meeting.

Page 206

8.

DURATION OF MEETING

8.1

Unless the majority of Members present vote for the meeting to continue, any meeting
that has lasted for three and a half hours (excluding adjournments) will adjourn
immediately following conclusion of the item of business under consideration.
Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If
he/she does not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at the next
Ordinary Meeting.

8.2

The closure time for meetings will be recorded in the minutes.

9.

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC

9.1

General
Members of the public (either residents of or those with a business interest in the
District of Ryedale) may ask questions at all ordinary meetings of Full Council. The
total time allowed at any meeting for questions by the public shall be half an hour.

9.2

Order of questions
Questions will be asked in the order they are received, however the Chairman may
group together similar questions.

9.3

Notice of questions
A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering the question in
writing which must be sent to the Chief Executive by post or electronic mail no later
than 48 hours before the day of the meeting. Each question must be accompanied by
the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address (if applicable) of the
questioner.

9.4

Number of questions
No person may submit more than one question at any one meeting and no more than
one such question may be asked on behalf of any one organisation.

9.5

Length of questions
Questions should be no longer than 100 words in length with a preamble limited to 3
minutes duration.

Page 207

9.6

Scope of questions
(i)

The question asked at Council must not depart from the text of the question
previously submitted to the Chief Executive in writing.

(ii)

Any questions or statements must relate to a matter for which the local authority
has a responsibility or which affects the statutory functions of the District Council.

(iii)

The Chief Executive may reject a question if:
 It is not about a matter for which the local authority has a responsibility or
which affects the statutory functions of the District Council;
 It is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;
 It requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;
 It relates to an individual/group business or the questioner's own particular
circumstances;
 It relates to a matter which is the subject of legal or enforcement proceedings
or an appeal to a tribunal or to a Government Minister or an investigation by
the Local Government Ombudsman;
 It relates to the personal circumstances or conduct of any Officer and
Councillor or conditions of service of employees;
 It relates to the appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary or other
payments, superannuation or conditions of employment or the conduct or
ability of any individual employed by the Council or the conduct of a member
of the Council;
 It relates to the activities and aims of a political party or organisation;
 It relates to individual planning applications;
 It is a statement and not a genuine enquiry;
 Where the preparation of the answer would require the expenditure of a
disproportionate amount of time, money or effort;
 It is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting
of the Council in the past six months; or
 It is about an operational matter for which an officer response is more
appropriate.

9.7

Record of questions
The Chief Executive will enter each question in a file open to public inspection.
Rejected questions will include reasons for rejection.

9.8

Asking the question at the meeting

Page 208

The Chairman will invite the questioner to put the question to him/her. If a questioner
who has submitted a written question is unable to be present, they may ask the
Chairman or Chief Executive to put the question on their behalf. A written reply will be
given to the questioner within a reasonable period following the meeting.

For virtual meetings, where the questioner is unable to participate in the meeting
electronically, the Chairman or Chief Executive will put the question on their behalf.
Formatted: Font: Italic

9.9

Supplemental questions
A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one supplementary
question without notice. A supplementary question must arise directly out of the original
question or the reply. The Chairman may reject a supplementary question on any of
the grounds in Rule 9.6 (iii) above. No person asking a supplementary question may
speak for more than one minute.
Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, First line: 0 cm

For virtual meetings, where the questioner is unable to participate in the meeting
electronically, they may submit a supplementary question after the meeting and a
written response will be provided. The supplementary question and response will be
appended to the minutes.
Formatted: Font: Italic

9.10

Written answers
Any question which cannot be dealt with during public question time for whatever
reason will be dealt with by a written answer.

9.11

Reference of question to a Committee
Unless the Chairman decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on any question,
but any Member may move that a matter raised by a question be referred to the
appropriate Committee or Sub-Committee. Once seconded, such a motion will be
voted on without discussion.

10.

QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

10.1

On reports of committees
A Member of the Council may ask the Chairman of a committee any question without
notice upon an item of the report of a committee when that item is being received or
under consideration by the Council.

Page 209

10.2

Questions on notice at full Council
Subject to Rule 10.4, a Member of the Council may ask:


the Chairman;



the Leader; or



the Chairman of any committee;



a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or
which affects the Ryedale District.

10.3

Questions on notice at committees
Subject to Rule 10.4, a Member of a committee may ask the Chairman of it a question
on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects
the Ryedale District and which falls within the terms of reference of that committee.

10.4

Notice of questions
A Member may only ask a question under Rule 10.2 or 10.3 if either:
(a)

he/she has given notice in writing of the question to the Proper Officer not later
than 5pm, eight working days before the date of the meeting; or

(b)

the question relates to an urgent matter, he/she has have the consent of the
chairman to whom the question is to be put and the content of the question is
given to the Proper Officer by 12 noon on the day of the meeting. An urgent
matter must be one which the Member could not have reasonably known about
eight working days before the date of the meeting and which must be dealt with
before the next ordinary meeting of Council.
Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, First line: 0.02 cm

For virtual meetings, the written notice of questions should be given by email, wherever
possible.
Formatted: Font: Italic

10.5

Response
An answer may take the form of:
(a)

a direct oral answer;

(b)

where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other published
work, a reference to that publication; or

(c)

where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated
later to the questioner and all Councillors.

10.6

Supplementary question

Page 210

A Member asking a question under Rule 10.2 or 10.3 may ask one supplementary
question without notice of the Member to whom the first question was asked. The
supplementary question must arise directly out of the original question or the reply.

11.

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

11.1

Notice
Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 12, written notice
of every motion, signed by at least two Members, must be delivered to the proper
officer not later than 5pm, eight days before the date of the meeting. These will be
entered in a file open to public inspection.

Written notice of motions may be given by email, from a ryedale.gov.uk email address.
Signatures are not required in these instances but consent must be received from each
Member who has put their name to the motion by e mail from a ryedale.gov.uk email
address.

For virtual meetings, written notice of motions should be given by email, wherever
possible.

11.2

Formatted: Font: Italic

Motion set out in agenda
Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the order in
which notice was received, unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that
he/she proposes to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it.

11.3

Scope
Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or which
affect the Ryedale District.

11.4

Debate
A motion concerning a matter within the purview of any committee which is moved and
seconded shall automatically stand referred to that committee. The Chairman may,
however, allow the motion to be dealt with at the meeting at which it is moved if he/she
considers it convenient and conducive to the despatch of business.

11.5

Voting on Motions

Page 211

At the end of a debate the motion shall be formally concluded by a vote and the
numbers be recorded.

12.

MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
The following motions may be moved without notice:
(a)

to appoint a Chairman of the meeting at which the motion is moved;

(b)

in relation to the accuracy of the minutes;

(c)

to change the order of business in the agenda;

(d)

to refer something to an appropriate committee, body or individual;

(e)

to appoint a committee or members thereof arising from an item on the summons
for the meeting;

(f)

to receive reports or adopt recommendations of committees or officers and any
resolutions following from them;

(g)

to withdraw a motion;

(h)

to amend a motion;

(i)

to proceed to the next business;

(j)

that the question be now put;

(k)

to adjourn a debate;

(l)

to adjourn a meeting;

(m) that the meeting continue beyond three and a half hours in duration (see Rule 8);
(n)

to suspend a particular council procedure rule;

(o)

to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information
Rules;

(p)

to not hear further a Member named under Rule 19.3 or to exclude them from
the meeting under Rule 19.4; and

(q)

to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this
constitution.

13.

RULES OF DEBATE

13.1

No speeches until motion seconded
No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and explained the
purpose of it until the motion has been seconded.

13.2

Right to require motion in writing
Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Chairman may require it to be
written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed.

Page 212

For virtual meetings, the Chairman may require the motion to be read out so that a
Formatted: Font: Italic

written note may be taken of it.

13.3

Seconder’s speech
When seconding a motion or amendment, a Member may reserve his/her speech until
later in the debate.

13.4

Content and length of speeches
Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a personal
explanation or point of order. No speech may exceed three minutes without the
consent of the Chairman.

13.5

When a member may speak again
A Member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the subject of
debate, except:

(a)

to speak once on an amendment moved by another member;

(b)

to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since he/she last
spoke;

(c)

if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another Member, to speak
on the main issue (whether or not the amendment on which he/she spoke was
carried);

13.6

(d)

in exercise of a right of reply (see Rule 13.9);

(e)

on a point of order;

(f)

by way of personal explanation; or

(g)

at the discretion of the Chairman.

Amendments to motions

(a)

An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either be:

(i)

to refer the matter to an appropriate committee, body or individual for
consideration or reconsideration;

(ii)

to leave out words;

(iii)

to leave out words and insert or add others; or

(iv)

to insert or add words;

Page 213

as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to negate the motion.

(b)

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time. No further
amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion has been
disposed of.

(c)

If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion may be
moved.

(d)

If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the original
motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any further amendments
are moved.

(e)

After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the amended
motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there are none, put it to
the vote.

For virtual meetings, the Chairman may require the amendment to be read out so that
a written note may be taken of it.

13.7

Alteration of motion

(a)

A Member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with the consent
of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion.

(b)

A Member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice with the
consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s consent will be
signified without discussion.

(c)

13.8

Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made.

Withdrawal of motion

A Member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the consent of both
the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s consent will be signified without

Page 214

discussion. No Member may speak on the motion after the mover has asked
permission to withdraw it unless permission is refused.

13.9

Right of reply

(a)

The mover of a motion has a right to reply, if there has been a debate on the
motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.

(b)

If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right of reply
at the close of the debate on the amendment but may not otherwise speak on
the amendment. In exercising a right of reply on the motion, the mover of the
motion may not introduce any new matter.

(c)

The mover of the amendment has a right of reply to the debate on his or her
amendment immediately before the mover of the original motion. In exercising a
right of reply to the debate on his or her amendment, the mover of the
amendment may not introduce any new matter.

13.10 Motions which may be moved during debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the following
procedural motions:

(a)

to withdraw a motion;

(b)

to amend a motion;

(c)

to proceed to the next business;

(d)

that the question be now put;

(e)

to adjourn a debate;

(f)

to adjourn a meeting;

(g)

that the meeting continue beyond three and a half hours in duration (see Rule 8);

(h)

to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to Information
Rules; and

(i)

to not hear further a Member named under Rule 19.3 or to exclude them from
the meeting under Rule 19.4.

13.11 Closure motions

Page 215

(a)

A Member may move, without comment, the following motions at the end of a
speech of another Member:

(b)

(i)

to proceed to the next business;

(ii)

that the question be now put;

(iii)

to adjourn a debate; or

(iv)

to adjourn a meeting.

If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chairman thinks the
item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will give the mover of the original
motion a right of reply and then put the procedural motion to the vote.

(c)

If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chairman thinks
the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will put the procedural motion to
the vote. If it is passed he/she will give the mover of the original motion a right of
reply before putting his/her motion to the vote.

(d)

If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded and the
Chairman thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed and cannot
reasonably be discussed on that occasion, he/she will put the procedural motion
to the vote without giving the mover of the original motion the right of reply.

13.12 Point of Order

A Member may raise a point of order at any time. The Chairman will hear it
immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged breach of these Council
Rules of Procedure or the law. The Member must indicate the rule or law and the way
in which he/she considers it has been broken. The ruling of the Chairman on the matter
will be final.

13.13 Personal explanation

A Member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal explanation may
only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the Member which may appear
to have been misrepresented in the present debate. The ruling of the Chairman on the
admissibility of a personal explanation will be final.

Page 216

14.

PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS

14.1

Motion to rescind a previous decision

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of Council within the
past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is signed by at least one
quarter of the whole number of Members of the Council.

Such notice of motions may be given by email, from a ryedale.gov.uk email address.
Signatures are not required in these instances but consent must be received from each
Member who has put their name to the motion by e mail from a ryedale.gov.uk email
address.

14.2

Motion similar to one previously rejected

A motion or amendment in the same terms as, or similar terms to, one that has been
rejected at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved for a further
six months, unless this rule is suspended pursuant to Rule 23.

15.

VOTING

15.1

Majority

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a simple
majority of those Members voting and present in the room at the time the question was
put.

15.2

Chairman’s casting vote

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a second
or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Chairman chooses to exercise
a casting vote.

15.3

Method of Voting

Page 217

Voting shall be by use of the Council’s electronic voting system or, as an exception
approved by Council, or where the electronic system is not working, by a show of
hands, or if there is no dissent, by affirmation of the meeting.

15.4

For virtual meetings, voting shall be by roll call, or if there is no dissent, by affirmation

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, First line: 0 cm

of the meeting.

Formatted: Font: Italic

Electronic Voting

Where voting is by means of the electronic voting system the result of the vote shall
be as indicated by the electronic voting system announced by the person presiding at
the meeting.

15.5

Recorded vote

If, before a vote is taken, three Members present at the meeting demand it, the names
for and against the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be recorded
using the electronic voting system and entered into the minutes. In the case of a vote
by a show of hands this should be by roll-call and the vote or abstention of each
Member shall be recorded.

All votes relating to the setting of the budget and the Council Tax at Budget Council
meetings shall be recorded.

15.6

Right to require individual vote to be recorded

Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote will be so
recorded in the minutes to show whether he/she voted for or against the motion or
abstained from voting.

15.7

Voting on appointments

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled, the method
of voting will be by way of ballot. If there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of
one person (i.e. the number of votes cast for one person is not greater than the total
sum of the votes cast for all other nominees), then the name of the person with the
least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new vote taken. The process will

Page 218

continue until there is a majority of votes for one person. If at any stage in the process
there is an equal number of votes cast for two nominees when one of them is to be
appointed or taken off the list the issue will be determined by the drawing of lots.

For virtual meetings, if there are more than two people nominated for any position to

Formatted: Font: Italic

be filled, the method of voting will be by roll call. If there is not a clear majority of votes

Formatted: Font: Italic

in favour of one person (i.e. the number of votes cast for one person is not greater than
the total sum of the votes cast for all other nominees), then the name of the person
with the least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new vote taken. The
process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one person. If at any stage in
the process there is an equal number of votes cast for two nominees when one of them
is to be appointed or taken off the list the issue will be determined by the drawing of
lots.

16.

MINUTES

16.1

Signing the minutes

The Chairman will sign the minutes of the proceedings (including confidential minutes)
at the next suitable meeting. The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous
meeting be signed as a correct record. The only part of the minutes that can be
discussed is their accuracy.

When the minutes have been signed, Members may ask questions to ascertain what
progress has been made on a particular matter referred to in the minutes, but not make
any other statement or generate discussion on the minutes.

16.2

At virtual meetings, the minutes will be moved for approval as a correct record. The

Formatted: Font: Italic

minutes will be signed, if approved, after the meeting.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm

No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at Extraordinary Meeting

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing the
minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local Government
Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following meeting (being a meeting
called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for
the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes.

Page 219

16.3

Form of minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the form and order the Chairman
put them. (The minutes of proceedings when the meeting was not open to the public
or which disclose exempt or confidential information may not be made available to the
public but a summary of the proceedings will be made available where the minutes
open to inspection do not provide a reasonably fair and coherent record - See the
Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution).

17.

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

A record of attendance will be made by the officer supporting the meeting for each
committee, sub-committee or working party.

18.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance with the
Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Rule 20 (Disturbance by
Public).

For virtual meetings, exclusion of the public and press will mean stopping live
streaming.

19.

MEMBERS’ CONDUCT

19.1

Standing to speak

Formatted: Font: Italic

When a Member speaks at Full Council he/she must, where possible, stand and
address the meeting through the Chairman. If more than one Member stands, the
Chairman will ask one to speak and the other(s) must sit. Other Members must remain
seated whilst a Member is speaking unless they wish to make a point of order or a
point of personal explanation. The Chairman has the right to waive the requirement for
a Member to stand to speak where he/she considers it appropriate to do so.

For virtual meetings, this requirement does not apply.

Page 220

Formatted: Font: Italic

19.2

Chairman standing

When the Chairman stands during a debate, any Member speaking at the time must
stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent.

19.3

For virtual meetings, the Chairman may require any Member speaking at the time to

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, First line: 0 cm

stop and sit down, and the meeting must be silent

Formatted: Font: Italic

Member not to be heard further

If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chairman by behaving improperly
or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Chairman may move that the
Member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be voted on without
discussion.

19.4

Member to leave the meeting

If the Member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried, the
Chairman may move that either the Member leaves the meeting or that the meeting is
adjourned for a specified period. If seconded, the motion will be voted on without
discussion.

19.5

General disturbance

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the Chairman
may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary.

20.

DISTURBANCE BY PUBLIC

20.1

Removal of member of the public

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person
concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the
meeting room.

For virtual meetings, the Chairman may order the removal of any public participant

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm

from the meeting if they continue to interrupt proceedings.

Formatted: Font: Italic

Page 221

20.2

Clearance of part of meeting room

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the
Chairman may call for that part to be cleared.

21.

For virtual meetings, the Chairman may call for any public participants causing a

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm

general disturbance to be removed from the meeting.

Formatted: Font: Italic

RECORDING AND OTHER EQUIPMENT

Anyone who wishes to use an electronic device to record, photograph, film or make
live text based communications of public meetings of Council or any Committee or
Sub-Committee may do so provided:

(i)

The electronic device is set to silent mode;

(ii)

There is no interference with the proceedings of Council or Committee
(including the use of flash photography);

(iii)

There is no interference with the sound system used for meetings of Council or
a Committee.

As a courtesy it is requested that the Chairman of the meeting be notified in advance
so that all those present at the meeting can be made aware that recording is taking
place.

Permission to use electronic devices may be withdrawn by the Chairman of the
meeting at any time, if it is causing disturbance or disruption to the meeting, and use
of the electronic device in the meeting must cease.

These requirements do not apply to the use of equipment for providing assistance for
people with a disability.

22.

For virtual meetings, these requirements apply to any individuals participating in the

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm

meeting.

Formatted: Font: Italic

PETITIONS

Page 222

Petitions will be considered by Council in accordance with the provisions of the
Council’s Petition Scheme. The Council’s Petition Scheme is set out at Part 5 of this
constitution.

These provisions do not apply to any petition or similar communication concerning
planning applications or similar matters which must be presented direct to the Planning
Committee.

23.

SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

23.1

Suspension

All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rule 15.6 and Rule 16.2 may be
suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one half of the whole number
of Members of the Council are present. Suspension can only be for the duration of the
meeting.

23.2

Amendment

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of Procedure will, when
proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next Ordinary
Meeting of the Council.

Page 223

This page is intentionally left blank

CONTENTS
Part II - Meetings and Proceedings of Committees
24.

Application of Council Procedure Rules to Committees

25.

Appointment of Committees

25A.

Appointment of Standing Committees

25B.

Sub-Committees

25C.

Working Parties

26.

Ordinary Meetings of Committees

27.

Special Meetings of Committees

28.

Substitute Members of Committees

29.

Independent Persons

30.

Chairmen of Committees

31.

Proposer of Motion May Attend

32.

Items for Agenda

33.

Attendance of Member as Observer

34.

Suspension of Procedure Rules

35.

Speaking Rights at Planning Committee

Page 225

PART II - MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS OF COMMITTEES
24.

APPLICATION OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES TO COMMITTEES

All of the Council Rules of Procedure apply to meetings of Full Council. Only Rules
5–13 (with the exception of Rule 9 and subject to Rule 13 being extended to allow a
Member to speak more than once on a matter at the discretion of the Chairman), and
14–23 (but not Rule 16.3 and 19.1) apply to meetings of Committees. The Licensing
Committee has resolved to adopt the Rules that apply to the proceedings of
Committees, panels etc of the Council but separate proceedings will apply to the
hearings of its Sub-Committees.

25.

APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES

The Council shall at the annual meeting appoint such standing committees as set out
in standing order 25A and may at any time appoint other committees or working parties
as are necessary to carry out the work of the Council but

(i)

shall not appoint any member of a committee to hold office later than the next
annual meeting of the Council
and

(ii)

may at any time dissolve or alter the membership of a committee other than a
standing committee.

25A.

APPOINTMENT OF STANDING COMMITTEES

(i)

The Council shall at its annual meeting appoint the following Standing
Committees:-

(ii)



Policy and Resources Committee



Planning Committee



Overview and Scrutiny Committee



Licensing Committee

With the exception of the Licensing Committee, the powers and duties of
committees and sub-committees and the Planning Committee and the extent of

Page 226

their authority to act are determined by Council on the recommendation of the
Policy and Resources Committee or other committee as appropriate. They are
incorporated in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.

(iii) Members may only sit on one of the following committees as a substantive
member:
 Policy and Resources Committee
 Planning Committee
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee

(iv)

The Licensing Committee shall have the same membership as the Planning
Committee

25B.

SUB-COMMITTEES
(i)

Every standing committee appointed may appoint sub-committees for purposes
to be specified by that committee.

(ii)

The Chairman of a standing committee shall be an ex officio member of every
sub-committee appointed by that standing committee and shall be ex officio
chairman of such sub-committee.

(iii)

If the chairman of a sub-committee is absent from a meeting of the subcommittee another member of the sub-committee chosen by the members of the
sub-committee present shall preside.

(iv)

With the exception of the Licensing Committee, a standing committee may
appoint members who do not serve on that standing committee to serve on a
sub-committee.

(v)

Substitutes may be appointed to sub-committees, subject to any relevant training
requirements being fulfilled.

25C.

WORKING PARTIES
(i)

Every standing committee may appoint working parties for purposes to be
specified by the committee.

Page 227

(ii)

The chairman of a standing committee shall have the right to be an ex officio
member and Chairman of every working party appointed by that standing
committee.

(iii)

If the Chairman of a Working Party is absent from a meeting of the Working Party
another member of the Working Party chosen by the members of the working
Party present shall preside.

(iv)

A standing committee may appoint members who do not serve on that standing
committee to serve on a Working Party.

26.

ORDINARY MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

Ordinary Meetings of Committees must be held on dates and times fixed by the
Council. The date and time fixed may be altered by the Chairman of the Committee if,
for good reason, he/she considers that the date fixed is inconvenient for the despatch
of business.

27.

SPECIAL MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

The Chairman of the Council or the Chairman of the Committee may call a Special
Meeting of the Committee at any time. Any Special Meeting can also be requisitioned
by at least one quarter of the whole number of the Members of the Committee, subject
to a minimum of three Members. The requisition must be delivered in writing to the
Proper Officer and must specify the business which it is proposed to transact at the
meeting. The summons for the Special Meeting must set out the specified business
to be transacted, and no other business can be considered at that meeting.

28.

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES

28.1

Number

For each Committee or Sub-Committee where substitution is applicable, the maximum
number of substitutes in respect of each Political Group at any meeting shall be 50%
of that Group’s membership on the relevant Committee or Sub-Committee, rounded
up if necessary, subject to a minimum of two.

Page 228

28.2

Powers and duties

Substitute Members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary Member of the
committee or sub-committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or
duties exercisable by the person for whom they are substituting. Substitute Members
shall abide by any voting restrictions which would have applied to the Member for
whom they are substituting.

28.3

Substitution

Substitute Members may attend meetings in that capacity only:

(i)

to take the place of the ordinary Member for whom they are the designated
substitute;

(ii)

where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and

(iii)

after notifying the Proper Officer by 12 noon on the day of the meeting of the
intended substitution.

28.4

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Substitution shall not apply to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

28.5

Where a Member of Overview and Scrutiny Committee has acted as a named
substitute at any Policy Committee they may not subsequently scrutinise any decision
in which they have been involved.

28.6

Licensing Committee and Licensing Sub-Committee

Substitution shall not apply to the Licensing Committee and Licensing Sub-Committee.

29.

INDEPENDENT PERSONS

29.1

A meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee acting as the Corporate
Governance Standards Committee must seek and take into account the views of the

Page 229

duly appointed independent persons before it makes its decision on an allegation that
has been investigated.

29.2

Two independent persons have been appointed by Council.

30.

CHAIRMEN OF COMMITTEES

If the Council has not done so at its Annual Meeting every Committee at its first meeting
in every year must, as its first item of business, elect a Chairman and appoint a ViceChairman.

The Chairman of the Council, by virtue of office, is not eligible to hold office as a
Chairman of a Committee during his/her term.

No Member of the Council is entitled to hold the office of the Chairman of more than
one Committee at any time.

31.

PROPOSER OF MOTION MAY ATTEND

A Member of the Council who has proposed a motion which has been referred to any
Committee of which he/she is not a Member is entitled to attend the Committee at
which the motion is to be considered and to speak at the meeting, but may not vote.

32.

ITEMS FOR AGENDA

A Member can require that an item be placed on the agenda for a Committee if he/she
gives notice of such a request not later than noon six working days preceding the
meeting in question; provided that no Member may seek to exercise his/her right under
this Rule in relation to an item which he/she has previously had placed on an agenda
within the preceding six months, or where the matter has been debated and
determined within the preceding six months.

33.

ATTENDANCE OF MEMBER AS OBSERVER

Non-Members of Committees have the right to attend the meetings as observers. They
may speak by invitation only from the Chairman, but may not vote.

Page 230

34.

SUSPENSION OF PROCEDURE RULES

All of the Rules of Procedure which apply to meetings of Committees except Rule 15.6
and Rule 16.2 may be suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one
half of the whole number of members of the Committee are present and support the
suspension. Suspension can only be for the duration of the meeting.

35.

SPEAKING RIGHTS AT PLANNING COMMITTEE

(1)

At meetings of the Planning Committee the applicant, District Councillor not on
the Planning Committee, Parish Council, one supporter and one objector may
speak on individual planning applications which the Committee is being invited
to determine.

Only one speaker per category is allowed to address the

Committee.

(2)

People wishing to speak are advised to register with the Committee Secretariat
by 11.00 am on the day of the meeting. Speakers have a maximum of three
minutes to speak. The District Councillor is normally heard first, the Parish/Town
Council second, then the supporter, objector and finally the applicant or agent.
There is no public right of reply following the decision of the Planning Committee.

For virtual meetings, where a speaker is unable to access the meeting electronically,

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, First line: 0.02 cm

a written representation may be read to the meeting on their behalf.

Formatted: Font: Italic

Page 231

This page is intentionally left blank

CONTENTS
Part III - Miscellaneous Matters
36.

Planning Training

37.

Matters of Urgency

38.

Declaration of Interests by Members – Interests of Members in
Contracts and Other Matters

39.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Page 233

PART III - MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS
36.

PLANNING TRAINING

(1)

Any Member selected for service on the Planning Committee and any substitute
Member for any of those Committees

(i)

shall attend a training course on planning law and practice for Members
prior to first attending a Planning Committee.

(2)

Any Member who has not attended such a training course.

(i)

prior to first attending a Planning Committee;

(ii)

shall automatically cease to be a member of the Committees and Full
Council shall appoint a replacement at its next meeting.

(3)

Once a Member becomes disentitled to serve on any of the Committees under
this Standing Order a substitute member shall attend any relevant meeting of the
Committees until a replacement is selected for the vacant seat on the Committee.

(4)

Any Member

(i)

becoming disentitled to sit on the Committees by reason of this Standing
Order; or

(ii)

not having been a member of any of the Committees for more than 6
months shall be subject to the provisions of paragraph (1) (i) as if on a first
nomination if they are re-selected for service on any of the Committees as
a full member or a substitute.

37.

MATTERS OF URGENCY

The Head of Paid Service has delegated authority to take any action he/she considers
necessary in the interests of the Council in cases of urgency. He/she where possible
must only act after consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chairman of the
appropriate Committee and the relevant Ward Member(s), if any. Any action taken in

Page 234

this way shall be reported to the first available meeting of the Council or relevant
Committee, as appropriate.

38.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS – INTERESTS OF MEMBERS IN
CONTRACTS AND OTHER MATTERS
Declarations of Interest are a standard item on every Council and Committee agenda
and each Member must provide a full record of their interests in the Public Register.

In addition, alongside the Register of Interest, the Local Members Code of Conduct
(“the Code”) requires the Declaration of Interests at meetings. Members have to
decide first whether or not they have a disclosable interest in the matter under
discussion.
Please see the Members’ Code of Conduct as set out in Part 5 - Codes and Protocols
Section (a).
39.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST (DPI)
A DPI is an interest defined in regulations made under the Localism Act 2011 and set
out in the Code.
If you have a DPI (as defined in the Code) in a matter being considered at a meeting
of the Council (as defined in the Code), this Standing Order requires you to leave the
room where the meeting is held for the duration of any discussion or voting on that
matter.

For virtual meetings, leaving the room means leaving the virtual
meeting and then rejoining afterwards.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm
Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Arial), 12 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Arial), 12 pt

Page 235

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 237

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 241

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 247

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 251

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 255

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 259

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 265

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 269

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 279

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 285

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 289

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
LEADER’S STATEMENT
This is our first Full Council meeting since the Covid-19 pandemic began. Lots has
happened, and it would be impossible to mention everything, but I will endeavour to give
the headline points and take your questions.
I could not be prouder of this council, and in particular the way our officers have gone
above and beyond to stand by our residents during one of the toughest period in the
district’s history. Despite everything, we’ve seen the very best of what our council can do.
But it’s not just our officers worthy of thanks, I would like to congratulate councillors too
for coming together, across the political divide, to join forces with hundreds of volunteers
in all corners of our district. I hope this cooperation can continue in the uncertain months
ahead, as we play our role in the ongoing Covid-19 recovery and face up to the prospect of
big changes to local government in North Yorkshire.
Covid-19
Our key priority, from the outset of the emergency, was to protect lives and livelihoods.
I’m immensely proud that we’ve been able to help do this on behalf of our residents,
communities and businesses. And that is what we will need to do during the uncertain
times ahead by working together.
Delivering services
Our teams worked around-the-clock to deliver frontline services for our communities. Most
of our normal services operated throughout the emergency period, despite increased
demand and capacity constraints. We also played a key and significant role in supporting
those shielding and in need, working closely with town/parish councils, volunteers and
partners such as North Yorkshire County Council.
Business support
We are at forefront of efforts to support the local economy. We’ve led the way in getting
grants out of the door to those who need it - fast. In total, we distributed over £23.5m in
grants to more than 2,000 local businesses. That includes £1.1m of discretionary business
grants targeted at small and micro businesses unable to access other assistance. A huge
amount of work has gone on behind-the-scenes to develop and deliver these grants.
Without them, it is certain that many businesses in Ryedale would not have been able to
survive.
On top of this, we played a key role in getting businesses back open. We issued over 200
‘back to business packs” to help them reopen and operate safely. We also provided
particular advice and guidance to hospitality and tourism businesses about how to reopen
safely, with 185 businesses registered for Visit England’s ‘We’re Good to Go’ industry
mark.
Voluntary and community groups
We’ve also been supporting our important voluntary, community and arts groups. The
council created a £40,000 emergency grants fund available to voluntary and community
organisations. This provided a lifeline cash injection so they could continue supporting
local people during this difficult time. Most recently, we also launched a £5,000 arts grant
scheme.
Budget
While all of this is happening, we’re of course keeping an eye on costs. The financial
impact of COVID-19, in a worst case scenario, is a 20/21 year end overspend of £3m. So
far, we have been provided with around £700k in financial support by Government. And

Page 295

although we are very well placed to meet the extra costs from reserves, we are continuing
to lobby for additional funds. Our focus now is on tight financial management, with heads
of service working to contain costs and revise their plans for the year.
Local Government Restructure
As if dealing with Covid-19 was not enough, we’re now facing another challenge.
Government will soon invite councils in North Yorkshire to submit proposals for unitary
local government in the county ahead of a devolution deal involving City of York. North
Yorkshire County Council has confirmed it will submit a plan to replace our current
councils (including Ryedale) with a ‘mega unitary’ authority. This means that change now
seems inevitable.
Covering 8,000km² and encompassing 620,000 people, the county plan would be England’s
largest ever unitary - and its generated significant public alarm and concern. So reflecting
on this mood, the leaders of North Yorkshire’s seven district and borough leaders came
together, across party lines, to work together on finding the best option for unitary
authorities across the county.
KPMG is now working to provide an independent and objective analysis of the options.
From a long list of 10, they have identified that an east/west model would deliver much
better in terms of finance and democracy, while complying with the Government’s
indicated “optimal” population threshold of 400,000 residents.
Our plan would create two brand-new councils across North Yorkshire and York, large
enough to be efficient into the future, but small enough to keep connected with our
communities:
•
•

Ryedale, Scarborough, Selby and York in the east, with a population of 465,375
Craven, Hambleton, Harrogate and Richmondshire in the west, with a population of
363,297

It is almost certain that change is coming. And if it is, then the seven district and borough
leaders - Conservative, Labour and Independent - stand united and determined to work
together to get this change right. I would like to ask councillors here in Ryedale too to
work together, on a cross-party basis, to develop the very best model for local
government in North Yorkshire. It maybe the last, and most important, thing we do.

Page 296

Agenda Item 12a

REPORT TO:

COUNCIL

DATE:

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING – Outturn
2019-20

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The revenue budget for 2019-20 was approved by Council on 21 February 2019. This
report and associated appendix present the financial performance against the
budget. This summary shows the draft outturn position which is part of the Draft
Accounts which were sent to external auditors at the beginning of July, well before
the statutory deadline of 31 August. Normally this deadline is 31 May, but it was
changed as a result of impact of the Coronavirus pandemic. The final audited
accounts will be brought back to the Policy and Resources and Audit Committees in
November for final approval.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that:
i)
ii)

The Council notes the contents of the report and that the Surplus Balance of
£32k has been transferred to the General Reserve.
The Council approves a carry forward of £1.301m from the Capital
Programme.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that budget exceptions are brought to the attention of the Council in order
to approve remedial action where necessary.

3.2

To note the treatment of the surplus.

4.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 297

4.1

The financial position and performance against budget is fundamental to delivery of
the Council’s Plan, achieving value for money and ensuring financial stability.

5.0

REPORT DETAILS

5.1

Summary
General Fund (Appendix A)
The year-end position was a surplus of £32k. Further details are set out below.
Planned savings and efficiencies of £528k for the year, identified as part of the
2019/20 budget setting process, were built into the base budgets and are reflected in
the numbers below and appendix A. Most of these came about following the review
of budgets to ensure that they more realistically reflected expected costs and had no
impact on service.
Capital (Appendix B)
The year-end position showed much less spend than originally envisaged. Most of
this spend will have been funded from the Capital Reserve and therefore this has
impacted on the reserves figures shown at section 5.4 below

5.2

Revenue
The table below sets out the summary position, with details of forecast variances
included in Appendix A.
General Fund Account – Q4 2019/20
Net Revenue Budget
Settlement Funding RSG/NDR
Amount to be met from Council Tax
Council Tax
Collection Fund Deficit
Net Revenue Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

Budget
£000’s
8,238
(3,981)
4,149
(4,271)
13
0

Actual
£000’s
8,202
(3,976)
4,226
(4,271)
13
(32)

Variance
£000’s
(36)
5
(32)
0
0
(32)

The main variances are:
Expenditure
-

All Employee-related costs (excluding consultants). Overall overspend of
£183k, including funding for pay review. The largest area of overspend is in
StreetScene due to overtime and agency staff. This is being addressed in
2020/21 and a review has been commissioned to look at remedial actions.

-

Supplies and Services – A net underspend of £210k which is an increase on the
Q3 position of £80k. One-off savings of £91k have arisen in waste disposal
services as a result of the delays to the WTS. An on-going £7k agreed external
audit fees, £8k new car park transaction fees. An on-going saving of £8k is
expected due to a reduction in court fees for Council Tax cases. Printing was

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 298

also underspent – and this has been reflected in the 2020/21 budget. The
remainder a primarily expected one-off in year underspends.

-

Vehicles and Transport – An underspend of £79k is shown against vehicles and
transport related costs with the increase from Q3 (£39k) due mainly to reduced
diesel costs. This variance also includes underspending on Officer mileage
expenses.

-

Premises related – An overspend of £132k, which is partly related to the move
to the new Waste Transfer Station and offsets the underspend within supplies
and services. The overspend also includes additional repairs and maintenance
costs at Ryedale House.

Income

5.3

-

Income from Housing Benefit – Housing benefit subsidy has been less than
expected – but this is offset by reduced payments and overall the position is a
surplus of £98k. There a various factors that impact on the amount of subsidy
recoverable against payments.

-

Waste Collection & Recycling – £56k surplus due to additional income from the
sale of recyclable materials.

Capital Programme
The Year-End position shows, as projected through the Quarterly monitoring reports,
significant slippage.

Capital Programme – 2019/20
Asset Management
Housing
Other Schemes
Total Programme

Budget
£000’s
1,216
1,262
1,351
3,829

Actual
Variance
£000’s
£000’s
331
885
832
430
1,351
1,163
(2,666)

The original capital budget for the financial year 2019/20 totalled £3.051m. The initial
plans were revised to incorporate expenditure re-profiled from the previous year of
£0.487m, along with an additional supplementary estimate of £0.291m. This resulted
in a revised total revised budget of £3.829m.
The total final outturn position against the capital programme was £1.163m, of which
the major items relate to £647k invested in Housing Grants and Loans, primarily funded
by capital grants, along with the purchase of property for re-development as affordable
housing £0.185m, and waste and recycling vehicles and equipment £0.139m.
COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 299

Project slippage includes Property Condition Survey (£0.590m), Waste & Recycling
projects (£0.237m), IT Infrastructure Strategy (£0.061m), Vehicle replacement
programme (£0.186m), Community led housing fund (£0.289m) and purchase of
affordable housing exception sites (£0.100m). Funds have been de-committed for
Helmsley CPO (£1.011m) and Assembly & Milton Rooms works (£0.340m).
A carry forward of £1.301m is requested to support delays in programme delivery in
2020/21.
Of the £1.163m capital expenditure incurred some £0.059m was funded through
capital receipts, £0.265m from Earmarked Reserves with a further £0.776m being
financed by external grants and contributions, and £0.063m from revenue.
Further details can be found at Appendix B.

5.4

Reserves
As a result of planned activity, lower than expected capital costs and the transfer of
the surplus to reserves, the position as at 31.03.20 is shown below with reserves of
£15.8m. This is an increase from the previous year’s position by £834k. the bulk of
which is either from planned contributions or are earmarked for costs delayed from
2019-20. Figures below are £000s/

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Strategic Reserve
Election Reserve

31.03.19
3,981
5,524
964
2,087
2,323
55
14,934

31.03.20
3,981
5,547
996
2,760
2,527
-23
15,788

change Notes
0
23
32
673
1
204
2
-78
3
854

Notes:
1. Planned allocation to reserves from New Homes Bonus grant
2. Includes £168k for costs expected in 2019-20, now expected in 2020-21
3. Reflects spend every four years, with annual contribution from revenue. Therefore
this reserve will occasionally show a negative balance

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Included in the body of the report

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications identified as part of this report

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 300

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Michelle Oates
01609 534196
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 301

This page is intentionally left blank

Management Accounts 2019/20
Results as at Quarter 4 - 2019/20
Prior Year
Actual

Latest
Approved
Budget

Year to Date
Actual
Budget

COMMENTS

Variances
Q4 Outturn
Q3 Forecast

INCOME
Fees & Charges

(2,891)

(2,801)

(2,774)

(2,801)

27

14

Government Grants

(263)

(198)

(205)

(198)

(7)

0

Small grants contributing towards costs of electoral registration and from Police & Crime Comm

Grants & Contributions Inc

(112)

(268)

(296)

(268)

(28)

0

Main variance relates to Homeless Prevention contributions for Oct - March. This is contributing towards
salary costs which are shown in the expenditure rows below

(8,697)

(9,059)

(8,068)

(9,059)

991

(1)

(197)

(198)

(263)

(198)

(65)

(46)

Housing Benefits
Investment Income

Waste Collection & Recycling Inc

Benefit subsidy less than anticipated, offset by reduction in payments below. Overall net is income of £98k
Surplus estimated due to cash balances being higher than expected, mainly due to capital programme
slippage
In 19/20 the recycling income was £56k above the original estimate due to additional income from the sale of
recyclate materials due to higher than forecast market prices. The change since Q3 is due to actuals rather
than best estimates of forecast garden waste tonnages (year on year total tonnages remain consistent) and
recycling credits on the kerbside recycling service due to reduced tonnages in February and March.
Increased deficit relates to no charges being applied to capital schemes in year. Represents internal charges
between services.

(1,920)

(1,807)

(1,863)

(1,807)

(56)

(11)

79

103

79

24

7

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

(14,091)

(14,253)

(13,367)

(14,253)

886

(144)

Salaries & Employee Costs

6,964

7,464

7,747

7,464

283

268

Overall overspend of £183k, when £100k for capacity below is included The largest area of overspend is in
StreetScene due to overtime and agency staff. This is being addressed in 2020/21 and a review has been
commissioned to look at remedial actions. A small number of services have run smaller overspends, which
are being addressed as part of the work to align the approved establishment.

Recharges

(118)

Net impact of various estimated surpluses and deficits against fees & charges

2,361

2,150

2,361

(210)

(80)

596

644

565

644

(79)

(39)

Increase in surplus between Q3 and outturn is mostly in relation to diesel usage in year being less than
estimated at Q3 by £23k, along with increased savings on lease payments due to delays in timing of
replacements.

1,166

1,078

1,210

1,078

132

87

Drainage Board Levies

97

102

98

102

(4)

(4)

Grants & Contributions

350

258

228

258

(30)

(1)

8,495

8,911

7,970

8,911

(941)

0

93

202

103

103

(100)

(100)
0

Page 303

1,899

There have been a number of smaller variances which contribute to the increased surplus between Q3 and
outturn in addition to a few larger items such as Building Control surplus distribution (£25k), B&B fees for
Homeless (£41k), although this is partially offset in redcued benefit income within fees and charges. Lower
than estimated waste disposal costs (£91) - partially offset by shortfall in waste income. These are offset by
settlement of Planning Appeal £19k and Streetscene in-year stock allocation £50k

Supplies & Services

Vehicles & Transport

Premises

Housing Benefit Payments
Additional Capacity & Provisions
Interest Payable
Capital A/c
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE
FINANCING & RESERVES
Collection Fund Surplus

55

58

54

58

(4)

191

(635)

(628)

(635)

7

0

19,907

20,443

19,496

20,443

(947)

131

13

13

13

0

0

Council Tax

(4,118)

(4,271)

(4,271)

(4,271)

0

0

NNDR

(2,535)

(3,037)

(3,036)

(3,037)

0

0

(143)

0

0

0

0

0

(1,626)

(944)

(940)

(944)

4

(6)

1,228

2,048

2,073

2,048

25

17

TOTAL FINANCING & RESERVES

(7,214)

(6,190)

(6,161)

(6,190)

29

11

GF (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

(1,399)

0

(32)

0

(32)

(2)

RSG
General Government Grant
Transfers to / from Reserves

Annual inflation on levies lower than estimated
Underspend against budgeted various community grant funds. Carryforward requests have been put forward
to award some of these funds in 20/21
See Housing Benefits Income (above)
Budget for additional resource / capacity included here. Pay & Rewards policy implemented from April 20

Reduced planned drawdown from Election reserve , costs lower than estimated - underspend offset in
supplies and services.

APPENDIX A

0
(20)

The biggest contributory factors to this overspend include repairs and maintenance costs at Ryedale House
£30k and around £50k overspend against various other R&M budgets, partially offset by repair works at the
Depot less than estimated. Savings on the Leisure contract have been set aside as contingency for potential
future claim costs.

Capital Monitoring 2019/20 - Results as at Quarter 4

Category / Scheme

Desciption

Original

Carry
Forward

£'000

£'000

20

186

2019/20
Supp
Revised
Estimate
Budget
£'000

YTD Exp

Variance

2020/21
Carry
Forward

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

206

52

(155)

155

Update Comments

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Vehicle Replacement Programme

Replacement for recycling, street
cleansing and grass cutting services

Trade Waste Equipment

Replacement of trade waste bulk bins /
roll out of glass recycling / additional
recycling boxes

0

20

100

120

87

(33)

33

Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey

Investment / Operational Assets
Leisure Facilities

0
0

0
0

0
0

32
99

35
1

3
(98)

(3)
98

Property Condition Survey

Milton Rooms

0

40

0

175

49

(126)

Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey

Depot
Public Conveniences
Car Parks
Street Lights
St Leonards Wall
Unallocated

0
0
0
0
0
110

0
0
0
0
0
547

0
0
0
0
0
0

87
225
30
60
30
(41)

0
0
0
0
0
22

(87)
(225)
(30)
(60)
(30)
63

£100k approved April 19 Council to purchase blue
boxes

£40k transferred from Preservation Works to fund
126 Fire replacement system at Milton Rooms, and
£96k for 20/21
87
225
30
60
30
(63) Public Open Space Development

Page 304

Ryedale Hub

Programme review & feasibility work
being undertaken

2,250

(2,234)

16

15

(1)

Programme Review and fasibility work being
1 undertaken. Remainder budget Carried forward to
20/21

IT Infrastucture Strategy

Essential upgrade of IT Infrastructure

10

117

127

66

(61)

Primarily network security/refresh requirements, in
61 addition to £40k microsoft licensing which is
subject to approval pending update to strategy

4

Incab Technology
Garage Inspection pit

Essential upgrade to accomoodate new
style of vehicle

Aff Hsg Init - Exception Sites
Land Purchase

Contribution to RSL land acquisitions

Aff Housing - Railway Tavern

Initial acquisition costs and feasibility
works - Railway Tavern

Aff Hsg Init - Property
Improvement Loans

Recoverable Loans to ensure properties
are to the decent home standard

Aff Hsg Init - Landlord
Improvement Loans/Grants
Private Sector Energy Efficiency
Grants
Private Sector Renewal Disabled Facilities Grants

Recoverable Loans or Grants to
Landlords

Community Housing Fund

Helmsley CPO
Assembly and Milton Rooms Preservation Works

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Improve access to and within properties
for people
Development of Community lead housing
within the District
Scheme in partnership with Registered
Social Landlord
To enable Housing Development in
Helmsley
Work required under terms of lease to
prevent further deterioration of building

TOTAL

0

0

0

50

50

0

100

100

0

0

0

191

185

75

0

75

15

191

4

(4)

(50)

50

(100)

100

(6)

6

(60)

0

(44)

0

(4)

0

94

0

(289)

289

(21)

21

50

0

50

6

40

0

40

36

496

0

496

590

0

289

289

0

0

21

21

0

0

1,011

1,011

0

(1,011)

0

340

340

0

(340)

3,051

487

3,829

1,163

(2,666)

291

Approved May / June '19

0 Removed as part of 20/21 budget
0

£136k transferred to Milton Condition works, split
£40k 19/20, £96k 20/21. Remainder de-comitted

1,301 TOTAL

APPENDIX B

Mortgage Rescue Scheme

Provide insulation improvements

0

Agenda Item 12b

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

COUNCIL

DATE:

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING – Q1
2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The revenue budget for 2020-21 was approved by Council on 20 February 2020. This
report and associated appendices present the financial performance against the
budget as at 30 June 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that Council
i)
ii)

Endorses the actions of officers and note the contents of the report.
Agrees that an amount from reserves will be required to offset the net
additional costs arising from COVID.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that budget exceptions are brought to the attention of the Council in order
to approve remedial action where necessary.

3.2

To note the treatment of the surplus.

4.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

4.1

The financial position and performance against budget is fundamental to delivery of
the Council’s Plan, achieving value for money and ensuring financial stability.

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 305

5.0

REPORT DETAILS

5.1

Summary
General Fund (Appendix A)
The forecast year-end position estimates a deficit of £1.825m. Further details are set
out below. Planned savings and efficiencies of £434k for the year, identified as part
of the 2020/21 budget setting process were built into the base budgets and are
reflected in the numbers below and appendix A. Most of the savings were identified
following the review of budgets to ensure that they more realistically reflected current
estimates, although £38k of efficiencies were identified as a target to reduce costs /
maximise income.
Covid-19
Forecasts have been prepared using the latest information gathered for the Financial
impacts monitoring returns to MHCLG. As the year progresses, our assumptions will
be refined as the on-going impacts become clearer. Whilst there is potential for
additional compensation from Central Government specifically for lost income
(submissions to be made in early October), and for spreading the impact of Collection
fund losses over more than one year, it is still envisaged there will be a requirement
to fund in-year losses from earmarked reserves. A review of the Council’s reserves
and requirement to earmark funds for Covid-19 will be carried out as part of the 202122 budget preparation. At this stage, Council is asked to agree that a sufficient
amount will be earmarked from reserves to cover the additional costs. This could
include the additional funding of £108k which was allocated to reserves following the
decision to increase Council Tax at the budget meeting in February.
Capital (Appendix B)
The current approved programme of £5.353m is forecast to overspend by around
£2m as at the end of Q1 largely to an assumption that there will be no spending on
the Public Services Hub in the current financial year/ This may of course change and
will be kept under review. Elsewhere in the plan there are some higher than
anticipated costs in Property condition works. As the remainder of the programme
progresses, this position will be kept under review. In March 20, council approved in
principal repair works to the old waste transfer site, although costs for this are not yet
finalised, funding from within the programme will need to be identified.

5.2

Revenue
The table below sets out the summary position, with details of forecast variances
included in Appendix A.
General Fund Account – Q1 2020/21
Net Revenue Budget
Settlement Funding RSG/NDR
Amount to be met from Council Tax
Council Tax
Collection Fund Deficit
Net Revenue Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

COUNCIL

Budget
£000’s
8,813
(4,351)
4,462
(4,429)
(33)
0

Forecast
£000’s
10,201
(4,358)
5,843
(3,985)
(33)
1,825

Variance
£000’s
1,388
(7)
1,381
444
0
1,825

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 306

The main variances are:
Expenditure
-

All Employee-related costs (excluding consultants). Based on latest
estimates, the base establishment is forecast to be on track. The final agreed
pay award will add costs of approximately £5k above budget, but these are likely
to be offset by savings on travel and other costs that have occurred as part of
lockdown. However, the additional costs relating measures that have been put in
place around Covid-19 activities are estimated at £308k for the year

-

Supplies and Services – The forecast deficit against supplies and services is
predominantly in relation to Covid-19.

-

Vehicles and Transport – Additional expenses due to Covid-19 measures are
forecast at £35k.

-

Premises related – A forecast overspend of £4k is expected against public
conveniences due to Covid-19 requirements. In addition, extra costs of £30k
relating to the old Waste Transfer station depot are expected due to delays in
vacating the old premises.

Income

5.3

-

Fees and Charges – A shortfall of £536k is estimated again, relating to Covid19, most significantly being from Car Parking, along with Markets, Commercial
rents and Planning

-

Housing Benefits – Due to temporary hold on recovery, it is expected there will
be an increase in irrecoverable Housing Benefit overpayments, £17k

-

Investment Income – A shortfall in investment income of £50k is forecast as a
result in a significant fall in the base rate following Covid-19 measures put in
place by Central Government.

-

Waste Collection & Recycling – £31k shortfall due to the combined impact of
lost income, primarily in relation to commercial waste collections. This is partially
offset by increases in green waste and recycling tonnages resulting from changes
in activity during Covid lock-down and expected recovery.

Capital Programme

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 307

At the end of quarter 1, expenditure to date shows limited progress to date against the
Capital Programme. The latest budget includes carry-forwards of £1.3m from 19/20
programme slippage and supplementary estimate for Railway Tavern £731K

Capital Programme – 2020/21
Asset Management
Housing

Budget
Forecast Variance
£000’s
£000’s
£000’s
3,545
1,360
2,185
1,808
1,808
0

Total Programme

5,353

3,168

2,185

The original capital budget for the financial year 2020/21 totalled £3.321m. The initial
plans have been revised to incorporate expenditure re-profiled from the previous year
of £1.301m, and additional supplementary estimate of £731.4k giving a revised budget
of £5.353m
The impact of Covid-19 has created some delays in progressing in year schemes as
other priorities have come in to play.
Current forecast spend for the programme is £3.168m. This takes account of a
significant underspend on the Public Service Hub but also a projected underspend of
£50k relating to works at St Leonards wall where quotes received have come in at
around £80k, the additional costs are primarily in relation to the scope of works
required. A separate report is being prepared setting out details, and will require
approval for additional funds and for the works order to be raised.
Further details can be found at Appendix B.
6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Included in the body of the report

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications identified as part of this report

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:

Michelle Oates

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 308

Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

01609 534196
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

COUNCIL

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 309

This page is intentionally left blank

Management Accounts 2020/21
Results as at Quarter 1 - 2020/21
Prior Year

Latest
Approved

Actual

Budget

Full Year

Year to Date
Actual

Budget

Variances
Forecast
Year to Date
Variance

Forecast

COMMENTS

INCOME
Fees & Charges

Loss of income as a result of Covid measures, most significantly Car Parking, Markets, Commercial Rents
and Planning

(2,774)

(2,925)

(339)

(731)

(2,390)

392

536

Government Grants

(205)

(74)

(132)

(19)

(74)

(113)

0

Grants & Contributions Inc

(296)

(225)

11

(56)

(225)

67

0

(8,068)

(8,122)

(77)

(2,031)

(8,105)

1,954

17

Potential increase in irrecoverable Housing benefit overpayments as a result of Covid measures

(263)

(205)

(53)

(51)

(155)

(2)

50

Loss in income due to significant fall in base rate following Covid - this will take time to filter into current
investment rates

31

Combined imact of lost income,primarily in relation to commercial waste collections, which is partially offset by
increases in green waste and recyling - resulting from changes in activity during Covid lock-down and
expected recovery

Housing Benefits
Investment Income

Waste Collection & Recycling Inc
Recharges
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME
Salaries & Employee Costs

Page 311

Supplies & Services
Vehicles & Transport
Premises
Drainage Board Levies
Grants & Contributions

(1,863)

(1,867)

(1,130)

(467)

(1,836)

(663)

103

(66)

(4)

(225)

(66)

221

0

(13,367)

(13,485)

(1,725)

(3,580)

(12,851)

1,855

634

7,747

8,451

1,966

2,113

8,754

(146)

303

2,150

2,681

581

670

3,064

(89)

383

Forecast overspends in salaries arising from additional costs due to covid measures across services.
Impact across various cost headings in relation to Covid acitvities and measures.

565

771

293

193

806

100

35

1,210

999

370

250

1,032

120

34

98

100

50

25

100

25

0

Additional costs relating to extension of lease for former Waste Transfer Station - 6 months

435

133

109

435

24

0

8,005

1,797

2,001

8,005

(204)

0

103

43

0

11

43

(11)

0

54

58

(20)

15

58

(35)

0

(628)

240

(1)

60

240

(61)

0

19,496

21,781

5,169

5,445

22,536

(276)

754

0
13

(33)

0

(8)

(33)

8

0

Council Tax

(4,271)

(4,429)

547

(1,107)

(3,985)

1,654

443

Expected losses in Council Tax as a result of increases in Council tax support claims and non-payment as a
result of Covid.

NNDR

(3,036)

(2,912)

(1,302)

(728)

(2,256)

(574)

656

Expected un-funded losses from Business rates as a result of the economic impact of Covid

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(940)

(1,439)

(791)

(360)

(2,102)

(431)

(664)

Additional Capacity & Provisions
Interest Payable
Capital A/c
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE
FINANCING & RESERVES
Collection Fund Surplus

RSG
General Government Grant
Transfers to / from Reserves
TOTAL FINANCING & RESERVES
GF (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

2,105

516

0

129

516

(129)

0

(6,129)

(8,296)

(1,546)

(2,074)

(7,860)

528

436

0

0

1,898

(208)

1,825

2,107

1,825

Covid Funding - tranche 1-3

`

APPENDIX A

228
7,970

Housing Benefit Payments

This page is intentionally left blank

Capital Monitoring 2020/21 - Results as at Quarter 1

Category / Scheme

Desciption

Original

Carry
Forward

Supp
Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

40

155

0

33

2020/21
Revised
Budget

YTD Exp

Forecast

Forecast
Variance

Est.

Est.

Est.

Total
Approved
Budget

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

195

195

0

40

40

40

315

33

33

0

0

0

0

33

£'000

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Update Comments

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Replacement for recycling, street
cleansing and grass cutting services

Trade Waste Equipment

Replacement of trade waste bulk bins /
roll out of glass recycling / additional
recycling boxes

Property Condition Survey

Investment / Operational Assets

Property Condition Survey

Leisure Facilities

Property Condition Survey

Milton Rooms

Property Condition Survey

Depot

Property Condition Survey

Public Conveniences

Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey

Car Parks
Street Lights

Property Condition Survey

St Leonards Wall

Property Condition Survey

Unallocated

Ryedale Hub

Programme review & feasibility work
being undertaken

IT Infrastucture Strategy

Essential upgrade of IT Infrastructure

Garage Inspection pit

Essential upgrade to accomoodate new
style of vehicle

Page 313

Vehicle Replacement Programme

32

Aff Hsg Init - Exception Sites
Land Purchase

Contribution to RSL land acquisitions

Aff Housing - Railway Tavern

Initial acquisition costs and feasibility
works - Railway Tavern
Recoverable Loans to ensure properties
are to the decent home standard

Aff Hsg Init - Landlord
Improvement Loans/Grants
Private Sector Energy Efficiency
Grants
Private Sector Renewal Disabled Facilities Grants

Recoverable Loans or Grants to
Landlords

Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
TOTAL CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

32

32

0

0

0

0

32

0

98

98

98

0

0

0

0

98 Council approved £92k 19 March 2020

96

126

222

222

0

0

0

0

87

87

87

0

0

0

0

87

0

225

225

225

0

0

0

0

225

0
0

30
60

30
60

30
60

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

30
60

0

30

30

80

50

0

0

0

Quotes have been received for the work in
30 August, a report is required for approval of the
works order and additional funding

58

(66)

(8)

(8)

0

110

110

110

2,234

1

2,235

0

(2,235)

0

0

0

200

57

257

257

0

200

0

0

50

50

50

0

0

0

50

0

100

0

100

0

6

0

737

75

0

0

150

0

100

26

100

100
731

737

1

737

0

40

0

Improve access to and within properties
for people
Development of Community lead housing
within the District
Scheme in partnership with Registered
Social Landlord

496

0

0

289

0

21

TOTAL

3,321

1,301

0
0

75
75

50

Provide insulation improvements

6

50

1

50
40
496

496

289

289

21

21

5,353

0

34

3,168

Awaiting final costs to be agreed - Council report
19 March 2020

322
Programme Review and feasibility work being
2,235 undertaken. Remainder budget Carried forward to
20/21
Primarily network security/refresh requirements, in
457 addition to £40k microsoft licensing which is
subject to approval pending update to strategy

Approval for additional £731.4k for redevelopment
works Approved March 20

75
0

40

731

0

£40k transferred from Preservation Works to fund
222 Fire replacement system at Milton Rooms, and
£96k for 20/21

0
0
0
0
0

(2,185)

50
40

0

496

496

0

0

0

0

1,011

646

80
496

1,984
289
21

646

7,656 TOTAL

APPENDIX B

Aff Hsg Init - Property
Improvement Loans

Remaining funding of £100k approved April 19
Council to purchase blue boxes

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12c

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

RYEDALE’S FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2020-24

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report provides an update on the Council’s Financial Strategy and sets out the some of
the key issues which we will look at in coming months as we finalise the budget for next year.
It also notes the impact of COVID on the Council’s finances and the timescales for reviewing
and agreeing revisions to the Strategy.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Council is asked




to note the content of this report, and
to agree the proposed approach in pulling together the financial plan, and
to agree the timescales as set out in the report

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To ensure proper process is in place to develop the Financial Strategy for the period 202024

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

When presented to Council, the Financial Strategy and budget proposals for 2021-22 will
contain a full risk and impact assessment highlighting all relevant mitigating controls.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Financial Strategy is a key strategy document that affects all service delivery. It links to
the Corporate Plan and all other strategic plans as well as providing the means for attaining
the Council’s objectives and priorities.
COUNCIL Page 1
10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 315

5.2

The Policy and Resources Committee is the Committee designated to make
recommendations to the Council relating to the budget and levels of Council Tax.
Consequently, recommendations from this Committee will inform the Council and
subsequently the Council Tax resolution.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS
Introduction

6.1

Council approved the RDC Financial Strategy 2020-24 on 10 October 2019. On 20 February
2020, Council then approved the detail required to set the current year’s budget.

6.2

As part of this, a new Commercial Strategy was agreed as a key driver to deal with future
financial pressures and a need to plug a likely funding gap in the years to come or to fund
investment in services, and to look at how the Council can become self-sufficient other than
where specific grants are allocated by central government.

6.3

The Strategy considers where certain discretionary services can be funded by those who use
them rather than the general taxpayer, alongside a requirement to ensure that the Council
provides the best value for money to the people of Ryedale.

6.4

Although income generation is very important, the Council’s Commercial Strategy also looks
at how we can ensure that every spending decision is taken with a view to ensuring the best
value for money for taxpayers. We will also ensure that we become infuse our procurement
and commissioning decisions with an “intelligent client” ethos.

6.5

In summary therefore this Strategy noted that we would





6.6

Look at all non-statutory services and investigate potential for full cost recovery or
increasing user contribution to their cost
Shape potential markets for delivering traded services and look at how generated
surplus can be used
Review our procurement strategy to ensure that a commercial approach is taken
Ensure that all purchasing decisions are guided by a value for money approach

Progress on this has unfortunately been impacted by the effects on the Council of COVID19. The Financial Strategy and 2020-21 approved budget include a number of income
targets over the next few years and these remain in place. However as we work through the
revision to the Financial Strategy and take account of Quarterly Budget Monitoring, we will
consider and immediate financial impact, as well as review the timescales for review of the
areas outlined above

Timescales
6.7

The budget process begins in earnest in August although preparatory work within the
Finance Team began in July. The need for public consultation (consultation with ratepayers
is a statutory requirement) and the lead in time for Policy & Resources mean that to enable
full engagement with Policy & Resources members, Senior Management Board, Service
and Budget Managers, the process needs to begin as soon as final accounts work is
complete. That said, budget managers will consider their future budget requirements as
part of service planning and in reality budgeting should be an ongoing process informed by
in-year budget management and horizon scanning.

COUNCIL Page 2

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 316

6.8

The annual process is the opportunity for Budget Managers to refine and collate detailed
proposals for consideration by senior management and members and ultimately for
inclusion in the Council’s budget for the coming year.

6.9

The table below sets out the timetable that will ensure we meet targets and undergo due
process in setting a budget

Annual Budget proposed timetable
Who?

When?

What?

Finance

By end of
August

Preparatory work – key messages re
approach and process ; pay budgets
rolled forward based on approved
establishment and budgets updated for
inflation where appropriate
(pay/contracts/utilities)
Ongoing assessment of impact of
COVID-19

Management
Teams/Budget
Managers (with
support from
Finance in high risk
areas)

August September

Detailed budget requirements including
savings, commitments, growth, strategic
programmes.

Council

10 September

Consideration of Financial Strategy and
intended timescales

Members Briefing

TBC

Present key issues to members and
seek steer on proposals which are
supported, those which require more
detail and those which are rejected.

P&R

12 November

Consider draft budget data and any
proposals (including regarding public
consultation) at this stage and follow up
of issues from Members’ Briefing.

Council

3 December

Consider draft budget data and any
proposals (including regarding public
consultation) at this stage and follow up
of issues from Members’ Briefing.

Public Consultation

7 December –
12 January

Policy & Resources

4 February

COUNCIL Page 3

Budget and Council Tax proposals
agreed for submission to Council

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 317

Council

18 February

Formal budget and council tax setting

Impact of COVID-19
6.10

In 2020-21, the Council has received £716k as a contribution to the costs arising directly
from the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic. As at 31 July 2002, costs of £667k had
already been incurred and it is therefore likely that the income provided will not be enough,
unless it is increased. There will therefore be a net cost to the Council. The Council has
already set aside £270k to contribute to these costs: £20k from the grants budget and
£250k from reserves.

6.11

At this stage we do not know for certain what that cost will be. Our July return to MHCLG
shows this could be £2.9m in total and therefore – after using the £270k already agreed
and the £716k of government funding – a £1.9m net cost to RDC, as reflected in the Q1
Monitoring Report. This includes Council Tax and NNDR costs of £1.1m.

6.12

The costs we are incurring are described below, and include lost income.

Housing - including Homelessness
Leisure
Environmental Services
Finance and Corporate Costs
Lost investment income
Capital costs
Other staffing
PPE
Support to Businesses
Savings not achieved
Community work/shielding
Reopening High Streets safely
Council Tax Court Costs
Other costs
Council Tax income lost
NNDR income lost
Car Park income
Planning Application Fees
Rental income
Pest Control income
Waste Collection income
Market income
Other income

160,000
50,000
194,945
60,257
100,000
163,050
256,356
28,000
80,000
25,327
20,000
49,266
43,323
22,730
443,279
656,468
359,015
58,156
30,000
8,922
35,526
22,498
16,385

2,883,503

COUNCIL Page 4

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 318

6.13

Central government will also make available a scheme to “compensate councils for
irrecoverable and unavoidable losses from sales, fees and charges income generated in
the delivery of services, in the financial year 2020-21”. This means that where the Council
has budgeted for something as income (sales, fees and charges), and has suffered losses
to that income, then compensation will be payable. Authorities will have to absorb the initial
5% of losses (the 5% deductible), with central government compensating 75% of losses
above this threshold. Any recovered income would therefore contribute to the gap above.

6.14

It is stressed that this is a moving position and based on a number of assumptions
of what might happen between now and the end of the financial year, but the excess
amount can be covered by reserves in the current financial year. The Q1 report notes that
the Council should consider setting aside an appropriate amount from reserves to cover
this.

6.15

A summary of available reserves is shown below.

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Strategic Reserve
Election Reserve

31.03.20
£000s
3,981
5,547
996
2,760
2,527
-23
15,788

6.15

The Local Government Act 2003 places a specific duty on the Chief Finance Officer (s151),
to make a report to the authority when it is considering its budget and the level of the
Council Tax. This report must deal with the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy
of reserves allowed for in the budget proposals. The Council must have regard to this report
in making their decisions.

6.16

The Council also has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers and the Chief Finance Officer must
be satisfied that the decisions taken on the level of balances and reserves represent the
proper stewardship of funds.

6.17

In assessing the adequacy of the contingencies, balances and reserves, the Chief Finance
Officer takes account of the key financial assumptions underpinning the budget, together
with an assessment of the Council’s financial management arrangements. This assessment
will include a review of past performance and external influences on the financial plan, and
full consideration of the risks and uncertainties associated with the plan, their likelihood and
potential impact.

6.18

The Council’s policy is to maintain its contingencies, balances and reserves at levels that
are prudent but not excessive. With the outlook for the years after 2020/21 and beyond
currently uncertain, and the scale and risk of achieving cost reduction being high, any
reserves identified as being surplus should be prioritised to invest to save schemes and, if
required, to smooth the curve of cost reduction in the light of timescales needed to drive
costs out.

COUNCIL Page 5

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 319

6.19

It is assumed that General Balances are not used to support the revenue budget but may
be used for temporary or on-off costs – although such costs will be clearly managed and
agreed through the use of the Strategic Reserve. In 2020-21, specific amounts have been
set aside for potential costs of Brexit (£50k), contributions to matched funding from external
bids (£10k) and any necessary furniture costs, pending decisions on the Public Services
Hub. Added to this will be the requirement to fund COVID-19 costs not reimbursed by
central government.

6.20

General Balances are funding of last resort. Taking account of the size of the Council’s
revenue budget and risks being managed, a minimum working balance of £1m would seem
appropriate.

6.21

Whilst the impact in 2020-21 of COVID-19 will be covered by reserves, the Financial
Strategy needs to take account of the ongoing revenue impact in future years. Even without
any further increase in cases and potential lock-down of at least some areas of the
economy, it is likely that there will be a financial hangover from the pandemic’s impact so
far.

Areas requiring further work
6.22

The following areas have been highlighted where further work is required and this will be
undertaken and feed into the process and timescales outlined in this paper. This is of
course in addition to the normal budget preparation work required


Impact of COVID on costs and income



Commercial Strategy and assumptions already in budget



Staffing Capacity. Additional funding was made in 2019-20 and 2020-21 to build
capacity in key performance areas and this will be reviewed



Potential impact of any post-Brexit deal with the EU, including impact on workforce



Capital Strategy and Plan

Local Government Review and Devolution
6.23

At this stage, work will continue assuming that Ryedale District Council will continue in its
current form. This may change in due course

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Financial implications are explained throughout this report
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

COUNCIL Page 6

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 320

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted that any
proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Climate
Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as part of the budget
process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

COUNCIL Page 7

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 321

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 19 MARCH 2020

122

Council Plan 2020-2024

Considered – report of the Chief Executive
Comments received from the Liberal Group on the Council Plan 2020-2024
document were circulated and discussed.
Recommendation
That the Council Plan 2020-2024 is approved, which is attached as Appendix 1 to the
report.
Voting record
4 For
2 Against

Council

Page 323

10 September 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 MARCH 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
STACEY BURLET

TITLE OF REPORT:

COUNCIL PLAN 2020-2024

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To present Committee with the draft Council Plan 2020-2024 for consideration and
approval if deemed appropriate.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)
the Council Plan 2020-2024 is approved, which is attached as Appendix 1 to
this document.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

A Council Plan is a necessary strategic document for guiding the work programme for
the organisation and its employees.

3.2

The current Council Plan is out of date and cannot fulfil this function.

3.3

A series of engagement sessions have taken place with Elected Members and officers
to produce this Plan, with the aim of ensuring that it captures the high level strategic
priorities and routemap to be progressed in the interests of Ryedale’s communities
over the next 4 years.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Not adopting the Plan attached at Appendix 1 means that the organisation will continue
to use the current Plan to guide its work. This is out of date and cannot adequately fulfil
the function of a strategic routemap. Non-adoption will also mean that corporate plans
and work programmes aren’t aligned to current strategic priorities and our performance
framework does not adequately measure our most important priorities.

POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2020

Page 325

4.2

The Council has a duty to communicate what it will achieve to the residents it serves.
A Council Plan is the key strategic document fulfilling this function. To this end, Elected
Members and employees have been engaged in the production of this Plan to ensure
that key agendas relating to communities, the economy, the environment and the
organisation have been considered. This is in the interests of ensuring that Ryedale’s
communities benefit from the implementation of this Plan over the next 4 years.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

This new Council Plan is a significant change from its predecessor. It clearly sets out
the priorities set out by Elected Members, and will be the key strategic document used
by the Council to develop its future policy and performance framework. It is therefore
proposed that, if approved by Elected Members, this version of the plan is used to
develop our supporting policy and planning cycles, including team and individual
performance objectives. The Plan has also been aligned to key agendas at a national
and regional level so that Ryedale can take advantage of funding streams that might
become available. This includes carbon reduction mitigation, town centre rejuvenation
and ‘levelling up’.

5.2

Other corporate documents will be aligned to the Plan post adoption, as will the
performance framework. These documents will provide further detail on how the Plan
will be delivered and measured. It should be noted that the full realignment of the
Council’s policy and performance framework, in line with Elected Members priorities,
will be built up through a series of policy and performance revisions across our delivery
functions and partnerships. This will take time to achieve, but will be subject to approval
and scrutiny of Elected Members as appropriate, to ensure these initiatives deliver the
democratic will of the Council.

5.3

Two workshops involving Elected Members have taken place to develop the content
of the Plan. Elected Members have also provided individual and Group comments,
which have been taken into consideration when producing this draft.

5.4

Significant levels of employee engagement have also taken place, including briefings,
a workshop and a survey. These have also been considered when producing this draft.

5.5

Should the Plan be approved by Committee and Council, a public consultation exercise
will commence from Spring 2020 onwards. This is to enable local people and partners,
to contribute their views, inform more detailed plans and the annual refresh of the Plan.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Council Plan is the most important strategic document of a local authority. It
outlines the priorities and routemap for progress over a period of time.

6.2

Significant levels of engagement have occurred to ensure that the Council Plan 20202024 is fit for purpose. This has involved Elected Members and employees. The plan
reflects four main priorities developed through the engagement process detailed at 5.3
and 5.4:

POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 326

19 MARCH 2020






Our communities: strong, inclusive and attractive
Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth,
homes and jobs
Our environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place to live
Our organisation: an innovative, enterprising council.

6.3

If adopted, other corporate documents, frameworks and strategies will be aligned to
the Plan. The performance framework will also be revised to ensure that we are
measuring progress against the most important objectives that the Council has set.

6.4

The Council Plan will be refreshed each year to ensure that it remains fit for purpose,
and will be presented as part of the suite of papers presented to full Council when
determining its annual budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The Council Plan is a strategic document. Corporate plans and strategies will be
aligned to the Council Plan and this may have financial implications. Any financial
implications will be highlighted when detailed proposals are brought to Committee
and / or Council for approval.
b)

Legal
The Council Plan 2020-24 is a strategic document. Corporate plans and strategies
will be aligned to the Council Plan. Any legal implications will be highlighted when
detailed proposals are brought to Committee and / or Council for approval.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
The Council Plan makes specific statements of intent with respect to equalities,
staffing, environment and climate change, economic development and housing
and crime and disorder. Any specific implications will be highlighted when detailed
proposals are brought to Committee and / or Council for approval.

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Steve Evans, Head of Strategy and Performance
01609 533274
steve.evans@northyorks.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Workshop output – Elected Member workshop, December 2019
Workshop output – Employee workshop, January 2020
Workshop output – Elected Member workshop, March 2020

POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE

19 MARCH 2020

Page 327

This page is intentionally left blank

Council Plan 2020-2024
1. Foreword
Welcome to our 2020-24 Council Plan, which identifies the opportunities for our district,
as well as the challenges we face and how we are going to help tackle them over the
next four years. This is your plan, and you - the people of Ryedale - are at its heart.
We want to build communities for all, create inclusive growth that works for everyone,
and protect our unique environment for future generations. Good quality jobs,
affordable housing, thriving town centres and strong communities, will underpin our
success, as will meeting our environmental responsibilities while delivering economic
growth. As a Council, we are also passionate about innovation, tackling challenges in
new ways and delivering value for money.
We recognise the importance of building long-term partnerships with Government,
business and others working in the public, voluntary and community sectors to achieve
our ambitions. These partnerships will help us to attract new investment to our area and
ensure that Ryedale maximises funding and opportunities. We will also use our voice to
lobby and influence regional and national agendas where this benefits Ryedale and its
communities.
This Plan does not list everything we will do over the next four years. In a rapidly
changing world, our Council Plan will evolve and change over time to ensure it remains
relevant and meets the latest challenges. But it does state our core vision for our
district and the key things we will likely need to do to achieve it.
To deliver our ambitions, we will work together over the next four years. We will update
you on our progress and refresh this Plan annually so you know what we have delivered
so far and what we are doing next.
Councillor Keane Duncan, Leader
Stacey Burlet, Chief Executive

Page 329

1 of 14

2. Our challenges and opportunities
Opportunities: The positive factors we should embrace
• Recognised nationally as one of the happiest places to live in the UK
• Strategic location with links to National Parks, cities and the coast
• Diverse jobs and industries, working locally, nationally and internationally
• Yorkshire’s capital for food and drink, world class products, exceptional taste
experiences
• An amazing natural environment
• Vibrant market towns
• Increasingly popular visitor destination with leading heritage attractions, resorts,
theme parks and unique events
Challenges: The issues we need to tackle
• Sustainability of rural services, communities and economy
• Housing affordability
• Low wages and talent drain out of the area
• Meeting the needs of an ageing population
• Poor digital, transport and communications connectivity
• Rapidly changing national and local policy
• Challenges in managing the natural environment

Page 330

2 of 14

3. Our vision, values and behaviours
Our vision: A great place to live, work and visit, which is culturally unique,
environmentally sustainable and supports connected communities to thrive. We have a
strong rural economy, with world-class assets and new jobs linked to growth including
bio-renewables, food, farming, agriculture, the visitor economy and carbon reduction
technologies.
Our values: the values that underpin everything we do
• Innovative, enterprising and unafraid to work in new ways
• Open, honest and transparent
• Connected and working with others to make things happen
• Ambitious, facilitating and promoting new investment opportunities
• Providing value-for-money
• Nurturing, creating opportunities for young people
• Supporting those in need or are vulnerable
• Valuing our fantastic employees and partners
Our behaviours: the behaviours we use to create a positive, open and constructive
working culture
• Strong: We are open to change, optimistic about the future and determined to
achieve
• Supportive: We support our people, are fair to each other and show trust and respect
• Communicate: We are transparent, positive, listen, share feedback and seek out
opportunities
• Challenge: We promote trust, are confident and have self-belief
• Passionate: We celebrate our achievements, inspire others and perform our best

Page 331

3 of 14

4. Our priorities
Our communities: strong, inclusive and attractive

Help for those in need
• We will tackle homelessness, rough sleeping and poverty by providing services in
partnership with others to prevent homelessness.
• We will offer advice, support and budgeting assistance to those who need it, helping
them to manage their finances, ensuring they can access Citizens’ Advice services
and working with the credit union to promote access to small loans. We will also act
promptly to process benefit applications.
• We will create a district where everyone feels welcome and can thrive. We will
safeguard vulnerable people, become a ‘dementia-friendly’ and ‘autism-friendly’
council, and ensure that equalities, mental health and well-being are at the heart of
service design, giving training to our employees and encouraging businesses and
communities to do the same.
• We want everyone in our communities to be able to live independent lives. We will
promote our Lifeline service and provide wellbeing services, Disabled Facilities
Grants and handyperson services to enable people stay in their own homes. We will
also support community transport schemes to help those in need get around.
•

We will work with partners including health and education to ensure a fair share of
infrastructure investment. We will be a champion for sustainable public services that
continue to meet the specific needs of Ryedale’s communities.

Healthy and happy communities
• Ryedale is home to hundreds of voluntary organisations delivering invaluable services
for local people. We will work with this essential sector to ensure it continues to
flourish. We will aim to build strong communities by contributing to community
events, activities and facilities through our community grants scheme.
• We will promote health and wellbeing for all by offering leisure facilities and access
to physical activity. We will work with our leisure provider and other partners to
expand access to these opportunities and identify funding streams that will support
our aims.
• We will promote our creative industries and expand our cultural offer by supporting
Ryedale’s network of skilled craft businesses and thriving arts hubs.

Page 332

4 of 14

A place like no other - to live, work, visit and invest
•

•

•

•

We want everyone to enjoy Ryedale’s natural beauty, market towns, shops and
amazing attractions. We will promote our area as a hub for food, drink, creative
culture and active recreation.
We will work with partners to meet shortfalls in our visitor accommodation and
increase visitor spend. We will promote the district’s niche and unique activities, as
well as the development of eco-tourism.
We will support our market towns to thrive by installing free Wi-Fi, keeping our
streets tidy and devising a new car parking strategy with residents and visitors at its
heart.
Thousands flock to the district’s popular events, we will expand our events
programme by working with regional agencies, businesses and community groups.

Page 333

5 of 14

Our economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver
growth, homes and jobs

Quality homes local people can afford
• High house prices and rents mean it is difficult for local people to get onto the
property ladder. We will work with our partners to deliver more affordable homes
and ensure a supply of good quality housing that reflects the needs of our
communities at all stages of their lives. We will work with developers and use our
own assets to achieve this, as well as bring more empty properties back into use.
•

We want people to live in high quality, safe and sustainable homes. We will promote
the highest standards of construction and work in partnership to improve energy
efficiency and achieve carbon reduction. We will work with landlords to ensure
rental accommodation, in particular houses in multiple occupation, comply with the
law and follow best practice.

A connected rural economy
• We want everyone, no matter where they live, to be digitally connected. This will
enhance business effectiveness, create higher paid jobs and enable people to take
advantage of opportunities beyond Ryedale’s boundaries. We will support measures
to improve digital skills, expand broadband and mobile telephone coverage,
accelerate changes within town centres and drive competitiveness by investing in
digital innovation.
• We want to improve our road and rail connectivity to unlock economic growth. We
will work with partners to improve the A64, integrated public transport connections
and station facilities.
• We will support and invest in measures to cut congestion and improve traffic flow in
our market towns, including HGV reductions in urban centres. We will facilitate the
construction of new infrastructure through the Local Plan.

Page 334

6 of 14

Open for business
•

•

•

•

•

We want entrepreneurship to flourish across our district. We will promote and
support micro, small and medium sized businesses by exploring the introduction of a
competitive grants scheme for start-ups and offering advice as we recognise the long
term success of this sector is essential to Ryedale’s future success.
We will work with Government, industry and businesses to bring new investment to
the area, expanding the commercial space on offer within the district in a
sustainable way. We will develop the council’s role in providing workshop, incubator
and scale-up space for small start-up businesses and facilitate the expansion of
business parks.
We want young people to believe that Ryedale is a place to build their future. To
retain our young people in the district, we will offer information, training and
opportunities to meet the needs of our modern economy. We will work with partners
to support their start up ideas and build relationships with higher and further
education institutions, focusing upon future skills needs e.g. engineering, green
construction and clean energy.
The Council will champion the benefits of good quality apprenticeships and graduate
opportunities across Ryedale’s business community. We will promote their value and
lead the way as an employer in our own right by employing more apprentices and
graduate trainees.
We will capitalise upon local innovation, world-class agriculture and proximity to
world class higher education establishments. We will seek opportunities related to
the major chemicals industry, emerging bio-renewable opportunities, research and
development.

Page 335

7 of 14

Our environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place to live
Sustainability into the future
• We will take ambitious steps to reduce our carbon footprint through regional and
local initiatives. This includes implementing our Climate Change Action Plan.
• We will lobby Government to provide national structural and policy changes that
allow us to deliver innovative and ambitious climate change actions.
• We will work collaboratively with industry, businesses, communities and others to
deliver local and community led energy solutions, that fulfil the ambition to deliver
carbon neutrality.
•

•

•

We will build the case for installation of income-generating, energy-efficient and
renewable technologies at council-owned buildings. We will replace our street lights
with energy-efficient LEDs, procure more energy-efficient vehicles when replacing
our fleet, and facilitate more tree planting. We will encourage others to do the same
by maximising the impact of our supply chain, partnerships and plans.
We will promote sustainable transport by installing extra electric vehicle charging
points, opening cycle routes and identifying new ways to link our communities in
sustainable ways e.g. electric buses.
We will increase our recycling rate in line with emerging national policy, including by
promoting recycling awareness, investing in our mini-recycling centres, exploring the
possibility of recycling a wider range of materials and working with more trade and
garden waste collection customers. We will also work with partners to expand
‘circular economy’ schemes across the district.

A safe place to live
• Ryedale is a low crime area, but not without its problems. We will tackle anti-social
behavior by working closely with North Yorkshire Police and other partners. We will
also empower communities to identify effective solutions to tackle speeding.
• We want to reduce flooding risk by investing in flood alleviation measures and
working with partners to provide an emergency response.
• We will work in partnership to uphold the highest standards of animal welfare, train
staff to deal with issues and hold public information events.
Clean and attractive streets
• We will take tough action on littering, dog fouling and flytipping through proactive
and dedicated enforcement, prosecuting where required.
• We will improve air quality in our market towns by working with partners to tackle
congestion and promote sustainable transport and commerce.
• We want to keep our streets clean. We will improve our Streetscene operations and
support communities to do more.
•

We will protect Ryedale’s heritage and natural capital by regularly reviewing our
listed buildings, historic assets, protected landscapes and conservation areas.

Page 336

8 of 14

Our organisation: an innovative, enterprising council
Value for money
• We will maintain strong finances into the future by delivering customer-focussed and
cost-effective core services.
• We will drive service improvements. We will ensure we process applications and
requests promptly and monitor the effectiveness of our contracts and commissioned
services. We will also develop a capital programme that invests in the equipment and
resources we need to achieve more efficient services.
• We will deliver services in new ways, acting in a more enterprising manner, exploring
opportunities to generate income on a case-by-case basis.
Accessible to all
• We will transform our customer services, using new ways of working to improve our
responsiveness. We will revamp our website, increase our social media presence and
introduce digital systems for you to report issues and receive information. We will
support those who are digitally excluded or need support to access on line services.
We will bring partners into Ryedale House and provide options for a “one-stop”
Public Services Hub.
• We will tackle inequality. Delivering better equality across the district is central to
everything we do and we are committed to doing all we can to be a welcoming and
inclusive place characterised by diversity.
• We will be open, honest and transparent by publishing key policies and financial
information and responding promptly to freedom of information requests.
• We will improve our engagement with you, asking for your views, and using your
feedback. We will ensure decisions are taken in the most effective way, by
consulting with those affected and strengthening the voice of councillors at ward
level.
A great place to work
• We will ensure the council is a great place to work by recruiting and retaining
motivated, skilled employees. We will empower them to deliver ambitiously for
Ryedale, promote wellbeing and publish the results of staff surveys.
• We will nurture talent through succession planning, recruiting graduate trainees and
apprentices, implementing a work experience programme for care leavers, and
ensuring that training and development opportunities are available for all employees.

Page 337

9 of 14

5. Our approach: Strategies, services and partnerships underpin
the delivery of our Council Plan
Strategies
Our plan is supported by a number of key strategies:
•
•
•
•
•

Local Plan
Medium-Term Financial Strategy
Commercial Strategy
Capital Programme
Ryedale Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Review and Strategy 2020-2025

We also deliver strategies in partnership with others:
•
•
•
•
•

Destination Development Plan
North Yorkshire Community Safety Partnership Strategic Plan
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan
NYCC Local Flood Risk Strategy
Ryedale Housing Strategy Action Plan 2015- 2021

Other key plans, such as our Climate Change Action Plan, are also routinely monitored
because of their importance in shaping our work.
A governance and monitoring framework is also in place to support this strategic work.
This includes the Council’s constitution, performance framework and its underpinning
policies, operating procedures, service planning, budget monitoring and delivery
programmes.

Page 338

10 of 14

Services
We deliver a range of frontline services including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Housing options and homelessness prevention and support
Ryecare Lifeline Service/24-hour Support Centre for elderly and vulnerable people
Household and trade waste collection and recycling
Street cleansing and emptying litter and dog bins
Public toilets
Pest control

•
•
•

Grounds maintenance and grass cutting
Street lighting (RDC owned)
Enforcement activity against anti-social behaviour, fly-tipping, litter, dog fouling,
planning transgressions, graffiti, public nuisance
Benefits services and the collection of Council tax and business rates
Advice and assessment of planning applications
Conservation services including listed buildings and tree and hedgerow protection
Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 monies
Inspecting food premises, food sampling, coordinating the Food Hygiene Rating
Scheme, food poisoning investigation and control, implementing imported food
controls and issuing Export Health Certificates
Registration of premises (tattooing, skin piercing, acupuncture and electrolysis)
Licensing taxis and private hires, alcohol and entertainment, animal welfare,
dangerous wild animals, gambling, street trading and scrap metal
Customer services and complaints management
Community development and engagement
Support for businesses including referral and signposting services that help them to
grow and / or locate in Ryedale

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

This work is enabled by a range of other services including finance, human resources and
organisational development, legal and democratic, communications, technology and
business change, facilities management, procurement and vehicle and transport
management.
We also provide funding to support:
•
•
•
•
•

Access to grants, ranging from community groups to Disabled Facilities Grants
Access to Wellbeing and Handy person’s service
The delivery of leisure services through Everyone Active
The delivery of advice services through Citizens’ Advice
The delivery of the Building Services Partnership

Page 339

11 of 14

Page 340

12 of 14

Partnerships
We work in partnership to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

Promote community safety through prevention, intervention and enforcement work,
including road, home, personal and public safety, and multi-agency work.
Safeguard vulnerable people
Combat radical extremism and anti-terrorism
Prevent child exploitation and modern slavery
Address and support those affected by domestic abuse
Support care leavers and young people in care
Prepare for emergency situations occurring locally
Manage and alleviate flooding
Secure funding for new developments and improve existing facilities
Improve air quality
Support communities to produce Neighbourhood Plans, Parish Plans and Village
Design Statements
Co-ordinate new development across York and North Yorkshire
Facilitate the delivery of affordable homes
Promote and develop the Ryedale tourism sector and visitor economy through
supporting product development and delivering marketing and promotional
campaigns.
Support the creative economy through securing new and continued investment and
maximising opportunities to use the arts, heritage and events to promote improved
health and well-being.
Identify and deliver projects to develop land, provide premises, improve
infrastructure and enhance our towns and villages by securing external funding and
investment opportunities
Carry out practical work, provide advice and offer grants towards land management,
landscape and biodiversity enhancements, alongside community and leisure and
recreation activities through working with the NYMNPA and the HH AONB.

Our partners include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Charities and third sector organisations operating throughout Ryedale
All district councils across North Yorkshire, North Yorkshire County Council and York
City Council
North Yorkshire Police, North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue and the North Yorkshire Police,
Fire and Crime Commissioner
Parish and Town Councils
York and North Yorkshire Armed Forces
York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership (YNY LEP), working with public
and private partners to deliver economic growth
Local Estates including Fitzwilliam Malton Estate (FME) and the Castle Howard Estate

Page 341

13 of 14

•

Attractions and businesses operating throughout Ryedale

•
•
•
•

Welcome to Yorkshire (WtY) – tourism agency for North Yorkshire
North York Moors National Park Authority (NYMNPA)
Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (HH AONB)
North Yorkshire Business & Education Partnership (NYBEP), working with schools and
businesses to develop skills and talent
York and White Rose Home Improvement Agency, delivering our Disabled Facilities
Grant and our Wellbeing and Handyperson’s services
Yorkshire Derwent Catchment Partnership
North Yorkshire Local Resilience Forum

•
•
•
•
•
•

Yorkshire Energy Solutions, delivering our Energy Efficiency grants
Warm and Well in North Yorkshire, the single point of contact for energy efficiency
advice
Community First Yorkshire, delivering community engagement services around
Community Led housing

Page 342

14 of 14

Agenda Item 14a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

10 SEPTEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 19 MARCH 2020

123

Response to Motion to Council and Consultation on Proposed HCV Restriction

Considered – report of the Programme Director of Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships

Recommendation
It is recommended to Council that:
(i)

The Council welcomes the commitment from North Yorkshire County Council
to undertake work to develop proposals for a junction that allows for alldirection movements between York Road and the A64, near the western end
of the Malton Bypass. It is understood that the intention is to develop
proposals to a stage whereby bids for funding the junction could be submitted
at short notice.
Further, officers will continue discussions with colleagues at North Yorkshire
County Council with the aim of identifying options and developing proposals
for a junction or slip roads between Broughton Road and the A64.

(ii)

Council approve a suggested response to the County Council’s consultation
stating that the only way to solve the HCV problem in Malton is to deliver
infrastructure

Voting record
Unanimous
[NOTE: Recommendation (ii) was resolved on 3 April 2020 via a Decision Notice issued
under urgency powers. See Decision Notice – Response to Motion to Council and
Consultation on Proposed HCV Restriction]

Council

Page 343

10 September 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

19 MARCH 2020

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COUNCIL AND
CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED HCV RESTRICTION

WARDS AFFECTED:

DERWENT AND MALTON (DIRECTLY)
NORTON EAST, NORTON WEST, & OTHER WARDS
(INDIRECTLY)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To respond to a Motion to Council and to seek Members views on a related
consultation by North Yorkshire County Council.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended (to Council) that:
(i)

the Motion to Council proposed by Cllr Di Keal, seconded by Cllr Steve Mason,
and referred to Policy and Resources Committee by Full Council on 27th
February be amended (suggested amended text is set out in 6.11);

(ii)

Council approve the suggested response to the County Council’s consultation
proposing an experimental part-time prohibition of Heavy Commercial Vehicles
(HCVs) on Highfield Road (as set out in 6.15).

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Joint working with the County Council on congestion issues in Malton and Norton has
been on-going for a number of years. The County Council has recently committed to
undertake project development work regarding a junction with the A64 at Musley Bank
and officers are talking to County Council colleagues regarding the potential

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 345

19 MARCH 2020

development of options for a junction or slip roads with the A64 at Broughton Road.
3.2

On balance, the trialling of a part-time weight restriction on Highfield Road represents
a pragmatic balance between mitigating the impacts of heavy vehicles on Highfield
Road, at the most sensitive times of the day, whilst seeking to minimise the impacts
resulting from displacement of HCVs via other routes – particularly through the Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA).

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks relating to working with the County Council in support of
their project development work for junctions with the A64. The project development
work will need to identify any specific environmental or climate change impacts of the
proposals and any proposed mitigation, which will need to be fully assessed and
considered before any decision to progress with such schemes is made.

4.2

The main risk associated with the prohibition of heavy vehicles on Highfield Road is
the potential for displacement of these vehicles via Butcher Corner, with potential
impacts upon air quality within the AQMA. It is considered that the part-time nature of
the prohibition significantly mitigates this risk. As further mitigation, this report also
proposes that the County Council works closely with businesses and their suppliers to
encourage them to avoid the town centre during the periods when the prohibition is
active.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Council Plan priorities:


Sustainable Growth
o Promoting a strong economy with thriving businesses and
supporting infrastructure for future generations;
o Managing the environment of Ryedale with partners.



Customers & Communities
o Helping our partners to keep our communities safe and healthy.

5.2

Ryedale Economic Action Plan objective:
 A well connected economy:
o fast reliable journeys to the key centres, transport that underpins
growth, transport that connects employees and visitors to
businesses.

5.3

Local air quality management (LAQM) forms a key part of the Government’s strategies
to ensure that national air quality objectives will be met in the UK. The LAQM process
places an obligation on the Council to regularly review and assess air quality in the
district, and to determine whether or not the air quality objectives are likely to be
achieved. Where an exceedance is considered likely an Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA) must be declared and an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) prepared, setting out
the measures to be taken in pursuit of the objectives.

5.4

Following a detailed assessment in 2009, the Council concluded that declaration of an
AQMA was necessary in parts of Malton because the annual mean concentration of

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 346

19 MARCH 2020

nitrogen dioxide exceeded the relevant air quality objective at various relevant receptor
locations. Whilst no exceedances of the annual mean nitrogen dioxide objective have
occurred within the Malton AQMA for the last three years, increases in queuing related
to congestion at the level crossing are anticipated in line with the introduction of
additional rail services in May 2020. Ryedale will continue to keep the AQMA under
review until it can be demonstrated that compliant concentrations are stable over a
sustained period.
5.5

This report includes details of a current consultation being undertaken by North
Yorkshire County Council and seeks Members views on a response.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

Background
6.1

6.2

6.3

This report has been written in response to two separate matters, which nevertheless
have overlapping subjects:


Motion to Council proposed by Cllr Di Keal and seconded by Cllr Steve
Mason (part of which calls for a ban on heavy vehicles using Highfield Road
and therefore links to the item below); and



NYCC Consultation: Proposed Experimental Part-Time Prohibition of HCVs
on Highfield Road, Malton.

Considerable joint working between RDC and NYCC on traffic and congestion issues
in Malton & Norton has already taken place, including:
•

Malton & Norton Infrastructure & Connectivity Study (completed)

•

Development of new Traffic Model for towns (completed)

•

Testing of various scenarios through traffic model (completed)

•

Local Cycling and Walking Investment Plan (Phase 1 nearing completion)

•

Development of Ryedale Car Parking Strategy, covering the whole District,
including Malton & Norton (nearing completion)

Joint work continues to develop a range of interventions that were identified in the
Malton & Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity report. Officers are planning to bring
an update to Committee on progress to date, next steps, and potential resource
implications early in the 2020/21 Committee cycle.

Motion to Council - submitted by Cllr Di Keal and Cllr Steve Mason
6.4

A Motion to Council was proposed by Cllr Di Keal and seconded by Cllr Steve Mason
for consideration at Council on 20th February 2020, although the meeting was
adjourned before consideration of the Motion and reconvened on 27th February. Prior
to being considered, the proposer made amendments to the Motion and the amended
version was referred to Policy and Resources Committee (see Appendix 1). It is this
amended version of the Motion which is considered here.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 347

19 MARCH 2020

6.5

The Motion contains two distinct elements – albeit both relating to traffic levels within
the towns. The first element relates to a call for new junctions with the A64, whilst the
second relates to a call for a ban on heavy vehicles using Highfield Road. The two
elements are considered separately below.

6.6

Part 1 of the Motion to Council:
“In view of the continuing calls for west east access to the A64 from York Rd, we call
upon Ryedale District Council to work with North Yorkshire County Council and the
Highways Agency to deliver a roundabout at the Huttons Ambo junction on the A64
and slip roads on / off the A64 at the B1257 Broughton Road, to help alleviate the
traffic congestion in Malton and Norton.
The roundabout would allow access to the A64 east from York Road, reducing the
level of traffic, including HGVs, that have to pass through Malton and Norton to
access the A64 and create east / west access at both ends of the Malton bypass.”

6.7

Officers have discussed the Motion with colleagues at North Yorkshire County
Council and would comment as follows:


officers continue to work with colleagues at NYCC to stress the case for
additional all-direction movement junctions on the A64 around Malton and to
make the case for such projects with the LEP for inclusion in their ‘pipeline’ of
projects;



NYCC have recently committed to develop proposals for an all movements
junction with the A64 at Musley Bank;



NYCC intend to develop these proposals to a stage whereby bids for funding
such junctions could be submitted to Government at short notice;



officers are in discussions with colleagues at NYCC regarding the investigation of
options for an A64 junction with Broughton Road;



this on-going work is part of a much wider package of measures aimed at
reducing town centre congestion in Malton and Norton that the District and
County councils have been jointly developing;



the suggestion of a new roundabout at the Huttons Ambo junction is just one
option for achieving the aims of a junction that supports all-direction movements:
Members may not wish to exclude other options from consideration at this stage;



County Council colleagues have indicated that they will happily work with
Highways England should they wish to develop such a scheme;



however, notwithstanding this, it is considered that such a roundabout is not likely
to be the optimum solution to the lack of turning movements at Musley Bank, as it
will introduce delays to through-traffic on the A64 (potentially exacerbating the
existing ‘bottleneck’ at the western end of the Malton bypass) and a potential
accident risk;



additionally, the costs of such a roundabout are unlikely to be significantly lower
than the costs of introducing new slip roads at Musley Bank (a length of new twoway link road would be required between the proposed roundabout and York
Road);



Ryedale District Council and North Yorkshire County Council continue to work
together to identify opportunities for funding such projects – and will apply for
funding as appropriate.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 348

19 MARCH 2020

6.8

Part 2 of the Motion to Council:
“Furthermore, with the concern widely expressed for the safety of children and
parents accessing Malton County Primary School and St Mary’s RC School on
Highfield Lane, Malton, thereafter, we call upon RDC to support an HGV ban
between Peasey Hill Road junction and Hawthorn Avenue”

6.9

This Motion was submitted to Council prior to the NYCC consultation (detailed
below), proposing an experimental part-time prohibition on HCVs using Highfield
Road for set times of the day, was issued. The situation has therefore moved on
since the Motion was submitted.

6.10

Officers would comment as follows:
 implementation of a full-time ban on heavy vehicles using Highfield Road in
advance of the above A64 junctions being implemented is likely to result in
significant displacement of heavy vehicles via Butcher Corner, with an adverse
impact upon air quality within the Malton Air Quality Management Area. As such
this would not be recommended at this stage;


the inclusion of the word “thereafter” in the Motion, however, is taken to mean
that the Motion is calling for a heavy vehicle ban only once the roundabout on the
A64 at Huttons Ambo junction and slip roads from Broughton Road (called for in
Part 1 of the Motion) have been delivered;



in this case officers consider that a full-time ban on heavy vehicles using Highfield
Road could potentially be adopted without having significant negative impacts
elsewhere on the road network, or on the Air Quality Management Area, as long
as suitable alternative routes are in place;



this conclusion would likely be dependant upon any A64 / Musley Bank junction
supporting ‘all-direction movements’ and would also be dependant on the scope
or extent of any A64 / Broughton Road junction;



if the designs of such junction/s did not support all-direction movements junctions
then there may still be scope for a heavy vehicle ban to have knock on
implications elsewhere on the local road network – including within the Air Quality
Management Area;



it may therefore be prudent to await the outcomes of NYCC’s project
development work on A64 junction/s, and consideration of how the town’s internal
highway network is likely to perform once these junctions have been
implemented, before committing to support a full-time ban on heavy vehicles
using Highfield Road;



ultimately the decision regarding whether to implement any weight restrictions
lies with NYCC.

Motion to Council – Conclusion
6.11

Given the above points, officers consider that it may be appropriate to amend the
proposed Motion to Council in such a way that supports the principles of the Motion,
without being quite as prescriptive (in terms of the type of desired junction) and that
recognises the work that is already underway. A suggested amended version is set
out below for Members’ consideration:
Part 1 - In relation to A64 junctions:
“The Council welcomes the commitment from North Yorkshire County Council to

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 349

19 MARCH 2020

undertake work to develop proposals for a junction that allows for all-direction
movements between York Road and the A64, near the western end of the Malton
Bypass. It is understood that the intention is to develop proposals to a stage
whereby bids for funding the junction could be submitted at short notice.
Further, officers will continue discussions with colleagues at North Yorkshire
County Council with the aim of identifying options and developing proposals for
a junction or slip roads between Broughton Road and the A64.”
Part 2 - In relation to proposed ban on heavy vehicles:
“At this stage a full prohibition on heavy vehicles using Highfield Road is likely to
have an unacceptable negative impact on air quality within the Malton Air Quality
Management Area.
The Council will consider calling for the introduction of such a prohibition once
detailed schemes for A64 junctions have been developed, their implications for
the internal highway network have been assessed, and implementation is due to
go ahead.
In the mean-time, the District Council welcomes the proposed experimental parttime HCV prohibition on Highfield Road (subject to NYCC seeking to minimise
the potential for HCVs to simply divert via the AQMA)”
NYCC Consultation: Proposed Experimental Part-Time Prohibition of Heavy
Commercial Vehicles, Highfield Road Malton
6.12

A consultation letter and associated plan was received from NYCC on 27 February
2020 (see Appendix 2a and 2b) setting out details of a proposed experimental parttime restriction on HCVs along part of Highfield Road (and adjoining residential
streets). The proposal is in response to safety concerns expressed by residents and
local Councillors regarding the number of heavy vehicles passing two primary schools,
particularly since the weight restriction was imposed on the level crossing between
Malton and Norton, which, inevitably, led to some displacement of heavy vehicles
along Highfield Road.

6.13

In the normal course of events, officers would coordinate across the various relevant
teams and submit a response without referring back to Members, however, given the
crossover of this issue with the second element of the above Motion to Council, it was
considered more appropriate for the proposed response to be included within this
report, alongside consideration of the above Motion to Council, to seek a Member
perspective.

6.14

A request for an extension to the consultation deadline until 3rd April has been made
and agreed by colleagues at NYCC. This should give time for the matter to be
considered by Policy and Resources Committee on 19th March followed by Council on
2nd April.

6.15

Officers seek Members’ views on the following suggested response to the consultation:
“As a consequence of a number of factors (including a constrained historic road
network, traffic congestion, air quality issues and the declaration of Malton Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA), the limited access points onto and off the
A64 and the need to access Showfield Lane industrial estate) there are no quick

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 350

19 MARCH 2020

and easy solutions to concerns relating to heavy vehicles passing through
residential areas and past the primary schools on Highfield Road.
The ideal long-term solution is to develop additional access points onto and off
the A64 at Musley Bank and Broughton Road in order to minimise the need for
such through-traffic and Ryedale District Council are fully supportive of the work
being undertaken to develop these proposals.
Introducing restrictions on HCVs using Highfield Road will displace such traffic
onto other routes. The part-time nature of the proposed experimental prohibition
will go a significant way to mitigating such displacement.
Although the letter refers to the proposed prohibition being “…operative during
school start and finish times…”, it is not clear whether this means the prohibition
would be in force everyday of the week; from Monday to Friday every week; or
from Monday to Friday during term-times only.


Ideally the Council would prefer the latter, in order to minimise
unnecessary displacement of HCVs via the AQMA, but if this is not
practical then the prohibition should only be in place from Monday
to Friday.

The potential for heavy vehicles to seek to follow inappropriate alternative routes
during the prohibited times (e.g. Peasey Hills Road, Wentworth Street or
Greengate) could exacerbate issues elsewhere within the town.


Careful consideration of signage, both on affected routes and on
potential alternative routes, is needed to avoid such issues
occurring when the prohibition is effective.

The most likely alternative route for HCVs is for them to redirect via Butcher
Corner (within the AQMA), however, directing additional heavy vehicles via this
route is clearly a sensitive matter.


Ryedale District Council would not wish to see significant levels of
HCV traffic diverting via the AQMA and so would encourage NYCC
to work with affected businesses and their suppliers to minimise
such displacement (e.g. by encouraging their HCV drivers to avoid
the town centre during the affected times wherever possible).

On balance, and subject to NYCC seeking to address the matters highlighted in
bold (above), Ryedale District Council welcomes the proposal for an
experimental part-time prohibition of HCVs on Highfield Road (including part of
Pasture Lane).
The Council considers that (as an interim measure, prior to additional access
points with the A64 being delivered) this represents a pragmatic balance
between mitigating the impacts of heavy vehicles on Highfield Road, at the most
sensitive times (i.e. during school start and finish times), whilst seeking to
minimise impacts resulting from displacement of HCVs via other routes –
particularly through the AQMA. The experimental nature of the proposal means
that, should the restriction lead to adverse impacts elsewhere, then the restriction
could be reconsidered.”

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 351

19 MARCH 2020

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no financial implications for the District Council.
b)

Legal
The Council has a duty to fulfil its obligations under Part IV of the Environment Act
1995 Local Air Quality Management and continues to meet these obligations
through the work set out in 5.4 (above).

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
There are potential health and safety benefits of a prohibition of HCVs on Highfield
Road during the periods of school arrivals and departures. There are also
corresponding potential dis-benefits on the routes via which traffic might be
displaced, including adverse impacts upon air quality. The County Council has
already sought to mitigate this by proposing a part-time prohibition which will only
be operational during normal school arrival and departure times. A further
mitigation could be for the County Council to work closely with businesses and
suppliers to encourage them to avoid the town centre during the periods when the
prohibition is effective, as outlined elsewhere in this report.

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships

Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Howard Wallis, Senior Economy & Infrastructure Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43274
howard.wallis@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Include any referenced papers
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Report
Malton Air Quality Management Area – Action Plan and Annual Status Reports

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 352

19 MARCH 2020

Appendix 1 – Motion to Council

Proposed by Cllr Di Keal
Seconded by Cllr Steve Mason

[NB Underlined text denotes alterations from Motion to Council as originally submitted]

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 353

19 MARCH 2020

Appendix 2a – NYCC Consultation Letter

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 354

19 MARCH 2020

Appendix 2b – NYCC Consultation Plan

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 355

19 MARCH 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

